STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JULY 2NP, 2013 2:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for July 2, 2013

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for April 16, 2013

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for June 4, 2013

CONSENT AGENDA

(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and

acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

6. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 6/21/13 for $373,760.65, Accounts
Payable date 06/14/13 for $326,858.65 and 6/14/13 for $6,548.93

7. Possible approval of Treasurer Report for May 2013

8. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

1




a. The Highlander - General/240 North C Street (Cosmetologist) vC
b. A B Custom Woodworking - General/200 Canyon Way (Cabinetry) RD
c. Uprising Paragliding - Home Business/240 Vermillion (Recordkeeping Only) VCH

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications and extension of the
Agreement between Storey County (Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association
(Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock Chapter.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of contract with High Sierra Forestry to update
the 2005 Community Wildfire Protection Plan. This is being funded through a fuel reduction
grant via Nevada Division of Forestry.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of TRI Public Partnership “Statement of Project
Revenue and Net revenue and Supplementary Information” for the period ending June 30, 2011
and 2012.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 13-249 an Ordinance amending
Storey County Code chapter 1.08 General Provisions providing for general penalties for violation
of the ode and amending other sections to be consistent and providing for other properly related
matters.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion of decision by the State of Nevada Attorney
General’s Office finding in Open Meeting Law Opinion Number 2013-01 that Mark Joseph
Philips was improperly precluded from making comments and ejected from the April 2, 2013
County Commission Meeting by Chairman Bill Sjovangen. A copy is on the County’s Website
and a copy will be made available upon request to anyone who requests it. This discussion is
required by NRS 241.0395.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of resolution 13-377 setting the 2013/2014 Tax
Rate Levy

16. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE NRS 474 STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION
DISTRICT BOARD

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of contract with High Sierra Forestry to update
the 2005 Community Wildfire Protection Plan. This is being funded through a fuel reduction
grant via Nevada Division of Forestry.

18. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING




19. DISCUSSION (No Action): Per TRI/Storey Development Agreement): Tahoe-Reno Industrial
Center, LLC & Fulcrum Sierra Biofuels, LLC Boundary Line Adjustment 2013-001 for Fulcrum
Sierra Biofuels LLC/TRI at, being portions of the east %2 of section 10 and the west %2 of section
11, T19N, R22E M.D.M.

20. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Application to amend Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2
creating Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-3. By Comstock Mining, Inc. (American Flat).
The requested amendments to Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-2 are to expand land area and
modify uses allowed at existing ore processing facility at 1200 American Flat Road (APN 004-331-
36), American Flat, Nevada. The requested amendments for expansion and modification of uses
are limited to said area and to ore processing. Staff and the applicant have also agreed to update
all text of the current special use permit to be consistent with existing federal, state, and local
regulations that apply and to reflect appropriate use of language and terminology. Staff and the
applicant have agreed to leave the substance of sections concerning exploration and mining in
their current state.

21. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. Caldera Electric - Contractor/508 Jackson Way (electrical contractor) Carson City

b. Kalen Johnson- General/1480 Grey Bluff Drive (misc. maintenance) Fernley

c. Cool Breeze Refrigeration & Heating - Contractor/72 Webb Circle (refrig. Repair) Reno

d. Buck’s Plumbing & Heating - Contractor 275 Gallaway Lane (plumbing cont.) Reno

e. Virginia City Mining Company - General/171 South C Street (panning for gold) vC

f. Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
(public warehouse and distribution)

g. Schwabe North America, Inc. - General/2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
(distribution center for dietary supplements)

h. MARS Petcare US - General/725 Waltham Way (dist. For pet food) TRI

i. Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General /188 South C Street vC
(make and sell kettle corn)

j. HotPot, LLC - General /420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 (restaurant) TRI

k. American Arms Delta - General/224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
(firearms manufacture and repair)

1. Battle Born Munitions, Inc - General/625 Waltham Way TRI

(import and distribute firearms and ammunition)
22. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

23. BOARD COMMENT
24. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:
e Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.
e Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.
e Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

3




¢ Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item on the
agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on Public
Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the Board. Please limit your comments
to three minutes.

e Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before June 27, 2013; Virginia City
Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands Fire
Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

oy Vaneidd\[uFieansd)

Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer




MINUTES FOR APRIL 16, 2013



STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL16%, 2013 12:00P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Commissioner Gilman, District Attorney Maddox, County Manager
Pat Whitten, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Justice Court Clerk Tami Migan, Community Development
Director Dean Haymore, Administrative Office Austin Osborne, Public Works Director Mike Nevin,
Emergency Management/Grants Cherie Nevin, Comptroller Hugh Gallagher, Fire Chief Gary Hames
and Clerk/Treasurer Vanessa DuFresne

Absent: Vice-Chairman McBride

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M.CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

The Closed session was called to order by the Chair at 12:00 p.m. and recessed at 1:47 p.m.

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
The meeting was called the order by the Chair at 2:02 p.m.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 16, 2013
Mark Joseph Phillips requested item #10 be removed from the consent agenda and discussed
during the regular agenda.

Judy Cohen, Storey County resident, business owner, tax payer and property owner, commented
on item #10 as well, suggesting a new approach to the process and the possibility of receiving
comparable bids for the annual audit.




Motion: Approve agenda for April 16, 2013 with item #10 being heard on the regular agenda,
Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)
5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for March 19, 2013
Chairman Sjovangen stated that Vice-Chairman McBride is ill and will not be joining us today.

Motion: Approve minutes for March 19, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman
Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)
6. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

David Toll spoke in favor of the job performance of the Sheriff. Since taking office he has
restored the office to a high level of public trust and approval, while reducing spending by a
million dollars since fiscal year 2009. He feels this is a major achievement. Mr. Toll continued
that the Sheriff has submitted a budget that he believes will allow his office to continue operating
at a satisfactory level. It has been proposed to cut his budget by a considerable amount, thus
reducing his ability to provide satisfactory protection to the public, which in turn results in the
erosion of public trust and confidence. Zero based budgeting is hard to achieve when you are
responsible for keeping order amongst human beings. We are not an altogether reliable species
and sometimes we require overtime by the peace keepers.

Dale Beach, Storey County resident, spoke to a public records request addressed to District
Attorney Maddox regarding the licensing of the brothels owned by Commissioner Gilman. Mr.
Beach stated he is the CEO of the committee to improve County Government and he is glad that
there are some State people at the meeting today, because he wishes we could mimic what the
State does. He addressed the growing expense of family health care. Mr. Beach further
discussed the County paying the full cost of PERS of each employee, while the State only pays
half of the cost and the employee pays the other half. He is getting into bulk mailings, starting
with 100 per month. He is concerned about our lobby cost and asked that maybe our Senator
could help us there as well. Our County has set themselves up, for the Fire Department, with
Douglas County, Lyon County and Carson City. Each one of those three counties is between
50,000 and 75,000 people while Storey County has just 4,000. He believes we should be rating
ourselves with Mineral, Pershing, Humboldt and Lander. Some of those departments are 100%
volunteer; the Fire Department is Storey County’s biggest budget. He needs the Sherift’s Office
10 times more than he needs the Fire Department. Chairman Sjovangen asked that he submit all
of that in writing. Mr. Beach said he will put it on his website and give him the web address.
District Attorney Maddox asked if he would be taking emails now at his website. Mr. Beach
responded that he is and may get a Twitter account as well. He gets to choose what goes on
there and what doesn’t. District Attorney Maddox commented in regards to the statements
made about the Fire Department. He explained that when he was the District Attorney for
Carson City, at which time there was about 30,000 people, they looked at the possibility of going

2




back to a Volunteer Fire Department. The problem is that had they decided to do that the
insurance companies would have raised the rates on the homeowners. The cost to the citizens to
pay for that insurance increase would have been more than the cost to maintain the Fire
Department. Mr. Beach stated that before Commissioner Gilman got into office he asked him to
do some research on the four different counties that he mentioned earlier, to find out if it could
be done cheaper. He doesn’t need a Fire Department, he will never call 911. It bothers him to
spend the money on the Fire Department.

Ms. Cohen seconded what Mr. Toll said regarding the Sheriff’s Office. She added that she 100%
supports the Fire Department. However she agrees with Mr. Beach that we should try to run the
department as cost effective and efficiently as possible. We receive direct services from the
Sheriff and Fire, both which are very valuable services. She sent the three commissioners, Pat
Whitten and Hugh Gallagher a letter regarding the meetings. She feels we should follow proper
decorum here, no more rudeness. Which she has been a recipient of herself, everyone is entitled
to their opinion. She asked that the audience and the other people in the county government
treat one another with respect.

Mr. Phillips stated that he too felt obligated to come here today and speak in regards to the
Sheriff’s budget. He is disturbed at the drastic reduction in the budget and would like to see it
back up to what was submitted.

Ms. Cohen noticed that the age of coverage under the insurance benefits for dependents has been
upped to 26 years old. She finds that to be an excessive age. Mr. Whitten responded that it is a
direct result of Obama Care; we have no control over it.

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

7. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 03/29/13 for $345,195.42, 04/12/13
for $441,143.81and Accounts Payable date 04/05/13 for $265,561.37

8. For possible action approval quarterly report for the Virginia City Township Justice Court.

9. For possible action approval of award bid in the amount of $126,820.55 to Coons Construction,
the apparent low bidder for the Storey County Pool Accessibility Upgrades Project (PWP #ST-
2013-095) as part of the Community Development Block Grant awarded to Storey County.

10. For possible action approve appointing the firm of David Pringle CPA as outside auditors for the
Storey County Audited Statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 (This item was heard under
the Regular Agenda of the Board)

11. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:

3




Nevada ICF, LLC - Contractor/1491 Serendipity Court, Sparks

Complete Electric - Contractor/1655 Marietta Way, Sparks

Rimrock Drilling, Inc. - Contractor/700 Flanders Road, Reno

V.C/s Treasurer Island - General /54 North C Street, Virginia City

Comstock Movie Studio, LLC dba Three Tickets to Paradise - General /150 North
Summit Street, Virginia City

Trico, LLC - General/ 655 Peru, TRI

Arrow Remodeling & Renovation - Contractor/1280 Plumb, Reno

Momentum Consulting dba Fast Signs of Reno - Contractor/1280 Plumb, Reno
Burke Roofing, INC. - Contractor/109 Shadow Mountain Drive, Fernley

o0 o

=prag ™

12. SHERIFF'S OFFICE LICENSING

13.

For possible approval of first reading for cabaret license application for The Roasting House
located at 55 North C Street, Virginia City.

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of item 10, Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Dr. Marc Johnson - President of the University of Nevada,
Reno regarding any concerns about a merger of leadership positions for UNCE and
CABNR/NAES. Dr. Johnson also has expressed a desire to re-connect with each county to build
awareness that the University of Nevada, Reno is their university across a number of topics, like
agriculture, land management, water resources, mining, ranching, community and business
development, etc.

Dr. Johnson addressed the Commission regarding an administrative change and any concerns
they may have surrounding the change. He stated that it sounds as though this county has been
hit with budget issues just as the University has been hit. The University wants to be more
involved with the County and State. Dr. Johnson explained some of the rolls and responsibilities
the University has and offers to the residents of the county. During the budget cuts several
programs had to be cut and combined into one group to maintain the quality of service and
expertise. The department of Mining and Geology had to but cut and combined as well and in
addition to the medical section of the University. We want the University to expand outreach of
all of the colleges to better serve the public. The proposal he is presenting today is to leave
cooperative extension alone as a separate budget but to have one leader for it and the
Agricultural Station. The purpose is to coordinate the expertise that is on campus and combine
research and teaching. This would allow them to bring the critical mass expertise more readily
to Storey County.

Chairman Sjovangen responded that he believes that Dr. Johnson is aware of the response he
received from NACO. Our position is going to be consistent with that as well. Mr. Whitten
added that he thinks it is wonderful that Dr. Johnson has taken the time to come up and speak

4




14.

15.

with the Board. Chairman Sjovangen added that we stand with NACO at this point. Dr. Johnson
responded that some of the information NACO received about reductions in budget and
personal was inaccurate. However he respects the County’s position.

Commissioner Gilman stated the he would like to see a continuance so that more information can
be gathered prior to making a decision. There has been a variety of positions taken and he would
like to look into it further. He respects the effort coming from the University. He would like
until the next meeting.

Dr. Johnson explained that he is here to hear the County’s concerns and many counties have
stayed neutral on the proposal. His purpose of being here is to have a conversation not to
necessarily have a vote.

Chairman Sjovangen stated that he agrees with Commissioner Gilman that additional time is
needed to review the information and make a decision.

Motion: Continue the item to the next meeting of the Commissioners, Action: Approve Moved
by Commissioner Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

DISCUSSION (No Action): Update from Maurice Washington of the Northern Nevada
Development Authority

Mr. Washington said he is termed out from his senatorial duties and is enjoying his new position.
He provided the Board with an update of the Northern Nevada Development Authority’s
(NNDA) actions. He is pleased that Commissioner Gilman is on the NNDA Board and he enjoys
working with Mr. Whitten. The NNDA is currently involved in an aggressive mailer and email
campaign. We have done well during these hard economic times, seeing growth in the counties
that the NNDA represents. In the last fiscal year there have been at least five closures in Storey
County, several site visits and they have seen some interest in fire arm industry in the TRIC area.
Mr. Washington discussed additional activity that is ongoing and the continued efforts to bring
new companies and current business expansions in Northern Nevada. The new slogan is
“Improve the State of Your Business.” They are not asking companies to pull up their roots and
relocate, we want them to expand. He explained the philosophy behind this slogan. The Board
thanked him for his time and work.

(Item 10 from the Consent Agenda) For possible action approve appointing the firm of David
Pringle CPA as outside auditors for the Storey County Audited Statements for the year ended
June 30, 2013

Mr. Phillips stated that his research shows that the County Commissioners don’t need to take
bids on outside auditors and there isn’t any time limit on how long the same auditor can be used.
In light of recent conversation regarding reports that need to be filed and budgets that haven’t
been filed with the State, these should have come up in previous years audits. Those are a few of




16.

his concerns. An item in the last audit that caught his attention is funds in excess of the amount
that are covered by the FDIC.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher stated that in his 40 plus years of doing this he has been on both
sides of the fence, where bids have gone out automatically for CPA firms and where these firms
have continued the preform the audit until there was a need or reason for the firm to be replaced.
He provided an example of a firm that was closed due to violations. Mr. Gallagher believes that
the current CPA is doing a great job. One thing to consider is that if you go out to bid or replace
the current firm there is going to be increased costs. A new firm will need to familiarize
themselves with the County. It is his recommendation that we retain the current firm for the next
fiscal year. Mr. Whitten clarified that we are required to certify our outside auditor by a certain
date each year. Mr. Gallagher responded that we are by March 31st of year. Mr. Whitten asked if
a CPA can actually bid or is it more a request of qualifications. Mr. Gallagher explained that they
can submit a “not in excess of” but there could always be an additional cost. You are looking at
their staff, experience and partners among other things when making a decision to accept that
firm. Mr. Whitten added that a fresh look is always a good thing, however June 30t is around
the corner and we need to appoint the auditor. He recommends approval with the clear
indication that next year we go out for RFQ or RFP. Chairman Sjovangen agreed that we are out
of time for the upcoming year.

Ms. Cohen asked who determines the scope of an audit. She stated that we need to determine
what they look at and change the scope for the upcoming year being that it is too late for bids.

Nicole Barde stated that her major concern is who audits the auditor. To the extent that the
current auditor has been auditing the county the Board may want to consider having a third
third-party auditor. Essentially do a quality control on some of the items that are being audited.
She wants to ensure that the auditor isn't getting “snow blind.” Mr. Whitten believes this can be
addressed during the next year and can bring in an additional firm for support. He and the
Comptroller will work on the quality control.

Motion: Approve the firm David Pringle CPA as outside auditors for the Storey County Audited
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2013 with the condition that staff explore having an
overview audit and item specific audit as appropriate, Action: Approve Moved by
Commissioner Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)
DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

Fire Chief Gary Hames:

1. Reported that May 4th at Mill's Park in Carson City will be the kickoff event for “Wild Fire
Prevention Week.” Storey County will be participating in the event.

2. Ambulance subscriptions will be going out in the next week or two.

3. He addressed comments made by Dale Beach, we lose people, and that is partially because of
things said by the public and what is published in the newspaper. He thanked Ms. Cohen for
her comments. We do need a Fire Department and the Insurance Service Organization (ISO)

6




rating would absolutely be affected. They come out every 15 years and rate the County. The
last time the rating was reviewed some of the areas were a 10, which have now dropped to a
4. He reminded everyone that we don’t have a hospital; the first line of medical is our
paramedics. On behalf of the staff we work very hard for the public, we live and work in this
community. Commissioner Gilman added that there a lot of unsung heroes here. Our
County is at the top of list of the schools and students, we are rated number one for county
health in the State. Additionally we have the largest industrial park and that isn’t something
you can have with a volunteer fire department. The industrial park is the number one source
of revenue for the County. We also have a large volume of tourist coming through Virginia
City, which is another major part of revenue. You cannot have those things without the
proper infrastructure that is offered by the departments and staff of this County. We need to
celebrate our wins and everything our County has done. Fire Chief Hames explained that it is
hard to maintain morale with hurtful comments being made by the public. He added that we
try very hard. Ms. Barde stated that a Fire Department in our environment isn’t a luxury it's a
necessity. We wouldn’t receive the same support or sense of security from a volunteer
department. The entire Fire Department is phenomenal. The need and support is there,
during the budget time it is more important to look at the efficiencies.

Grants Cherie Nevin:

1. Ms. Nevin provided an update on the income survey for Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver
City. We received 177 completed surveys; we have a magic number of 211 that we need to
meet for returned surveys. We are short about 34 surveys; representatives from the Rural
Water Association will be in town during the evening hours next week to obtain the needed
surveys. She asks that people cooperate with these folks and provide them with the
information they are requesting.

2. She stated that with the approval of swimming pool bid today we are looking to start
construction on the pool project next week. Hope to have the work completed in time for the
pool to open in the first part of June.

Public Works Director Mike Nevin:

1. Mr. Nevin stated that his crew strives to do things that are meaningful to the people of the
community. They have embarked on a project at the Louise Peri Park to rehabilitate the
restrooms which have been closed for the past six years.

2. He has located the joint written agreement between Storey County and the School District for
the upkeep and maintenance of the park. He has sent that out to the key players and will be
requesting a follow meeting to make certain we are all on the same page.

3. The crew will also be installing some lights on the poles that are adjacent from the park and
the possibility of solar powered motion lights for the restrooms. Hope to have all that
completed in the next couple of weeks. He is excited about the work and hopes that the
people are as well.

4. Mr. Nevin reported that they have advertised for lifeguards and a pool manager. Should have
the pool back up and operational the first part of June. He has filled the custodial position
and believes the gentleman is going to work out real well. He thanked the people in the
Courthouse for their positive comments so far.




Community Development Director Dean Haymore:

1. He reported that the business license impact statement has been permanently placed on hold.
We cannot increase fees per the developer agreement with TRL

2. He will be issuing a grading permit for 525,000 square foot building at 700 USA Parkway next
week. We are completing tentative improvements for MARS Petcare. He covered additional
projects that currently taking place in TRI including a new fire arm business and the
completion of a new building at Barrick.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

1. Sheriff Antinoro commented on the remarks made by Commissioner Gilman regarding all the
wonderful things you can find here in Storey County. He stated that along with that we have
a very safe County and it is his goal to keep it that way. He offered his heartfelt appreciation
for the out pouring of support he has received during this difficult budgeting time.

2. An email just came out to him, that within four hours following the bombing in Massachusetts
yesterday afternoon, eight websites went up. He warned everyone that in times like these
there are all types of scams that pop up.

3. This Saturday is the annual softball tournament against the Fire Department; it is a fundraiser
for the girls’ softball team. The following weekend is the Grand Prix where his office will be
hosting a pancake feed in support of Special Olympics.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

1. Reminded the Board that there will be some resolutions presented regarding the abolishment
of the funds for the town of Gold Hill and Virginia City, the funding will be going to the
VCTC. Also, the VCTC will become a separate local government again. A new resolution
will also be presented regarding infrastructure.

2. Mr. Gallagher addressed the budgetary items that have been mentioned during the meeting.
The Sheriff's budget is in no way done, it is an ongoing process. The issue is we have to get
something that is viable so the public is safe and protected. Some of the information that has
come out is inaccurate. There will be no hidden agendas and everything will be out there in
black and white. He understands the concerns.

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:
1. Mr. Osborne reported the current business before the Planning Commission. May 16t will be
a master plan workshop in Rainbow Bend along with a flood project presentation.
. An annual tour will be conducted of the water system with the Sutro Tunnel for the Carson
Water Sub-Conservancy Board.
3. He is currently working on a permit for a single family residence on land that is zoned forestry
at the bottom of Six Mile Canyon.

N

Chairman Sjovangen called a recess at 3:17 pm.
Chairman Sjovangen called the meeting to order at 3:30 pm.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
1. He stated that would like to correct a statement made by Mr. Beach in which he indicated that
there are 31 firefighters. Mr. Whitten has confirmed with the Chief that there are in fact 22,

8




17.

inclusive of the Chief. There are reserves that are less than part-time and are geared towards
keeping overtime costs down.

2. At the last commission meeting the Board voted to take a stance of neutrality on SB22, the
boundary adjustment bill. The amendment providing for independent action by both boards
has been included in the amendment to the bill which has passed out of committee.

3. He reminded the Board that this Friday is a big day in Virginia City, the USDA has chosen
Storey County a prime example of how the USDA can promote and foster Earth Day. These
are the fine folks that have loaned us over five million dollars. The ceremony will be at the
Fourth Ward School followed by a no host lunch at Café Del Rio.

4. He encourages the papers to remind everyone the Free Dump Day will be the 3td and 4% of
next month in Virginia City with additional dates at the transfer station in the north end of
the county. They have a crew together that will be assisting those who require it in removal
of trash and debris from their homes. Saturday will be cleanup day in Lockwood.

District Attorney Bill Maddox:

1. Reported that Renee Hemasi will be done at the end of this month. She has been with his
office for about four months. She will be graduating from law school in May and might have
the Roberta Webster situation cleaned up. If you have the opportunity to thank her for her
time he asked that you do so. She has done a good job. Mr. Whitten added that she has been
one of the most impressive students he has ever come across.

2. He argued the CRA and Comstock Mining case yesterday in court. One of the issues that have
come up is the mootness of mater being that the trucks are no longer on the road. We should
get a decision within the next couple of weeks.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve resolution 13-372 to recognize April 24, 2013 as
“Denim Day” in support of victims of sexual violence.

Sue Jones with the Victim Services Unit provided some background behind the origination and
history of Denim Day which was established in California in 1999. This is the first year it has
been recognized in Nevada. They are asking that everyone wear denim on April 24™ in support
of awareness. The Victim Service Unit will be hosting an event on the same day at the High
School, educating the students on sexual assault and rape. Mrs. Jones read the resolution into the
record.

Motion: Approve resolution 13-372 to recognize April 24, 2013 as “Denim Day” in support of
victims of sexual violence, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman Seconded by
Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Mrs. Jones invited everyone to join them at the event on the 24t that will be at the High School.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

18.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit No. 2013-004 by the Nature
Conservancy (McCarran) Applicant is requesting a special use permit in APN 004-092-62, 004-

9




091-77 and 004-091-78 (appox. T20N, R22E, Sections 28, 39, 32 and 33 MDBM)(39° 33'38”N,
119°32'11”"NAD) to alter portions of the existing Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain
environment to facilitate flood management, water quality improvement, biodiversity and
habitat improvement, noxious weed eradication and recreation.

Mr. Osborne explained that the Planning Commission has given unanimous approval to the
permit. The property does not lay within the TRI boundaries. He turned the floor over to Ms.
Bakker who was present on behalf of the Nature Conservancy as the Project Manager. Ms.
Bakker walked the Board through a power point presentation. She provided an overview of the
Truckee River Restoration Project, the need for restoration, overall benefits of restoration,
restoration plans, the project planning and scheduling, required permits and partners involved in
the project. (A copy of the presentation is available in the Clerk’s Office.) Mr. Whitten stated that
Mustang Ranch listed in the presentation is the Old Mustang Ranch that is owned and managed
by BLM. It is his opinion that Commissioner Gilman does not have any conflict with the project.
He complimented Ms. Bakker and the Nature Conservancy on all of their amazing work over the
years. He hopes that this is one thing that we never have to test. He complimented her on her
wisdom for avoiding the April 2nd meeting that lasted 12 hours. Commissioner Gilman stated
that the projects have been wonderful, as a property owner and resident of the area he has
watched the evolution of their work. He asked with going back and restoring the river to pre-
channel dates are there problems going to reoccur. Ms. Bakker explained that the work done in
the 1960’s worked temporarily, over time it created a deeper ditch and minimized access to the
flood plain. Further discussion was held regarding potential flooding issues in the Lockwood
area and the positive effects this project will have on the issue. Mr. Haymore added that any
work that is done cannot raise the flood level; proper approval is required by FEMA and Storey
County. Mr. Osborne added that the Truckee River Flood Project is supporting this project. The
petroleum pipeline is well out of the area of this project, access will take place in three places,
there is an easement for this purpose only, 16 power lines will be relocated and the project will
not cause the river to rise.

Findings: The following are found to be factual regarding the proposed special use permit under
the recommended conditions of approval shown in Section X of this report. A motion for
approval should include these findings:

A.SCC Sections 17.35.040(T) and 17.76.020(H) (Uses Subject to a Special Use Permit) require a
special use permit for nature resource projects including river and waterway restoration,
wetland creation, and recycling in the I-2 Heavy Industrial and NR Natural Resources Zones.

B. The subject land is located in McCarran, Nevada, but is not located within the boundaries of
the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center; therefore, the proposed use is not subject to the restrictions
or entitlements of the Development Agreement between Storey County and the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Center.

C.The conditions of SUP No. 2013-004 will not conflict with the purpose, intent, and other
specific requirements of the I-2 Heavy Industrial Zone and the NR Natural Resources Zone, in
which the project is located.

D.The proposed project and the final product will not conflict with or adversely impact
surrounding existing land uses, future land uses, or land use entitlements therein under the I-
2 Heavy Industrial Zone.

10




E. The conditions under SUP No. 2013-004 are at least as stringent as and not in conflict with the
applicable federal, state, and county regulations. The minimum requirements under SCC
Chapter 17.03 Administrative Provision for special use permits are applied to the conditions
of this SUP.

F. The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2013-004 impose sufficient regulations on the
proposed project to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on the surrounding environment
and closest land uses.

Motion: Approve Special Use Permit No. 2013-004 by the Nature Conservancy (McCarran)
Applicant is requesting a special use permit in APN 004-092-62, 004-091-77 and 004-091-78
(appox. T20N, R22E, Sections 28, 39, 32 and 33 MDBM)(39° 33'38”N, 119°32'11"NAD) to alter
portions of the existing Truckee River channel and abutting floodplain environment to facilitate
flood management, water quality improvement, biodiversity and habitat improvement, noxious
weed eradication and recreation based on the findings of fact and the conditions of approval and
the motion for approval of the planning commission, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:
Associated Crane and Oil Field Log - General/235 London, TRI
Thompson Electrical - Contractor/7782 Cerritos Circle, Sparks
Rainbow Restoration - Contractot/1285 Marietta Way, Sparks
H204U - General/305 Sugar Hill Drive, Sparks

The House Chambers - General /405 Aspen Drive, Dayton

The Butchers Choice of Nevada - General /2555 Dickerson Rd, Reno

o oan o

Mr. Haymore asked that item A be continued and the remanding second readings approved.

Motion: Continue second reading item A Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman
Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

Motion: Approve second readings of items B-F, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Gilman Seconded by Chairman Sjovangen

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=2)

BOARD COMMENT

Commissioner Gilman requested that Staff undertake review and consideration for creating a new
Storey County department. The department would work directly under the Storey County
Commissioners and report to the County Manager. It has become evident that all of our community
outreach programs are being administered by a number of different departments. Many programs
and organizations are run through the VCTC which are budgeted for and the responsibility of Mr.
Dotson. There are other programs that the Community Chest administers and then we have our

11




community centers. The Sheriff's Office has done a wonderful job with the outreach programs. It is
his recommendation that we combine all the programs under one department that would be called
the Community Outreach Department, would be funded by a separate budget and would be
overseen by a department head. He asked that we open a research project to look at the viability of
the project.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 4:13 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

By
Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk-Treasurer

12




MINUTES FOR JUNE 4, 2013



STOREY COUNTY COMMISSION MEETING

TUESDAY, JUNE 4TH, 2013 12:00 P.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
BILL SJOVANGEN BILL MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
MARSHALL MCBRIDE
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA DU FRESNE
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Sjovangen, Vice-Chairman McBride, Commissioner Gilman, District
Attorney Maddox,  Deputy District Attorney Tim Treffinger, Deputy Clerk/Treasurer Dore
Nevin, County Manager Pat Whitten, Administrative Officer Austin Osborne, Virginia City
Tourism Commission Patrick Gilmore and Sheriff Gerald Antinoro.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 12:00 P.M. CALL TO ORDER CLOSED SESSION AT 12:00 P.M. (Closed
meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220(4) for the purpose of conferring with the County’s
management regarding labor negotiations.)

2. CALL TO ORDER AT 2:00 P.M.
The meeting was called to order by the Chair at 2:02 p.m.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
The Chair led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for June 4, 2013

Mark Joseph Phillips- His concern today is Item #11 this a continuation of a conversation we
started at a prior meeting he thought Mr. Gilman tabled this conversation until a future meeting.

Vice Chairman McBride said it was health insurance Mr. Phillips is referring to.
Mr. Phillips said it was the public insurance.

Pat Whitten said this is an all risk insurance and not our health insurance.




Mr. Phillips said is he correct in saying an agenda item was continued but has not come back up.
Mr. Whitten said we revisited that at the next meeting and it was approved. Those were health
benefits through A & H Insurance.

Motion: Approval of the Agenda for June 4, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for May 20, 2013

Motion: Approval of the Minutes for May 20, 2013, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Storey County Manager Pat Whitten read a statement dated June 4, 2013: (Copy of signed
statement available in the packet)

At almost every public meeting now, individuals exercise their right under the “Public
Comment” section of our agendas, to stand up and make statements, many of which are valid
and constructive. However, a few individuals abuse this right by standing to make statements
that are outright false and misleading. Often, some don’t even stay to hear or care about any
response. They simply leave the meeting,. It is especially troubling to me when one of the local
media publishes these statements without benefit of researching their accuracy or validity, or at
least asking for a response from the County.

At the last Commission Meeting, Dale Beach stood before you and asked the Commission “do
something to require honestly in office” so that “everybody we do business with in the County is
not giving us the scam”. He went on to further state that I had said the County and School
District had each been paying $36,000 a year for lobbying services, (which were previously
performed by Yvonne Murphy) and that we would be saving $12,000 by hiring Greg Hess. This
is the one and only accurate statement made during his public comment, in my opinion. He went
on to say that instead of “losing us $6,000”, it “cost us more money going from $72,000 to almost
$80,000”. This is patently untrue. For the record, the total combined salary and benefits costs for
Mr. Hess for the coming fiscal year are calculated to be $62,265.68, which includes increases in
both PERS and Health Insurance. His base compensation did not and will not increase. Our
Comptroller’s office bills the School District 50% of Mr. Hess’ salary and benefits, which equates
to an estimated amount of $31,132.84 for the coming year. While we are not saving quite as much
as we did for the first half of the year, both entities combined are still saving almost $10,000 a
year and as Commissioner Gilman pointed out, a lobbyist of Mr. Hess” qualifications and
background would cost the County and School District much, much more if we contracted out
with one of the traditional law firms.




Mr. Beach stated he “would like to have some penalty” for not being honest. I stand by my
previous statements as accurate and honest and encourage Mr. Beach to more genuinely practice
what he preaches in “telling the truth as close as he knows it”. (End of Statement)

Shawn Griffin Community Chest-
On Tuesday July 20 5:00 to 7:00 there will be a Grand Opening of the Library upstairs of the
Community Center. There will be a children’s section, 580 books and it will be staffed by
volunteers. He invited everyone to attend.
He will be meeting Thursday with the State Library staff to get CLAN (Central Library
Access Network) back available to our patrons, so they can take out books across the system
statewide. He is working closely with Sarah Jones in Carson City to have Storey County be
part of their Overdrive System which will allow them to access all E-books through the
Overdrive System. With that he hopes to purchase Kindles and check them out and have
books available to download for people that come into the center to utilize them. Both CLAN
and Sarah Jones are going to give us substantial discount because we are a pledge leading
group. As soon as we can they will be moving these services to Mark Twain and Lockwood.
So they can have access to both online loan and enter library loan systems. He has had 4
wonderful volunteer librarians here for the past 2 weeks coding and scanning the books.
They've ordered rugs for the Children’s area and have the books on shelves instead of boxes
so they can check them out easier. They have also recruited Washoe County Liberians to
come up and coordinate free reading time with the parents and families for the duration of
the summer. It will all be run by professional Liberians. All the cataloging has been done by
professional Liberians in their volunteer time. He hopes as they continue down the road they
get more resources and they can begin to staff it up and make the adult section available to
everyone as well as the children section. They are continuing to return and give back
anything not being used back to the High School Library.
He's working with District Attorney Maddox to get all the Law books in their office open as a
law library where the computer center is, which is already public and available to everybody
and used by the public at this time so there won’t be any computer problems so they can use
the online and physical books. He is hoping to have it done this month. On the 2nd he will be
recognizing the volunteers for all their hard work. He wanted to thank the State Library and
Sarah Jones for their hard work and for doing this out of the kindness of their heart.

Vice-Chairman McBride said they were proud of him for doing so much with so little money.

Dale Beach- He introduced himself as a political activist-he asked for documents that would
convince him that what he said is wrong he would love to have them. His understanding is
that we are spending $39,900 per month for our Lobbyist Mr. Hess for the four months that
the Legislature is open. He gets the money over 24 months, that’s his belief. He said “if it's
wrong please give me the documents to say its wrong”

Chairman Sjovangen told him he was wrong.

Mr. Beach asked if he gets health insurance from us. Both Mr. Whitten and Chairman
Sjovangen said “Yes”




Mr. Beach continues then you tag health insurance on $60,000 you get $70,000 - $80,000.

Mr. Whitten told him he gets the amount he stated in the budget he read it to him one more
time, he gets $62,265.68 that is his annual cost to employ him year round not for 4 months
during Legislature, as he stated before but Mr. Beach had left the building he is also a Federal
Lobbyist and works with us on an inter- County level. Mr. Beach said I'm sure does. Mr.
Whitten told him again that it is not a 4 month job.

Mr. Beach asked if his time was running during while Mr. Whitten is talking. Mr. Whitten
told him he asked the question. Mr. Beach continued with he wants his question answered in
writing. He brought up State Lobbyist Harvey Whitmore that he got in over his head and is
looking at 15years in the Federal pen and a $750,000 fine.

Chairman Sjovangen said this has nothing to do with Storey County.

Mr. Beach said he lobbied for issues for Storey County when he was a Lobbyist for the state,
that’s his thoughts. He would like to have a ordinance committee and management reduction
committee and he would like to be on it. He would like to see if we can cut costs for our
county. He still stands by that we are spending $39,900 per month for the 4 months that the
State Legislature is in office. He said again he wants something in writing and signed at the
bottom showing him he’s wrong.

Mr. Whitten told him to ask the Clerk after the meeting for a copy of his statement that he just
read that it is going to be record. Mr. Beach asked if it was going to be in the record. Mr.
Whitten told him “yes sir”.

Chairman Sjovangen told him to get a copy of it.
Mr. Beach said that would be nice would it be mailed to him.
Chairman Sjovangen told him not to run off after the meeting and get a copy.

Mr. Beach left the meeting without getting a copy of Mr. Whitten’s statement. He said he
would request a copy from the Clerk’s Office.

Mark Joseph Phillip - After today’s meeting he is going to get a file stamp at the Clerk’s
Office, it’s his written request for public record of minutes of previous meetings that are more
than 30 days ago that have never been put on the agenda by the Commissioner’s, for the
record Tuesday, April 2,2013 at 9:00 a.m. have not been approved by the Commissioner’s if
the minutes aren’t there we can’t go back, because there is no record of the meeting
happening. Also, Tuesday April 16, 2013 no minutes approved and no record of what
happening that day, May 7, 2013 that is approaching 30 days. He has never checked statue to
see if you can approve the minutes from May 20t and there is 3 prior meetings. Of course the
meeting he is interested in is the April 2nd meeting when he was wrongfully excluded. He
said it was a very long meeting and he doesn’t even know what happened. He is going to ask
the Clerk to give him draft minutes from that meeting within 5 working days. Hopefully they

4




will be on the agenda for the next meeting, if you haven't asked your Clerk to get these
minutes to you to get them on the agenda, then he will. Particularly the April 2nd meeting for
which he filed his open meeting law written complaint.

In regards to Dale Beach, he has worked long and hard with him. He has seen his written
requests for information and the run around he and himself get. For anyone to say they are
wrong without offering any kind of evidence.

Chairman Sjovangen told him to have a seat and thanked him.

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

7. Claims - For possible action approval of Payroll Check date 05/24/13 for $359,742.49 and
Accounts Payable date 05/17/13 for $757,565.19

8. For possible action approval of Licensing Board First Reading:
a. Queen of Spades - General /11 North C Street, VC
b. Virginia City Mining Company - General /171 South C Street, VC
c. Commercial Restroom Solutions, LLC - 1379 Waterloo Lane, Gardnerville
d. Bulette’s Restaurant & Saloon - General/5 North C Street, VC

END OF CONSENT AGENDA
Chairman Sjovangen asked if there were any comments- there were none.

Motion: Approval of Consent Agenda, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride
Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
9. DISCUSSION (No Action): Committee/Staff Reports

Patrick Gilmore Virginia City Tourism Commission:

Spoke on the Familiarization Tour this Thursday. He had copies of invite for anyone interested in
going it was for residents or whoever wanted to join them. There was a morning tour that started
at 9:15 a.m. and afternoon tour that started at 1:15 p.m. the trolly would be taking them to the
Fourth Ward School, Comstock Gold Mill, Ron Gallagher would be giving a fun history lesson on
things you may not know about Virginia City. He thanked everyone for their support they had
given them. He said there was still room available in the morning and afternoon tours. He asked
if there were any questions-there were none.




Sheriff Gerald Antinoro:

1.

Talked on the several complaints he received on the RTO run (Reno Tahoe Odyssey) and
the traffic control that happened over the weekend. He explained that it was on a State
highway and the NHP were supposed to be doing traffic control. He will be in contact
with the state folks regarding this for next year. He and Pat will discuss and continue to
discuss it with the event planner for next year and make things a little bit better.

He said he ran the torch for Special Olympics though town from one end to the other. It
was a great weekend event with the Special Olympics Opening Ceremonies Friday night
and the games on Saturday.

Administrative Officer Austin Osborne:

i

Spoke on the Truckee River Flood Management Authority meeting on May 16, 2013 out
at Lockwood. He thanked everyone that attended he said they learned a lot. Gentleman
brought up an idea during the meeting of possibly bypassing the neighborhood, having
the river in flood stages go on the backside of Rainbow Bend and Lockwood. Engineering
wise it may be challenging and may not be possible and a it wasn’t a half bad idea. So he
went to Reno and talked to the Flood Project people in Reno and they said it may be
possible but there are some challenges of running the river behind the neighborhood they
would have to create reservoirs and pressurized flumes and it may not be fees able, but
maybe an idea of running a box culvert or something like that underneath Ave de la
Couleurs on the west side and Ave de la Couleurs on the east side something similar on
that device would essentially take a portion of the flooding river and allow that river to
expand and also take a portion of Long Valley Creek during flooding stages. If that could
be engineered and created it's possible a way to mitigate flooding in that area and have
zero impact on that neighborhood and the road could be put right back on top of the
culverts. There are some engineering challenges and cost analyst that may be a high.
They have invited him to their engineering meeting in about a month and all their
engineers are going to get together and talk about various projects from Pyramid Lake to
Verdi and they have agreed to put this item on that meeting.

Diane Stewart has been with the county 23 years and is retiring at the end of July so he
invited everyone to a farewell BBQ on July 25th 11:30 to 1:00 there will be an E-vite sent
out. If there are any questions you may contact him. She has been a dedicated and
devoted employee.

He has posted a position for a Planner in Storey County, every other county in the State
of Nevada; it's posted from here to Utah and on the Planning Association website to look
for someone that would be a reliable planner for Storey County. He described the job
description.

Pat Whitten read written Staff Report for Fire Chief Gary Hames via e-mail:

1.
2.

Ambulance Subscription is open through June 30t

Seasonal staff have completed the remaining fuel reduction on D Street where the crews
stopped; 90% completion of the fire break running from the tank above Greg Hess
seniors residence all the way back to the south ending at the pit; clearance of the fire




10.

11.

road where the community television equipment is located; and, the Long Valley road
improvements for fire response have been completed.

Seasonal staff is now in their respective stations. They will be working on home fire
safety assessments, residential fuel clearance projects and reinforcing the fire breaks in
Mark Twain which totals around 5 miles in length and two blades wide.

Captain Yohey did an outstanding job of coordination of the Every 15 Minutes Program.
Almost every single department in the county participated and we wish to thank them.
This program will have a long lasting impact on our youth and will hopefully provide
the tools necessary to make good decisions relating to drugs and alcohol consumption.
Servpro will be providing information on their boarding up services, water damage
recovery program, building pre-plans and post fire response team abilities on June 13,
2013 at the FD training room.

Pump testing was completed this weekend. Our existing pumps on the structure engines
are aging. The oldest engine is now 36 years old and the newest structure engine is 17
years old. One engine that is 22 years old is out service and waiting for parts to be
manufactured since they no longer make them. Fortunately, Central Lyon County has
given us a “loaner” engine until that one can be repaired. We anticipate this and did ask
permission to begin sending out replacement engine specification for obtaining costs.
When this is done we will be bringing a plan forward for replacement to you for
discussion purposes.

Last week we completed a dozer boss trainee course for all the seasonal firefighters.

All annual business inspections have been completed for 2013. This project has been
going on since last October and finished on June 15,

Alicia has successfully completed our Medicare application and received approval. This
has been an ongoing issue since last September. Needless to say, it is very meticulous
and took a lot of time to complete. With that said, we are finally receiving payments
from them dated back to September.

There will be a county wide personnel participating in a sand table exercises this
Wednesday, Thursday and Saturday. Everyone is invited to attend and you can register
through our office at 847-0954.

The FEMA health and safety grant has been awarded for smoke detectors and batteries.
We are in the process of ordering the first round of equipment this week. This will fit
perfectly with our home safety survey being conducted.

Sorry for missing the meeting today, but we are quite busy trying to keep up on projects this time
of year.

Pat Whitten read Community Services Director Deny Dotson Staff Report:

Benjamin Moore Paint Company contacted us several weeks back and said Virginia City has been
chosen to be in one of these internet votes, Facebook contest similar to the ones we’ve seen in our
schools.

Mr. Whitten read parts of a press release that we received:

Benjamin Moore, North America’s most respected paint manufacturer and color authority,
announced today its biggest initiative ever to revitalize communities across North America
through the launch of “Main Street Matters” Benjamin Moore will not only provide the paint and
supplies needed for facades, porches, railings, shutters and other exterior building trims, but its

7




color experts will consult on the best choices to enhance the architectural style, regional
influences and historic references in each community. Skilled professional painters, many of
them members of the Painting and Decorating Contractors of America, will be hired, putting
another segment of local business to work along with the local Benjamin Moore retailer who will
be mixing the paints that are used. Voting begins at 12:00 a.m. EST on May 16, 2013 and will end
at 11:59 p.m. EST on June 30, 2013.

Mr. Whitten went on to say that in Nevada, we are only up against Carson City. There are cities
all over the states of Arizona, California, New Mexico and Montana. Please consider going to the
Website at www.paintwhatmatters.com and cast your vote.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

As the Sheriff mentioned we have already been in contact with Eric the director of the RTO,
every good deed doesn’t go unpunished, the Highlands people feel like they are being punished.
They tried to get the runners off the grade and sent them down Toll Road which created traffic
problem; Eric has been very responsive and will be meeting with us and others to make it better
for next year.

Mr. Whitten read a statement for the record and provided a copy of the map to the Clerk:

County Officials have recently held several meetings with executives from Comstock Mining,
Inc. to remedy long standing title concerns on 6 parcels in Gold Hill area. These issues date back
as far as the 1940’s when the Storey County Treasurer took “possession” of these properties for
delinquent taxes. As we have experienced before, it is unclear if statutory procedures were
followed based on the limited documentation available. Past errors involving lack of proper
noticing to owners have proven costly to the County in amounts in excess of three hundred
thousand dollars, not including litigation expenses.

We understand the most efficient and legally sound way to rectify these issues in thru “Quiet
Title” action in District Court. While Storey County will be named in this action, it is in no way
adversarial as it is the best way to correct any deficiencies. We will continue to work with
Comstock Mining to minimize any risk exposure and maximize our potential revenues. If you
have any questions please come see me or Bill and we will be happy to give you any details.

District Attorney Bill Maddox:

Tim Treffinger is here today and this will be his last meeting working in the DA Office, he'll be
leaving sometime this month when his 1039 hours run out. He still is looking for a job. He
thanked Tim for his service to the DA’s Office and to Storey County.

In Storey County when we have to remove children from their homes for abuse or neglect. When
we remove them we place them in foster homes. We don’t have any foster parents in Storey
County. So not only are we taking the kids out of their homes we have to send them to Reno or
Carson City as a result, we have to take them out of their schools to. So they are moved from
their parents and their friends because we don’t have any foster homes. He asked both papers to
put something in there about becoming foster parents in this County. If anyone is interested




please contact him or Department of Family and Children Services if you would like to apply to
become a foster parent. Laurie Nickels is a good contact.

10. DISCUSSION (No Action): Update from Maurice Washington of Northern Nevada

11.

Development Authority- Maurice Washington did not show up today.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Acceptance of renewal proposal from Nevada Public
Agency Insurance pool (POOL) and approval for payment from fiscal year 2013-2014 funds.

Carol Ingalls from Ingalls and Associates is our insurance agent for Property and Liability
Program that Storey County participates in. She introduces Wayne Carlson as Executive Director
POOL/PACT who has been established and worked with Storey County. She passed a summary
of the program with a premium rate break down. Currently, the county has a $5000 deductible;
and just to see what kind of savings they could get they did a quote with a $2000 deductible. The
premium this year has gone down 6% from last year; the $5000 deductible has worked out very
well and has cut down on the claims activity tremendously and worked towards our advantage.

Wayne said looking at the claims history from the past 4 of the 5 years have been dramatically
lower in the 5% year, so that improvement in trend has helped a lot in the renewal pricing,
exposures have gone up a little bit, payroll and property values have went up, but it was offset
from the improvement in the experience at the $5000 deductible.

Ms. Ingalls explained about the other brochure she passed out regarding Cyber Liability
Insurance that is now available to all the POOL members at no additional cost. In the past they
haven’t had Cyber Liability and now they do.

Mr. Whitten said he has either been involved with the POOL either as an alternative rep or the
counties rep for 15 years now and it just keeps getting better and better. Wayne is the most gifted
person he can imagine when it comes to insurance and balancing costs. He said this has saved us
$20,000 to go with the $5000 deductible. He thanked Wayne and Carol for their organization.

Motion: Approval of renewal proposal from Nevada Public Agency Pool and approval of
payment from fiscal year 2013-2014 funds, Action: Approve Moved by Vice-Chairman McBride

Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution 13-375, recognizing the week of

June 9, 2013 through June 15, 2013 as Senior Awareness Week.

Sheriff Antinoro explained last they kicked off Senior Awareness week as recognizing the Senior’s
for their contributions that they do for our communities and nationwide we would like to do it
again this year. There is a celebration planned in the park for June 9t, Assemblyman Wheeler will
be here to give speeches and a few things planned throughout the week with our community
partners. So they would like to formalize it with by asking the Commissioner’s to issue a
resolution in recognizing our seniors.




Sheriff Antinoro read Resolution 13-375 for the record

Commissioner Gilman said Wild Horse is bringing up their wonderful chefs, so they will be
having a full course meal for the event on Sunday. He said it was free food. He is delighted to be
support for this.

Motion: Approval of Resolution 13-375, recognizing the week of June 9, 2013 through June 15,
2013 as Senior Awareness Week Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner Gilman Seconded
by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING
13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: First reading of Ordinance 13-248, an ordinance amending
Storey County Code Chapter 15.20 updating provisions, providing for new definitions, requiring
maintenance in watercourses, and providing for other properly related matters.

Robert Morris is here to introduce Ordinance 13-248 he read the title of the ordinance, Shannon
Gardner asked him to review some changes he had made. He looked at the code and there were
some further changes he suggested to be made, that has been done. There are a couple of
interesting issues to be raised at the next meeting for public hearing, but at this point he just
asked that they just introduce it today.

Vice-Chairman McBride asked if this is just housekeeping measure.

Mr. Morris confirmed that this is just housekeeping to keep it up with State and Federal laws. He
has had the State review it and they are on board with it. He will point

Commissioner Gilman said TRI has reviewed it and said they are in agreement with it.

Motion: Approve First Reading of Ordinance 13-248, Action: Approve Moved by Commissioner
Gilman Seconded by Vice-Chairman McBride

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)

14. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

Angel Engineering - Contractor/1575 Bethal Court, Reno

Nevada Distribution Services, LLC - General/625 Waltham Way #103/104, TRI
Schwabe North America, Inc. - General/2777 USA Pkwy #106

Montane Building Group - Contractor/5310 Kietzke Lane, Reno

Rhyno Built Welding- General/1293 Chichester Drive, Gardnerville

Mars Petcare US - General/725 Waltham Way

Dan Cin Crystals Mining., LLC - General/65 North C Street, Virginia City
Virginia City Kettle Corn Depot - General/188 South C Street, Virginia City
Hot Pot, LLC - General/420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 TRI

R NN

10




j.  American Arms Delta - General /224 East Sydney Drive, Suite B, TRI
k. Battle Born Munitions, Inc. - General/ 625 Waltham Way, TRI

Austin Osborne said Community Development recommends that seconds readings for Business
Licenses that we continue items B,C,F,H,I,] and K

Motion: To continue second reading for Items B, C, F, H, I, ] and K Action: Approve Moved by
Vice-Chairman McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
Austin Osborne said Community Development recommends to approve Items A, D, Eand G

Motion: Approval of Items A, D, E and G Action: Approve Moved by Vice- Chairman
McBride Seconded by Commissioner Gilman

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote (summary: Yes=3)
BOARD COMMENT
Commissioner Gilman pointed out the TRI Business that was approved today.
ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the call of the Chair at 2:54 p.m.

Respectfylly submitted,

By WM@@OW—'

Dore Nevin, Depﬁty Clerk-Treasurer

11




CLAIMS



ATYNINITHEEE

14

8

sbeg

L

9

S

4

T

HTUNSYIUL

rednoas TrToxied

VHATTOALINOD

HEINOISSIWWOD YIANCISSINWWOD NYWAIVHD

{8IBUOTESTUWWOD JO paeog Ajunop Asxo3s au3z Aq pssoaddy
S9°09L'ELE :pasangsTa
T16°598‘2T 11030Mpag O3 I3ITUBRIL IASEN
26 SER’'E 19TTd dog ITQ uo peaxxsjsues] suotjonpag ssfoTduy
S8'LBZ €ETT i3rsodasg j3osx1g sakordug
16°92Z'9 isxoayD eakoTdux
ZLT0%L 9L tS309YD I03oNpad
$€°%02 1S :8d14d 103 I9ISURIL ISSf

Junowy aakeg # Pag

/4 duw

€1/91/90 :93eQ pus-poTaad

a838T6ay oo
WALSAS TIOYAVd AINNOD AFUOLS

€1/12/90

19320 yooUD

8T:60:%T €T/6
Yot

Tejor

Te30L
Te301
Te30L
Te30g
Te30L

T®30L

# aa
g /¥osyD

Iernbsy :adAl T10xARg

/90
50344



T

00°0%% ‘T

8€°LE

9L LIS‘L

99°LT

LY TLT

00°550°81

TYLOL
MOHHO

abeg

0z szl
¥ OLY
9e° 2t
62°'1CtT
6£°¥%82
00°0¢

9€ TLT
¥9°90T1
0S° %S¢t
¥L'269'T
0T 60T
S6°TS

83 LE
ZT°S9
00°000°S
00°0%%'T
69°81
69°'8T
80°L¥%9
85 ZLL
0089
00° 0S¥
00°scze
62°98¢
62°98¢
62 98¢
62°98¢
62°98¢
62°98¢
62 98¢
62" 98¢
vs'eze
vSrece
vsrece
AR XA
AR XA

A IR A4
¥s gzt
99 LT
68°8¢

8% 9%

I8 €%
89°'8
89°8
SZ°LT
89°8
00°000°0T
00°SS€’T
00°00L'9
LNOOWY

¥82ZS9
¥82S59
¥82S9
¥8CS9
982Ss9
98259
98259
28259
88299
91259
vEZSo
7€2s9
88259
8BZSY9
88259

a¥Zss

vE£ES9
veess

99¢2s9
99259
99259
992s9
99299
99259
99259
99259
99259
99259
99259
99253
99¢2s9
99¢S9
99¢s9
99259
292s9
992Zs9
99259
99259

cTess

0€€s9
0£ES9
0EES9
L8TS9
L8TS9
LBTSS
LBZSS

20€s9

20ES9
20€ES9

#SNVIL

€T/%1/9
ET/¥1/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/¥%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
£ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/PT/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/¥T/9
€T/%T/9

€T/%1/9

ET/¥T/9
£€T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/¥1/9
€T/%1/9%
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€1/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/¥1/9
ET/%1/9
£T/91/9
£T/¥T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/¥T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9

ET/%T/9

€ET/%T/9
ET/%T1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€ET/%T1/9
€T/%1/9

ET/%T/9

€1/%1/9
€ET/¥1/9

dLYa

€T/%1/9

dWOD TIO ¥ FDI TYISYRD
NOIDS WIOAOL ONZY
LINVINYLSTT HOVTIYd

D08 -TINIWIL-NOISIDHAL
YALNID NDIS INVISNI
LOVINOD INVISNOD

WOD " LATAOHS

SQUYMY 24

SLIM HIVAEM 1739 2L-9/%L-4
IYAYISNOD TUNIL PEOFPTOTECE
YES SIL¥ND-FONVHDILHDITI
ODNVAD OL ONITIVW

NLSOD JYHAVIAY NIW ST AdIAT
LAADVL WIOAINN NIAIN
41003 NOILDNAHEM TENA

€102 'S ENANL-E£Z AWK

gI43d
91430

HO'TaM
A¥IND
OQEAAZY
OQIALZY
SHZANAN
54aM0d
SHAANY
NES50a
YEHOLATA
ZI¥HLND
QTIHOSHLOY
ZIATYA
NYHYIW
JIATOHNANG
NEEY
dTIIYS
YEINFEA
AYINMOTO
ANOONVII
INAVD

AYANAYT HO
AAANAYT dOHS
A¥ANNYT dOHS

AYANOVYT ¥L LS
A¥ANQYT 2L IS
A4ANANT TL LS
A¥ANOYT PL IS

EDNVHNE INIWAVd HIISHIM

SLY0ddNS ATHINOW
SINHNIONVHNE TYNOS¥EA

NOILAI¥DSTA dIIOANI

YALSIDIAY MADTHD
ALNQQD ATAOLS

voLZH YOIYAWY A0 MANVd

a0s AONYN ‘Jaiavg

OTT II ALITIEOW I3IY

SSENTTIEM NV HLITIVHH J¥VY

d71 ENVYd0dd SYHIVINY

ONI 00S8TY

ONI SWILSAS VYIVd QEINVAQY
YOANHIA

€T/€1/90
STETad

T99SL

099SL

659SL

8S9SL

LSSSL

9595¢L

SS9SL

YITENON
MDHEHO

s3®eq uny
ON 3jaxodsy



4

00°002'9
00°00T
00°€Le
v1°9L
00°0ST
00°08T
6V TPS’E

Zy 2IT’LI

TYLOL
ADEHD

sbeg

00°L%T
00°002‘9
00°00T
00" €LY9
¥T 9L
00°0ST
007081
67" 1I¥S‘¢E

0S°'T
00°01
9978871
S6°€T
9L’ LEE
09°LTT
9T €Le
¥9 eSSy
00°L0T
g9g' 02
90°LT
S8°69T
00°58S
L%°0¢
0066
€9°62T1
00°0ST
86°12
00" LET
08°¢€T
90°STT
00°SLT
¥6°CI1T
00°9%2
66°6T
00°sLZ
PLTSOT
SS°80T
L6°S¢E
Zv°0s
€6°169
0L"9€ES
8L 68
0E %9
00'0T¥
00°'9%2
¥8°9¢2¢
95°68S
v0°€6€
¥ e9%

LNOOWY

0LZSS
59259
82259
£€ES9
89259
0%2s9
Zvzss
LBESY

%9299
%9259
882589
VETSS
SBESY
SBESY
SBESY
88259
88259
88259
88259
88259
882599
88CS9
882S9
88259
88259
88299
88259
BBZS9
88259
88259
88259
S8¢S9
S82S9
S82S9
SBZS9
88259
veECTS9
¥€CS9
062S9
88259
88259
88259
¥8259
78259
v82S9
¥82S99
¥82s9
¥82S9

#SNVIL

ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9

€T/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/2
€T/%T/9
£T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
ET/¥1/9
ET/%T/9
€ET/%T/9
ET/PT/9
ET/%1/9
E€ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€ET/9T/9
€T/¥%T/9
£T/%T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/¥%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9

aLva

€ET/¥1/9

# 0/d

qASINESTA LNIAWHSINIYDO
LIYD FE0 TYOIVOLSIH

€102 ‘T ENAL dEAYESTA

qISINESIA LNIWHSINIYD
LNINNIVILEELNG

€102 ‘'S INNL-€Z AV
T8865-92# 1sSnD

LS0D LIoaEd

dvos

TOYINOD dIIM PL LS

€1/%/S TITEAIYWZYH FIII0D
LIN ONI¥AS JIV-0LDE TAIL
ONIHSNE -¥ID INS

MOTd HI

dIN0E NOILONAHTY Tdnd

THNA ONIOVLS AVW OJSO
1189 O/Y¥ TLI-F

TYIYEIVH FSUN0D FAIVA 1TAD
SYIVAET TLI-Z

H9d YANIWYXE Q1D

TYEN TEAVIL ONIDYLS IS0
1IN FIIJ SONINGS

TENA ONIDVLS DS0

TINI F¥IL SONIUAS

TYHN TIAVIL ONIDYLIS IS0
T304 ONIDYLS DSO

ana FOYLSOd aOFE TIVKW
STINd 1ENIEVYD

TL 1S TOUINOD dIEM

SAYW ¥Od SYAANIE TVLIW
ONIINI¥A ONZY

SWALSAS FEOAY

0IdNY ANAOSYWY.LS

WOD * ODTSAYIASIA

INIVW dINDA zL-€

SI¥HAD IYWZYH d0d STITIANS
LHIN HYAONOLEYL6EPXE-TANI
VI SIONVIS YIS YOI
FONYNIINIVW LIOdSNVIL
ANIT IEWAIIL

FIYNOS FENL

SdO0TYIYHILOE

DNILNI¥d ONEY

WOD " INI¥4LOD

9°'T86$=¢ X I1dS SONWINDSA
9'Z86$=C X 17dS SHAWINDSA
INYD A¥IS WWOD LOdIA IWOH

NOILATIJDSAA IDIOANI

YALSIOFY ADEHD
ALNAOOD XFTAOLS

ONI WIVTY OT13¥vdiNg
NOOTI¥S ao0TId 40 LIMOoNd
HNVYIQ ‘NIMOHE

DLYW TVIDIYIAWWOD YIAVI¥IL
OTTd MY LLANNIEG

XMYEHS ‘ZHLINIE

HYJOHEd ‘YIANEH

(XL) VOI¥EIWY 40 MNVE

YOaANJIA

€1/€T/90

699SL

899SL

L99SL

999sL

S99sL

v99sL

£9954

Z299SsL

YIINAN
ADIHD
s3eqg uny

STETAd :oN 3xoday



€

00°2IE’S

00°02T

SL 80¢

L9°9T%'S

00°19¢2

L0'L66'02
vS2oL

09°€55°2

00°sce
00°L2s
L9°02T
09°IST'E

T9°89L'6

65°8%

29°22L'T

98°905°2

00 LTV

00°00T
S0°T9
00°L¥%T
IYLOL
ADEHD

abeag

9L TSL'EY

00°2ET’S
00°08

00°02T
SLT19
00"%0T
00°€%T

L9 9T%’S
00°SL
000§

00 9€T

L0 L66'0T
¥ST2oL

0v-zotT'e
02" TSV

00'szz
00" LZsS
L9"0CT
09°1IST’E

¥s*9es’'e
80"zET'L

05°9%
60°2

0€°%€9
SB'0%PT
9¥ ' LY6
00-oLz’'z
SST6ST
6L V2T
-6v°9¢
20Tt
-T0°2¢

00-2Z¢
00°58¢€

00°00T

S0°19

LNOOKWY

£E€TS9

08299
08259

£92S9
SLZTSO
SLZSO
26259
7LESY
96259
96259
96259
SZESY
S6Z59

v62S9
¥6259

LTZS9
69259
T€€S59
9CESS

SEESY
SEESY9

69259
9LE2S9

¥8€S99
L92Zs9
L9259

16259
16259
16259
16259
16259
16259

6%2S9
24k

62259

S0%S9

#SNVIL

€T/¥1/9

€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9

€T/%T/9
ET/%1/9
€1/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€1/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9
E€ET/%1/9
€1/%1/9
ET/%1/9

ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9

ET/¥T/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%1/9

£L/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9

€T/%1/9
£€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9

ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€ET/%T/9

€ET/%T/9

JLYA

€I/%1/9

INVID T00d 9€dD 8T1/4d/TT

SAS FNOHd HSNOH IdN0D
YIVdEE YEqI0IEA

€102 ‘S ENNL-£2 AYN
NOILIQE Tt A¥NW

NOILICE T€ AVW

ddd OAS INYID
SHILIAILOY HINOX 130ddNS
TOYINOD LSEL SL IS
TOYINOD ISE4 ZL 1S
TOUINOD LS3d TL IS
JIYYHS AINNOD I¥UL

dONYL/EEATIVT

NOILVILSIDAE NYWAYHD
€T/0€/9- €T/€/9

1A04aNs IOVALNOD

SONH SSFH J0 LJdIYOSNVIL

ISION O8¥AL -SLY¥ FIIA
ANYTIOOD NI TINd-€¥ F¥Id

AALYM/NEMNES
€102-62/5-62/%

dSUNESTA INIWHSINIVYD
QISINESTA LNIWHSINIYD
qasINGSIA ILNIWHSINAYD

DNILSEL dWNd TYNNNY
YIYdTL FATVA

LHDIT ddy¥ TLI-d
aNQITT

LIHOIEAA

aNnagd

EI0Z 'S ENNL-€£Z AVYH

£T0Z 'LZ-PZ AYW QEAMESEA

NOILJTI¥OSHEA FDIOANI

YALSIDAA ADIHD
ALNNOD ATAOLS

D17 NOILLONYLSNOD SNOOD

SNOIL¥DINNWWOD AYMNOD

01T TIIW dT0D MDOLSWOD

(0A) FTDINO¥HD MDO0ISWOD

ONI LSFHO ALINOWWOD

TOYLNOD LSId MIVID
YIINSYEAL NOSHUYD JI0 ALID

YIdHEd F¥Id NOS¥YYD 40 RLID

D LIFFOd ‘YTTANVHD
h{oX te)

ONI ¥OO0dLNO S€d
ONI FTTISYD

SYILIO4HTE TOLIGWD

ONI Q904 TV.LIAYD

NINIAQIAWI TTAINED NOANYD

TYNOISSTIOEd ® SSANISNE

ONI 3¥Id S.NOI¥Ng

SIMAT LLODS ‘TIIINNH
LI3E0y ‘¥und

HIOY ‘NITIDING
JOaNdA

€T/€T/90
STETEd

689SL

8895L

L89SL

9895L

589SL

v89SL
£€895L

289SL

T895L
089SL
6L9SL
8LOSL

LL9SL

9L9SL

SLI9SL

PLOSL

€L9SL

TLISL
TL9SL
oL9SL
JAEWON
MDEHO

23®eQ uny
ON 31oday



4

yL'1Z9'T
58°60T

05082

T6°2%6

o€ L6L
20°'86¢

9T " v%¢E

00°008°T
LO'TY

I6°LTZ'8

LLreLe

2€°088

Ls'21
€V 0¥0°6
2996

£€9°99

00°00T
00°008
00°2eT
0L €S8
9L TSL €Y
TY.LOL
ADHHD

abeg

vL'T29'C
S8°60T
00°8T
00°2s2
0S°0T
€0°58L
00°S%
OL"SY
0L"S%
8¥"1¢C
o€ L6l
20" 86¢€

91" %0€
00°0%

00°008°T
LO'TY

€9 6S5'¢
€5°68€'T
L8°280°T
80'98T'Z

T SYT
§S°LTT

vs°zs
09°50L
S6°T¢E
-LL 60T
LS 21

€7 0706
29° 96

00" €€
£€9°1¢

00°00T
007008
0072¢€2

0L €S8

LNOOWY

£LESY
%ES9
¥¥Zs9
424°E]
1424 °F
£€0€£99
£0ES9
£0ESS
£E0ES9
£0ese
v0es9
9TES9

6L2S3
6L2S9

8LZS9
0ves9
6€£ES9
6EES9
6€ES9
6£ESY

00€S9
68ES9

B8EESY9
8EES9
8EESY
8€ESY
66259
6€ZS9
85259

9€E€SS
9EESY

T€2S9
LZTSO
9%2s9

v09%S9

#SNYIL

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€1/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
£T/%1/9
€T/¥1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/¥T/9
ET/%T/9

€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9

ET/%T/9
£T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9

€ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%T1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/%

ET/?%1/9
ET/71/9
€T/%1/9

ET/%T/9

aiva

€ET/%1/9

ATNE LIYS a¥od

IAEdW ‘T0S ENIJ’W¥d

€102 'S ANAL-€Z AVH
SAITddNS SWA
SHITddNS SWA
SEITddNS SWI
SEITAdNS SWHE
SHITddNS SWI

LWAd SNI JDIIOVAdTYH
SLVH H4Id4 SNHIATIHD

LINEY N¥Ed aNOd
SHILITILN

SNOILVDIAILON ADNIDIINI

THSHEIQ »® AVATINN-MADS
TASHIQ ¥ AYEINA-GMAT
TISTIA 3 AVITNA-AMAT
TISIIA ¥ AYATINN-MIDS

JONAJQISEY ZL IS
HONYY I¥3d 008

LIASYD

JADHHO LINHTIS HHEO0TO

dnoo> ‘dIN TI1S ATYD § IS
LI TIND SYD LYN ILIAEYD
IOYLSOd

NDISEd YIIYMILSYM HOVYSA
ALND WWOD qOOMMOOT

SYITANIALAS S LS
SYATANIALS S IS

€T0Z'STRPT ANAL W¥A MOMO4
Jq00D ITIHD TLNY IT DNN¥d
€102 ‘S ENNL-€T AWKW

SNOISSEDNOD T00d

NOILAI¥DSHA IDIOANI

YIALSIOFY ADEHD
ALNAOD AHIOLS

OT1 ddr
ONI ANVAKWOD I7I¥S MONH

IDTA¥ES LIAEYD I0d3A IWOH

OHOS (JYV¥M HLINOZ DIAOLSIH

NIHHOS XA¥NEH
O ENAYM ‘MDIMQ¥YH

NYOIYIWY HLYON IVIID

OTT ¥AMOL IVdOTID
LDENNOD TVEOTD

Ag9vdE 'X0d

OTT XOYANT SYFATA

dT SYOTTHIEHS

ONI SESIYJYEINT NOSNHUHA
d¥0D SSHNUAXE TYIEaEJI
ONIYIIANIONT ISEM YIVJ

0D 50¥g YEWHVA

SIDNA0Ad NOILVOINYVI ONIME
g OOWIY ‘OZUVWIA

ONI NOOTYS ¥i1Tad

¥ OIAYLDO 'YISTAD
SNOILNTOS SNH DESH ODLS0D
HOANIA

€T/€T/90
STETgd

0TLSL
60LSL

80L9L

LOLSL

90LSL
SOLSL

vOLSL

€0LSL
coLsL

TOLSL

0oLSL

669SL

8695L
L69SL
969SL

SE9GL

v69SL
£69SL
269SL
T69SL
06954
YAHWAN
ADHHD

a3eq uny
ON 2Jxodsy



S

91" 2L

00 SLY

09°S€0"1

217 0se

9T1°9%8

00°0CT

00'0s5‘2

T1'2s8’'v

66 TET
00°00S‘9

00°0%8"9

€T TCT

00°L90°T

00°58T
[4-1%
PET6LT
IYLOL
JADEHD

sbeg

2T 08¢
vZ el
8% %S
v0°L8
SB° %S
¢y 911
€T 08%
00'0¢
00°0€
00°0¢
00°0¢
00°0ss‘e

[AREA-1
00°00S'T

66°TET
00°005‘9

00°009
00°0%Z'9

€T 12T

00°¢€c
00°%%0°T

00°S8T
Z¥ BEY

S6°VIT
6E° V9

LNOQOWY

SSES9
S6€59
S5¢S9
S6¢59
SS€£S9

£ETES9
6%£S9
£ETESO

LTS

8%Es9
€SES9
8¥ESS
80€S9
80€SS
80€S9

68259
82€S9
8ZESS
60€59
60€S9
28259
ZTES9
92zss
92259
922Ss9
922s9
9LESY

TETS9
[A XA ]

9%€S59
6TCS9

90€s9
90€599

SPes9

L%259
L9TS9

0%2s9
06€59

29€£89
vzes9

H#SNVUL

ET/¥%1/9
€T/v1/9
€1/%1/9
€ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9

€T/%T/9
ET/%T1/9
€T/%T/9
ET/¥T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
£T/%T/9
€ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9

€T/91/9
£T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

£T/%1/9
€1/%1/9

ET/V¥T1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€ET/¥1/9
€T/%T/9

ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9

JLYa

€T/%1/9

# 0/d

€Y9LLT TYHANI IICQYUD
TaNd TISHIA -TL ¥ J9Id
LNIWITE Fd07T

-TLY d¥Id

¥S6TST 9T# ANI Iddd

L¥04dNs IJ4IT MOANIM
dWYT ‘DNId-$LE FYII
SLIYd

GWIZY LNYYD dd¥ HTIEOW
SHOO¥d ‘NTINVYD -71004
SHEHSN¥E LNIVd

SYIHSYM ‘SIOAN 'SITIVIS
dI¥LS ¥IMO4

INIVW d4I1nd3

LNIVW ¥dZ0d

YIJYd "OIT HOVIU™YN

SEITA4AS EDIAA0
SHEITddAS ADIAJO

STAEYT ‘YIANIL ‘¥EIYE KJ0D
$AITI4NS FDIAA0 DSIK
Sd0I440 NIWAY

SEDIJA0 NIWAY

INEWISINGWIHE dXT ® ITIHD
JANIVIIY ANAL

SLNEOVIY
CSTET ANI

AATYA TIYE ILNYIAAH
ddd TUNOSVYES

ATHSYM ‘SMAYDS ‘@SNI ININW

€102 'S INAL-€Z AVN

€102 LT ENAL HIVA ¥EAITEA

OIdVyd PLTHE TYIA
SMO0H AVYDH/NIVHOD

NOILJII¥YDSHA HOIOANT

YALSIODIA ADIHD
ALNNOD AFIOLS

SL¥Vd OLAV ON

SIAYd AoNdL ¥~ OLOV YdYN

ONIHSITING FSOY INNOW

FIVMAYYH dSNOHANNOW

01T IDHYIA HOUYNOKW

NI SNOILNTIOS HOIALO OULIW

d LVAVOUYN ’VIYLIVYR

LIIYOUVH ' METHIMOT

OTT SILNIAZ 30T AIN0IT
ONI HAESOr 3ET

ONI SNOILONJO¥d SILINVT

SNOS ® SIIdND N 1T

LSEAMAINW TIVEWIN

I¥HD ¥ HJOTANHd ‘YATHOHIIN
ONI S3ATVS AEA

NOSNHOL ¥ qav¥Mad Iopane

JOANIA

€T/€T/90
STETEd

92ZLSL

SZTLSL

pZLSL

€ETLSL

2TLSL

T2LSL

ocLsL

6TLSL

8TLSL
LTLSL

9TLSL

STLSL

VILSL

ETLSL
TTLSL

TTLSL

JTEWAN
ADHHD

ajeq uny

ON 3axodsy



9

00°50T
00°99T
00°00€
05°CTL

90°9LL'8

0S"E¥P‘C

"TYLOL
MDHHD

abeg

00°S0OT
00°99T
00°00¢€
05°2TL

95'¥30'T
00°9S¥v'T
00°TT¥
00°98
00'09
00°T€0°€
05°21S
00°00T
00°s¢
00°0%

08-zee
%' 12
vs'e
22°80T
0E"6¢
6T 6%T
0%'T
96 €2
96 ' ¥1%
¥0°"Tet
66°8¢
LS'SY
£E°TPT
S¥°'S8
0T 67T
Lz 9
S¥°0ce
[ANEAN
TE'TT
9T°9
79€6T
05°0%
91°9%
QL' 9T
05°LE
ER-]
9E 0%T
10°89¢
91°9
v e
SL'%EC
-ST'9
-Z9°8%¢
-86°80T
-00°0¢
-15°'822

LNOOWY

TTESS
vSes9
99ES9
S5259

LOESS
96£59
96€S9
96€59
96€£S9
10959
T0%S9
0759
T0%59
10%S9

v1£99
S5¢£99
§5€59
SSES9
SS€S9
S5€99
SSESS
SSES9
S5€S9
§5€S9
S5€59
95E499
§S€S9
SSES9
SSES9
SSES9
S5¢€59
§5€59
S5€S9
SSES9
S5¢59
SSE59
SSES9
S5€499
§5¢59
SS€99
S5¢€59
SSESY
SSES9
95¢59
S6€£59
S9€S9
SS€59
SGES9
S5ES9
SS€59

HENVIL

£T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

ET/%T/9
ET/%T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%T/9
ET/¥T/9
ET/¥1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€I/%1/9
€T/%T/9
£T/¥1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T1/9
£T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€ET/%T/9
€ET/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€ET/%T/9
ET/%1/9
£T/%1/9

qLYa

€ET/%1/9

# 0/4

STYMINTY

LINIHd

LINYEd WHLSAS DILJHES HD
ONILNIAGITONIA

SEHd FDYOAIA

ag

234

A¥ALLVE 2L-€

DNI¥VEE OdWOD-SLY VUId
aoy MDOT ¥0Cd-%S0TZ Md
JAD0LS H¥IJA

AZT ‘1108 -Haldg

IASD 'IIA ¥ILTIA-NAL SIOL
TYNDIS NINL-PLT TITI
a¥nd md

WSY A¥FLIVYE-TLL HYIL
OLOY IAVYEE DSIA-€L¥ FIIA
LD UOINES

41D JOINES

avd INVEE DSId-€LY¥ FIIA
-dD0Ls

SSYW YOSNIS-SLY FUTA
YIAOWEYE OIAVA

-TLd FYIA

dLO dYOINHES

AIMY SEIYIS TE£-MAD0LS
OIMY SHIN¥ES TE-PLTI FUIL
WSY X¥ILLVE-SLY FYUIL
SEA0TD dOHS

OIMM SHI¥ES TE-SL¥ FIIL
ESOH ¥ELVIH-PLTE FIIA
A00Ls

MOIMM SEINES T¢ -€Ld FYId
SLY FAId

WSY A¥ALLIYE -TL¥ FJYIL
AIMM SHIYES I1€-t£Ld FIIA
d9NT MOTA T1INA

0L AD MDVTIE-SLd TUII
08¥8LZ CTYHANI LQUD
AYALIVE LIAFYD TL¥ FYIL
LIQEYD S068S OS

Ld¥d dOHS

dOHS LIIQEAD

NOIIAI¥DSHA ADIOANI

YALSIDIE MADHHD
ALNNOD AEYOLS

YIINZD TUYNOIDIEY TANY AEN
HITYAEH 40 AIQ ASN
HLIVEH 40 AIQ AEN
HLOYd INFWNOIIANT AIQ AEN

ALEAVS OITdNd IdEd AEN

JATIOLANOD AIN

FOANIA

ET/E€T/90
STETHd

TELSL
TELSL
ogLsL
6TLSL

82ZLSL

LTLSL

ATGNAN

NADFHO
®3eg uny
ON 3xoday



L

95°2¥%1T

00 9€T

00°'0%
SLTEST

00°6%0‘€

00°802
0L LST

69°¢€t

00°00T

92'92%'T

0s-68z‘e

00°LE
¥ 18T
00°SLT
00°09

00°00T

00°0L

00°0L

Ls*S2

ITYLOL
JOHHD

abeg

0s'ze

9G8°2%T

00°ZET
00" ¥

00 0%

SLTEST
00°%92
00°%92
00°28L
00°%92
00" %92
00" TLL
00022
00°02z
00°802
0L LSE

¥Z°6

S¥'¥cC
00°00T
85706
6%°2S
T8°0L6
LZ %1T
IT°861
00°8ST
-00°2%T
-0§°92L
00°LE
vPTI8T
00°9LT
00709

007 0s
00°0s

00°0L

00°s2
00°'S¥

LS'Sc

LNOOWY

w0

STESS
LEESY

%259
%2s9

vvese
9BESY
8S€£59
85€59
85¢99
85€£599
85¢S9
85¢S59
8S€S9
85E59
S6E59
€L2S9

29t2s9
29253

81259
LSESS
LSESS
LSESS
LSt99
LSES9
£6€£599
£6£59
€6ESS
88€£S9
2cEs9
0€ZS9
£82S9

28€59
0TESS

T0eS59

L6ES9
Z20%S9

¥9¢€s9

#ESNWIL

€ET/¥1/9
ET/¥T/9

€T/¥T/9
ET/%1/9

ET/%1/9
ET/¥T1/9
€ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/%T/9
€T/%1/9

ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9

€T/¥T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
ET/¥T/9
ET/%1/9
ET/¥T/9
£T/¥1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

ET/%1/9
ET/%1/9

€T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9

€T/%1/9

dLYa

€T/%1/9

dWY1S S539aav

SHITAdNS SWIE

€T0Z ‘S ENAL -£2 XYW
IYAH

HOVIdEY SHI0dd JOLINOKW
ANVS

ANYS

AYIAAITHC ONY dNYS
aANVYS

ANVYS

AYIAITHA ANV dNYS
aN¥s

SNDIS MYHJE HIIA
dD0IAA0 MYITID

SATEYT
SdTEYT S539aavY

€102 ‘TT AVH
SYEANOISSINWWOD
NOISSIWWOD ONINNYId
ADIA¥ES "WWOD
YITTIOALANOD
LNINGOTIAHT WWOD

aqooId 40 Ladond

JATYM INIM AYT WEW
JqaLDIATIOD SEAA

AOIA¥ES MIY¥d ADNOIWH
JANVEd "€ SEJVYL 3 ONIAYODHA

d34 TYLY0d ATHINOW
LNIVW TYLI0d

dIHSYEEWAN £T10¢C

0T0"SEY SuN

NOIL4ATYDOSHA TOTIOANI

YIALSIDFY ADHHD
ALNNOD AFUOLS

AVIONE 3 dWVLS ¥SO¥HANOA

ONI TOUINOD QISAHd

d OTIOHNY ‘INIYLEA
ONI NOILVNTIYAS TINNOSHAJ

ANYAWOD 3 SETMONN AHTAEJ

ONI ‘ONINDAVUL MOWIOIXO
IS ® SOIHAWY¥D JAIS HHL NO

OTT ‘10dHd ¥I¥d dIIS4d0

ONI LOddd dFDIAA0

DVAT 7004 ¥YdV AN NAFTHIJYON

ONI VINMOAITIYD 40 TILXEN

ONI NOILAHIVISIA ISHEM MIN
NI 0D dW¥LS ¥IEENY VAYAEN
ONI EDIAYES TVOHT VAVAEN

OTT SNHOL VAVAEN

HHL ¥0d NOISSIWWOD WAYAEN

(ONa) arl 20749 ¥AYAIN

Td AINNQD J0 DOSSY VAVAEN

YIINSYILL AIN

FOaANIA

€T/€T1/90
STETEd

TISLSL

0SLSL

6VLSL
8%LSL

LYLSL

9%LSL
S¥LSL

YYLSL

EVLSL

Z¥Lse

TvLSL

0PLSL
6€LSL
8ELSL
LELSL

9ELSL

SELSL

VELSL

€ELSL

JAENAN

ADHHO
¢ @3eqg uny
toN 3xoday



8

L6 EDE’Y

€E0°TE

66°08Y%

0012

0T 2¢ee

00°008'T

LL-ses’‘z

00°00%'2

S2°SS

00°000°T

€T 6LL'8

00°0ST

0s°ze
TYLOL
ADIHD

abeq

LL 09T
66°LS
T2 secL'y

9z’
LZ'1
¥8°¢C
L9 ¢
(430
80°9
992
¥ 21
SE'T
80"
00°T
£€T°T
vL
£2°02
82°¢
€T"
92°'1
LE'T
€0°
-80°0¢

66°08Y
0012

00°Se
0T L0C

00°000°T
00" 008
¥S'¥LY
€2 IST'T
00°008
00°009°T
SZ°SS
00°000°T
T6'669°T
ov- 162’2
0E° " T6¥
S8 VL

€T 9%6°1
€vrsLz’'e
00°SL
00°SL

LINOOWY

T6€S9
EPESS
EVESS

TS€S9
T5€59
T5¢S9
15€59
15eS9
TIS€S9
15€S9
15€S9
TISES9
TSES9
15€59
TSESS
15€59
TSESY
15€89
T5€SS
TS€S9
15€S9
15€5S9
T5€89

Zves9
15259

LTESS
LTESS

vLTSS
¥LTS9

65£59
6SESY

00%53
£8€59

8%Z59
L6259

26€S9
Z6€S9
26€£S9
T6ES9
26€59
26¢£99

18259
SZZS9

#SNVIL

€T/¥T/9
€T/%1/3
€T/%1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
£T/%T/9
ET/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%T/9
€T/%T/9
ET/%1/9

€ET/%1/9
€T/¥1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

£T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

ET/?1/9
€T/%1/%

€T/%1/9
€ET/%1/9

€T/¥1/9
£ET/%T/9

ET/¥1/9
£T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€ET/¥1/9
€T/%1/9
ET/¥1/9

€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9

cAin-{e}

€T/¥1/9

WSIT¥NOL DA
dop 2960-L%8
SNOILYDINNWWOD-ZT1¥9-252

LI

(oA) FY1d
¥INOISSIHWOD

¥a

HOLVASIA TYILNID
JOSSHASSY
INAWGOTIAZA ALINAWWOD
(DA) FYIL
QOOMMDOT/ENIA
LNYId STLYM
NIWAY /43 TTOLLIN0D
JATYIHS

ae

JITIIHS

S¥YOM DINEnd

(DA) F¥Id
IIAIODTA

MUATD

I¥L/98Id

aNndaEy /Lz/L

€10C 'S dNAL-€Z AYN

SHEITAINS SWI
SAITddNS SWHE

WTIDONd V¥IAIW TYIDOS
ONILINIYW TYIDOS

AN¥YS DNIDI-Hd
aN¥YS DNIDI-HJ

HYIL ANVIATIM FSIDYHIXI
ASIDYEXE FTIYL ANVS

€702 ‘S ANAPL-€£Z AWW
SL¥0dTY HONVIIAWOD YJEAN

SHYIL ¥-PLTE FUTSA
SEYIL S-ZLTE HIIA
dWNd XTTEE 2 dWnd MA
INIWNDITY-0L08 FYTI
SHEYIL ¥ -ELTH3 FYIL
SEYIL 9-TLd EYIL

WIYIY FdI4 ISNOH IdN0D
NOISSIWWOD WSIV¥NOL DA

NOILATYDSIA HDIOANI

JALSIDEA NDIHD
ALNQQD AEIOLS

W NIITHIVA ‘dETOHS

ONI SEDIAYUIS IVdOTID DES

dT NI SEOIAYUIS TYdO0TD DES
YEH JI¥¥EARII SAYYW LINIVS

ONI ¥ALNIDILIV SAYYW INIVS

ONI 0Dddny

ONI ¥dxd

OTT ILIOSNTIL MD0A ONTN

L HAESOr 'LA¥VHNIZI
W YIANYS ‘a¥odavyd

ONIVIINIONT NOSYIANY O A

0D ¥EHENY ¥ FYIL TTI0UNd

ONI SEDIAEd NOILDILO¥A
JOaNFA

€ET/€T/90
STeETHd

PILSL

€9LSL

29LSL
ToLSL

09LSL

6SLSL

8SLSL

LSLSL

9SLSL
SSLSL

YSLSL

€SLSL

csLsL

FIGHON

MADFHD
93eq uny
ON 3xodsy



(AR A4 92€59 ET/¥T/39

EL°8€0'T 99€£59 £T/%T/9
8v 6L 99€%9 €T/%T/9
TLT€0T 99£59 £T/¥T/9
8% 6L 99€59 ET/¥T/9
BY 6L 99€59 ET/vT/9
8¥ 6L 99€59 £ET/%T/9
Zv S0t 99€59 €T/%1/9
86 €TT 99€59 £€1/%T/9
8% 6L 9€£2S9 ET/%T/9
8v 6L 99€59 ET/%1/9
WILSAS JYEIVM 0D IS 8LLSL
85°T90°9T 00°'099 8€259 ET/%L/9 INZDOA/WY¥A HLY ENAL
05°S¥Y'T €059 E€T/%1/9 ao0d FLWWNI
05°906 €0%S9 ET/%T/9 aood FILVANI
EE'EE€B'OT SLESS ET/PT/9
ST LYL €059 ET/%T/9 ao0d ILVWNI
00°0LP'T £0%59 €T/%T/9 aood FLYWNI
(DA) §HINID ¥OINIS 0D 1S LLLSL
S¥P°188°1C 00°8 252S9 €T/%1/9 €I02 'S ENAL-ET AWK
St EL8 ‘1T 6TESY €T/¥%1/9 QIAIIDEY XYL ALIAIOUA
IDIVLSIA TOOHDIS 0D 1S 9LLSL
00°GLT 00°SLT 86259 ET/%T/9 YTANSYAAL GWITA
MYITO 0D IS SLLSL
¥8°HLY'T $8°%L9‘T S9€£59 €T/%1/9 130ddns 40
ONI SEJIA¥ES ALITILO €4S YLLSL
S§9°%82 S9°'¥8¢ 1259 €T/%T/9 SHITIANS HNINVITO
III £ DINIWOQ ‘EINOOTIVAS €LLSL
00'Z0oL 05 LLB P6€S9 €ET/%T/9 aoo1d 40 Imiond
-0S°SLT PEESO £ET/%1/9 qoo1g 40 IIEA0NE
SLI¥I4S ANV ANIM NITHIAOS ZLLSL
00°00§ 00°'00S 0zZs9 ET/%T/9
ONI ST00S ALAIDOS TLLSL
00°'0LT 00°0LT 444 ET/¥T/9 S08Z ANI
YEd OTT SAIVLSNANI MDITS oLLSL
00°S€T 00'SET 0S2TS9 £ET/%T/9 €102 'S EANAL-EZ AVNW
VEd TYNOILUN TIVLS JFATIS 69LSL
0L'2TIZ'€E 00°%€8'2C T9€59 £T/%1/9 TYNOILUNIAINI MJYOM Adod
0L 8LE 8TESY ET/%1/9 SWI0d dDd/SIIOTAANT
SHIYISNANI FIVIS ¥IATIS 89LSL
00°0ST 00°00T 19259 £T/%1/8% Lsad
00°0§ £9259 £T/%1/% QOOMMDOT /1S3d
DNI TONINOD IS3d Vi¥HIS LILSL
89°8LL'T 9% 0% 6LESY €T/%1/9 1d3d 94a7d LOL 9% 0%S
8°L09 LPESY €T/%1/9 aooMaID0T
$9°'98 LLZSY €T/%T/9 02 D€ SIHOIT IIIALS HO
00°TES LLTSS €T/%1/9 6T D€ SIHOIT LATALS
LL'PT £9€59 €T/%1/9 d¥Vd  a¥ HONVY I¥Ed 000T
0T" 19 LLTS9 ET/%T/9 SIHOIT I1IAULS SAAVAS
L8921 LLZSY €T/%1/9 15 D N S8T
0D YAMOd DIALOVd WAAAIS 99LGL
68°S0T'T L9 TLS 09€59 ET/%1/9 ATHD ‘OILVI¥AW ' JOTHD DTIVD
2z°289 09£99 €T/%T/9 JOTHD FINd VAIIIS
-00°8%T 09€59 €1/%1/9
ANVAKOD 'TYDIWIHD VIIAIS S9LSL
00°00S 00°00S 12259 ET/%1/% SO0EPES ANI
TYLOL INNOWY HSNVIL FILYA # 0/d NOILAT¥DSAA ADIOANT JYOANFEA YIEWON
MDIHO MOHEHD
€T/%T/9 YIALSIODIAA ADIHD €ET/€T/90 : @3eqQ uny
6 sbeq ALNAOD AZNOLS STETEd :ON 3xoday



00°00T €2259 €I/%T/9

LLOOS NIAEY ‘€WODTIM Z6LSL
Sz LSE ZE'SLT 0LESY ET/%T/9 dOLS/T ‘ATA TIVE ‘ATA
€6° 18T 0LESY ET/%T/9 8dId IQ 1L NOLXKL
0D A7ddNS VAYAIN N¥HISEM T6LSL
00°'02 00°02 TLESY ET/%1/9 WI04IT0D
97 TYINIWNOYIANS NYALSEM 06LSL
Z¥°98S'¥Y Z0'TBO'T LIESY ET/¥T/9 LOTONINEYE TI¥YM‘OS ¥IVAFA
0%°505'€ LIESY ET/¥T/9 WAZSOAW FEIA TTYM °ON
¥ QUYHOIN ‘ESNOHTIM 68LSL
00°00T'2 00°00T'2 69E£59 €T/%1/9 JILdES HO dWOd
¥E9d AS MNYLI DILAES SHALYM 88LSL
ZT Y9L'E 9z €L0'Z S€ZS59 €T/%1/9 GNEE MOENIVY STYEW TI¥dY
96°069'T 5€259 €1/%1/9 YIND ¥NS aNIE MOENIVY
AYES YOINIS ALNACD FTOHSYM LBLSL
00°€EL'T 00°999°'T 86€59 ET/%1/9 FFI
00° LS B6ESY ET/¥%1/9 SHEHONAT NOILITYOD DAT
SELYIDOSSY % AAATYM 98LSL
00°0TL 00°'0TL zLZS9 ET/%T/9 INZWIOTIAZA ® SIM
dSUYNOISIA S8LSL
00°205'T 0082 LSTS9 €T/%1/9 €102 'S INAL-€Z AVKW
00°9T%‘T L5TS9 €T/%1/9
00°8S LS2S9 ET/%1/9
ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDUIA P8LSL
00 ¥E9'E 00°0¢€6 952589 £T/91/9
00°'8% 95259 €T/%1/8 €102 'S INAL-€T AVKW
00'9T2 95259 €T/%1/8
00'0%% ‘T 95259 £T/%1/8
0D ¥¥ FIMOAMI 3 VINIODAUIA £BLSL
0E"¥LE S8'6L 05€59 £T/%1/9 os
S6" VT 18€S9 €ET/¥T/9 ¥ATOO0D YHLYM DATLE S6°vz$
06°6% 89€59 €T/%1/9 FSNOHIVYNOD ¥HLYM ONIMNIHA
08'56§ 89€59 €T/%1/9 NOIS ¥EQVHY ALM dITIILSIA
S6'FE 0Z€S9 €T/¥%T/9 UHLYM ¥L 1S
S6°6T 0ZES9 €T/%1/9 ¥AIYM TL IS
S6'EL 0ZESS £T/%1/9 UIIYM 2L LS
S6° 2T LLESS €T/%1/9
SAS YHAIYM SMOQVIW FEAONWL Z8LSL
00°9%6 00°TTT $S2S9 £T/%1/9
00°'0T 5259 €T/%1/9 €102 ‘S ANNL-€T AYNW
00°509 $STS9 ET/%1/9
00°022 $5259 ET/%T/9
SXOEMOD ANOLSEWOL ZHL T8LSL
08°'202 08°202 £6259 €T/%1/9 INTS ANV YddY¥ ’IWIVaY
IIIT % ONILIO4HN ANIHSNOS 08LSL
00 TET'T 00°1S €5259 ET/%T/9
00°ST €5259 ET/%T/9 €102 ‘S ENAL-€£Z AVW
00°590‘T €52S9 ET/%T/9
SHESIYA¥IINT A¥YId NAS 6LLSL
PLTZIL'E £9°G6S 99E£S9 €T/%T/9
LE"¥E 99€59 ET/%T/9
8% 6L 99€59 €T/%T/9
8% ¥6T 99€59 ET/%T/9
EL'T6 99€59 ET/%T/9
L6 ¥6¢€ 99€59 €T/%T/9
PHIET 99€59 €T/%1/9
TYLOL INNOWY #SNYAL aL¥a ¥ 0/4 NOILAIN¥DSHAQ ADIOANI JOANIA ATGNAN
ADFHD MDEHD
€1/%1/9 YWALSIDIE ADITHO €ET/ET/90 ¢ 33e@ UNY

0T 9beg AINNOD ATMOLS STETEd :ON a3xodsy



T

§9°8sg‘9ze

9s°¥vEL’T

v0°'¥%8
00°00T
TYLOL
ADIHD

abeg

IYLOL SMDAHD

0v°1cs
92 ¥6¢C
80°9LE
20 TEE
29°90%
8T S0L

v0°'¥8

LINOONWY

CEES9
ZEESY
2egss
CEESY
CEESY
ZEESS

cLESO

#SNWAL

€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%T/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%1/9
€T/%T/9

ET/¥1/9

aLva

ET/%1/9

QYVA ASYE Z HdAL TOADEY
g8V¥d 7 dJAL TDADHY
as¥yd ¢ 3axl TIDA0FY

dSYd ¢ dAdAL QATDADEY
3SVH 2 HdAL JITOXOIY
g8V¥E Z IJAL QETIDADOFTY

S3IT4dNs JJIV 1SYId

NOILAI¥DSAd HEDIOANI

JALSIDHAE ADFHD
ALNAQOD ATIOLS

ONI FLIYONOD dg
ONI TYOICQHEW JHZ
YOANIA

€T/€T/90 ¢
STETES

PeLSL
E6LSL

YIENNAN

JADEHD
93'Q uny
ON 3xoday



YINOISSIWWOD

€T/%T/9 HIVA NDHHD §9'888°9¢z¢ TYLOL S¥UDFHD

NOILVZIYOHLAV ANV MITATY A0 INIWIOIITMONADY



HOTEM
AIINd
OQEAIZY
OQIATZY

SYAMOH.

STUANY
Nasoa
YIHOLITI
IIYHLND
QTIHDHLOY
Zaarlva
NYHYW
YIATOMMANE
NYax
d1IIYS
JINTIA
AVINMOTO
ANOINIS
LNOVO
SHAZANIW

NOILATY¥DsEA

abeg

E6LEY
T6L6T
L8LEY
88LEY
85567
LSS6Y
9556V
1-1-1:34
ySSevy
£5S67%
(43134
15S6%
0SS6v
6%S67%
87567
LySe6d
9vSevr
SvSev
142134
6SS6%

#EDIOANI

€T/%1/9

2LYd

€6°8%s'9

E6°'8%5'9

TYLOL

ADEHD ADTHD

TYIOL SADEHD ABdAL

SSENTTEAM ANV HITYZH DAV

¥s-ece
62°98¢
00°szzT
00°'ve

62°'98¢
67°98¢
6Z°98¢
62° 98¢
6T° 98¢
6Z° 98¢
6Z2°98¢
6CT°98¢
vs°eTe
¥S°ET¢E
L&A XA
¥S ETE
¥S°Ee2¢e
¥S°ece
vs°egze
00'sce

INOONWY

JELSIOTY SNOFHD dIdAL

ALNNOD XFIOLS

€596
€596
€996
£596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596
€596

GWVN JOONEA #Q¥ODIH

S6LSL
€102
€102
€102
€102
ET0C
€102
€102
£T0C
€T0C
€T02
€102
€102
€10T
€702
€102
€102
€102
€102
€102
€702

AVER  ¥IAWAN
T¥OSId NOFTHD

€T/€T/90 ¢ a3eq uny
06£T18d !ON 3x0dsy



TREASURER REPORT



-z6°982°'69£'0¢

-T19°829'9¢€9
-SZ 09T €9€'T
95" €E¥9’8
-€1°66C 69T
-8¥°28S'60T'C
-zz°TLZ'9

00"
-06°0LS'LE
-£6°650°9T
-99°065°SC
-¥E°2HTLT
-L67S86°9L
-Z5°€28'€ST
-TE"S6E'E
-LT 10T ST
-00°€5%’8
-99°S€6 08T
-82 %97 ‘%0T
-€8°9T0'2T
-00°000°000°T
-9% " £€00€0 ‘T
-67 €60 FL8 T
-08°208°0S¢E
-T2 TTY9'SET
-65°06€°S6
-T¥ €22 FEL
-06°9€€E'%02Z
¥9°18Z°T
-00°ST
-¥S"BET'TIT'T
00"
-08°8£Z'6SS
-L976EL'VET S
007002
00°000°T
00°00T°T
0E " 6€¥

€8 €%Z'915°9
00"

00"

TL L¥BSLT'S
€L°066 ‘0€S

00"
66°LYT'S
9T ZTY¥T6ET’L

00" 00"
00" 00°
00" [e] el
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" oo
00" 00~
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00°
00" 00"
oo” oo’
00" 00"
00" 00°
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
60" 00~
00~ oo0*
00" 00"
(o] 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" oo”
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
oo 00"
00" 00"
[e]ely 00~
00° 00"
00" 00"
00" 00"
00" oo’
00" 00"
00" 00~
00~ 00°
00" 00°
00" oo”
00" 00"
00° 00~
00" 00"

HONVTYE ONIANI

T 2beg

LNO SYFASNTIL NI SIFTISNTIL

L6°959 S9°S6L'ELL 8T 0€T'TOT'T -€2°2%8°0%8
06" €E ¥S°65L9T 69" L6E'ES -TT HLT LL
05°268°TTT 00" 00°0%%°2S 00"
0Ss°LT6'8 91" TZ6'LE TV 9€8°€ -€9°5L9°¢L
-86°L58 ‘% 00" S6°0LE'T8 -S5° %98 °€CT
-05° 592 €82 00" 00" -08°20T

00" 00" 00" -00°0S2

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00°L -00°29%

00" 00" 00" -€%°LSE

00" 00" 00" -00°€€8

00° 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" €9°€%9'2T -S8°6T6 /0%

00" 00" 05°6S7'9% -s€°L0T'T

00" 00* £€6°8LI 16 -08°SS¥'E

00" 00" TG €S9 TLY -59°LI¥'8T

00" 00" 00" -00°0L

86°L58'% 0E"BEO'S 8€°800 0T -Z6°TET LT

00" 00* Z8 LIL'S 00"

00" 00° 8Z 8LT 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"
-1§72%9°1 T0°269'8 LE TTZ BT -88°§59'9¢€
-05°268°TTT 00" 00" -86°966'0Z

00" 00" 00" 00"

Sz 80E‘6T 00" 00" -€0'01I2'T

00" 00" 00" 00"

SL° 9T ‘2T YEELY'TT 00" 86T 92 -y T9% €

00" 00° 00" 00"

2T 66919 16°8T9‘€E2C 80°0ZS'T¥ -00"PEV/LYT

00" 00" 00" 00"
-6£°815°89 Y0 E6L €T zg TEBET -¥8"€92°9%

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" -¥9"LET

€L LOL'T®T SE° 667 EVT 0€° 9LV TLT -€5°099'T62

00° 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"
-007000°0TS‘T 00" 00" $Z°90L‘9%E

o6’ 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

0u” 00" 00" 60°€8L

E0'E€PE‘60S‘T  -S9°S6L'€LL  -8T0ET'ZOT’T  T8°929°Z6%

00’ 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 00"

oo* 00" 00" 00"

00° 00" 00" 00"

00" 00" 00" 28"

00" 00" 00" €2°SCL

SYTHONOA NANOL  STIOHAYd

-6%°L70°'S0% 1T

-£5°5%9'629
-SL 76V L2S T
-88°SSE’'¥E
-G5°LY6T2T
-8T°%TZ2'928°'T
-zz eeo'9

00"
-06°GTT LE
-05°869'%1
-99°LSL %T
-¥€°ZHT LT
-SL°60L'8%
-L9°GLT 86T
-%%"8TT 16
-%0"LEE'TLY
-00°€BE‘S
-6£°809°981
-0T"Z8T'TTT
-TT°S6T'2T
-00°000°000°T
-S%°8€9'8T0°T
-T0° %02 TPL'T
-08°2080S€
€% 6TL'EST
-65°06€°'G6
-9€°058°06L
-06°9€€E‘¥0T
-65°221'8LT
-00°ST
-L9'T86 '%ET T
00"
-9T"T00‘6SS
-z57z9L'66L'S
00" 002
0070002
00700T'T
0E"6€E¥

65 LES6LOL
00"

00"
zZ9°%50°SLT’9
ZL79%6 ‘F0V
00"
-06"¥26'T

00"

00"

€T L¥T’S
€0°LTS'BET L

SINEWISINESIA SIAIIDII

qaYmMaod "IVE

€10Z/50 J0I
JLITHS ONTIONVTIVE ATHLNOW
ONILNNODIY S«¥IANSYIIL
YTAOSYIAL ALNAOD AZHOLS

SaNNd TTY TYLOL

NOISSIWWOD WSIVNOL DA 0€C
LOALO¥E TIVE DA 0CT

aNnd a1 IIYL §.44T¥EHS 0T
SINYID TWIIAdI 902
ADVEAYd TAL 00T

aNNa JMIv¥d 06T

JEN I4L 68T

aNnd LIN0D FDIISAOL L8T
LNIAIDDVY INIDIANI S8T
13000 IDIVWISIA 08T

QIYOE NOIIVANDIY ¥ ¥IWVd SLT
AINIS OLT

aNOd ADOTONHOAL S°OT

I19Ed TOOHDS 09T

TOOHDS 0ST

LINOD DN¥A 0FT

AIAMAS HATATA VINIDFIA OFT
ALID VYINIDVIA A0 NMOL 0TT
TIIH 10D 40 NMOL 0TT
NOTIVZITIIEYLS 00T

WALSAS dHIYM 060

aNNd FIANLONALSYIANT 080
SIDEL0¥d TYLIAYD 040
NOILISINGOY INEWAINDZE 090
FOTIAYIS 0SO

LOIJLSIA FITA 0%0
AONEDIIWE FITA SEO
Y14 0€E0
NOILNLILSEE ¥%Z0
Savoyd 020

HONYISISSY LNIDIANI STO
TYOIAIN INIDIANI 0TO
TIIENED T00

XYL~

VOSSASSY HSYO ALLIA 506
JATITHS HSYD ALLEd %06
HSYD ALLAd €06

SNIOD Q10 T06

INOQODOY DD 09¥Vd STIEAM 66T
SETYS ALIEI0Ad ¥ 40 € B6T
SQIYOD MNVE SSENISNH LET
LNNCDOOY dIDT EIVLS 96T

ANYE NI HSYD S6T

S0 TYNOILYN ALID €61
FONYINSNT HITVAH Z61
ONICTIOH SEXYL JIUNDIS 006
ONIJIOH SEXVLI JIINDIASNN 008
ONICIOH I¥NO0D IJIJILSIA %61
LEANITN AENOW 0DIYA STIIM T6T

NOILATYOSAA I1O0Y

S£:50:60 €T/92/90 :unmd
00TIZAL :ON 3zodey



| sbeg

| | | | _ _ m |
[ _ _ [ = |
CEZ0V68 S E9EIb S| €95 S| SSOVCT $ | ZE0BY'D $ | 08COT S | ££'S9E0T $ | CVESLT § | Ov'90T  § | S8Te97 S| €v4SE S | v9'LEC S evIv9c S | LOT6TL S | 0BSSU'E S | SIZC6'LL $ | TEOIT'L S| £LE6L'SC___ S | TVLOL GNVYO
| | | I | | i
€9C6bic S| - S| - S| - S| - S S60E9°E S | Che?9 S |09/t S |TO6I6 S| CESCT S| G5€8 S €71y $|7680CT $|8699C9 S| - S| LTT8TYT S| ISIOXW
809 S| - S| - S| - S| - 5 080 S| v10 S| 100 S ozo S| €00 S1200 S| - $ 600 S zto S 6ET s - S| eTE B 15132d
= s - sl = & = e = 3 i I 1SIa Xd
| | | JSIN
|
€89507¢ S ESE S| - S | SSOPCL S | 9008ET S| - S| b068tC S| L8380V S | cLWC 5| 69V09 S| IbZ8 S 865 S | ISVE6G S | vBVLZ S |86W6L S | SBTZLIV S 6v'8ZLT S | JISNNVLOL
| [
€8950CC $ |ESElv S SSOFZT S | 9008ET S Y0686 S| /380y S |ZLvC S |69Y09 S |Zves S |86%S S| TISPE6 S | v8WZ S| 86%6L S| S8TLIY $ | STC09L S| 6v8ILT S| €10¢/710¢
| |
= s - 5] - s - S| - S| - S| - S - )= S| - s - S| - $1 - S| - s - S1_- s - S| - $ | 40mRid V101
- 3 | 7102/110T
- $ - $ - s| - - s - s - S_- [ - s1_- S - s - S| - s - §T_- HEE s - S| I=ogns
= S i I [ 1102/010C
= 3 T | 0102/6002
= 3 | 6002/800C
B 3 8002/£00C
- S £002/900t
i | | | 40SSISSV
| | |
TELVE6E S| - S| €95 $| - S| TE00TS S 08COT S 9Gwbew S 661¢L S ELby S| S6Z60T S | T96VT S | 6066 S |2690LT S 1066 S |ESISvT S | EveeSZ $ | TEO0TTL S| v6088% S SIV10L1¥0d3d
i |
- 3 pa.ndas punjay
TELVB6E S| - S| €9 - § TE00T'S § | 08°Z0T S 9SVbEVv S | 66T2L S| €Lvb S| S6L60T $ | T96VT S | 6066 S |<690LT S |T066F $ | €0TSKY'T $ | Epzess S| TEOTTL S | ¥6°088'6 $ [039N13S IVLOL
SOTIVOE S| - siggs §| - S| v668LT S| - $ | vTe9v'e S V6TI6S S| G8VE S | Z9LL8 S | 698IL S | vLBL S |G69SET S |BLB6E S | TCHSIT S | BELB6'S S | IWZbT'S S | L8'SOE'S $ | er/zrvioL
SOTIV'0E S B v6'68LC S vTear's S| v6165 S| Gsve  §|797l8 S| 69811 S |vIBL S| S6956T G |8UEE S| LCWSLT 6 | 864866 S| TIbTS S | [BSOEE S| €107/T10C
|
99SEV6 S| - === S | LEOTE 08°Z0T $ | c¢eSL8 S SOOET S |8Z6 S| €602 S| 260f S |SEOC S | L66VE  § | €800T | ZWi6C S | SOSYST S | 06L98°T S| LOSLST $ [ Yord V1oL
EYveY's S ETBLET 190y S | 1860T S| S99 S| ¥609T S| T CC S| ZSvT  $ | 640SC S| ¢8€L S |O0ETZ S| 0SZOTT S| 06£98T S| €589 S| zroz/TI0T
€TS6C S| - s - §I - K75 08'Z0T $ | S9VEC S | veOC S| €9¢C S | 6868 s|ses €8S S | 8166 $IT0Lc S| evvs slsszer S| - $ | v5°9E6 $ | [eogng
£7156C S v77€6 S| 08C0T S| S9vEC S |pr0OZ S| €9T S | 6565 SlsLs S[ess S| 8T66 Sslt0LT S| wrve Sleszer § v59£6 S| TT0Z/OTOZ
= S | | | 0702/600C
+ S | I | 6002/800C
| l
] | YIUNSYIUL
10l %2d/V | LINdYAO | %99/V | SILTYNId oeqAed [ML| ¥aW3/3¥id | 1IVi0D | HINOA AY1SI¥04 | JOVANI | GIWaANI 31V1S NoV dvd aa HOS dOHDS | QID 1SNaNI Tv¥aINID
59T 9059€-T00 | YOTYE-TO0 100 00z | 00 [1174 100 | o0 81 010 0Lt 090 09T oSt 005-T00 100
| | | | | |
| | I ] | [

£10Z AV 30 HINOW 3HL 803 VA ¥

£10C Aey




00°TT €T/1€/S
€0°9¢2 €ET/1€/S
67 %1 €1/1€/S
ST 0LE €1/T€/S
8¢ LED’E €T/T€/S
89°CLL €1/1€/S
00°0TE €T/1€/S
00°LYT €T/T€/S
YT 9L €1/T€/S
ST LET €T/T€/S
76602 £€1/1€/S
8C €S6 '€ €1/1€/S
00" 0€% €1/1€/S
0T L68'T €1/T1€/S
ST LT €1/T€/S
2L "89C'T €T/1€/S
Z6°00C €T/T€/S
€5°0ST €1/1€/S
00°6LE £€T/1€/S
§z°2Z8 €T/LT/S
00°C¥% €T/LT/S
00°008’T €T/LT/S
00°0S €T/LT/S
0069 €T/LT/S
00°0¥%S €T/LT/S
00°0ZS €1/LT/S
00 0SZ €T/LT/S
GL°28C €T/LT/S
00°000°T €T/LT/S
Z6°8Z9°T €T/€0/5
00°0ST £€1/€0/5
00°005°2 €1/€0/S
LS 8TT €ET/6T/%
05°26 €1/S0/%
00°00T €1/S0/%
00°00S5’% €T/S0/%
9L €0T €1/cz/z
00°SL €1/52/1
00°€¢€ €1/52/1T
00°0€ €T/1T/T
2T LET €I/€0/T
S8° ¢ Z1/0€/1T
66°6 Z1/01/8
00°2¢ TIT/%0/11
00°02 11/12/%
98° 21 01/L2/8
€6°08T 0t1/ct/€
9% " 8% 60/0C/TT
¥6° 62T 60/9T/T
€€ L 80/T0/L
86°G 80/T0/L
00°G2 80/6T/S
00°L%T 80/8T/€
S8°LT Lo/81/TT
Junouy 23ed ¥o=ypD
€1/1€/8 - 00/00/0

666666 Ubnoiyul T

S3o9yD burpue3isino

DNILNNODDY SwdHANSTYHIL
ALNNOD AHIOLS

T obedg

d¥0D INZEWAINDE NYWHSYD
SANIONH TIVHS NOSIYD
SI¥¥d OLNY ALID TYLIAYD
NENIAOAAWI IVIANAD NOANWYD
ONI STYINAY ALIVd LOTHWYD
TYNOISSHAONd 3 SSENISNI
SIMAT ILLODS ‘TTEYdNd

DNI WYIVYIY OTT1AIVDANE

D14 MY LIANNHIE
WNHETOILEAd OIgYIAd VINY AVE
(ONZY) SNId SHI¥HLIVE
YOLTH YOISANY 40 MNVE
HNS ADNYN ‘dHMVE
AILIWITIND SOILITHLIY

IA¥ES HONHNHANODHTHL LR3IV
SSHNTTIHEM ONY HLTYHH DIV
dJ0D SNI HAIT SYLIYIAWY
ONI 0DSIY

SWOLSND NITIOY IH SWYAY
DNI S¥A0L ALID YVINIDIIA
¥dd TYNOILYN HIVLIS ¥IATIS
ONI ddady

AMOLIYYAL HOHVI ONHI

d OTHONY ‘INI¥IHEd

ANY HOL ‘Od¥DINVd

ONI H4HSOL HHT
TIDNNODHAOD TYNOILYNIHINI
(DA) HTOINOIHD MDOLSHOD
NIAVNNYH d3DIHL

ANY HOL ‘Od¥DINVA

HANHI ‘ ISYWNIH

NILIVH ‘AHTIMO¥D

¥SIT ‘MONVH

W YIANYS ‘qd04avd
AIEYW-HENNY ‘OENND

NOOTIVS Qo019 A0 LEXONd
ONI S120d0dd ddMOd HLINWS
HANTE ‘ ISYWWHH

¥ OIAYIDO ‘YISHIAD

H0, ‘SNO99ID

(D0D) HNYdO¥d HIVLIS Id
STI0A ‘UANAYH

dT ANYdOdd SYDIYAWY

DNI HOIAYHS TYDIAT VAYAAN
JoNdd  ‘ LHIALIVOEA

ANVHS ‘NOXIQ

dld ‘d¥dEd ‘XANNED ‘¥HITNA
HAJISHA ‘HIMANT

MAYID  ONITHHN
YNILSI¥Y ' IInd

HOIYH ‘¥dIIYMaONd

XFIYA I NIAAM

SNYOT HWOH HAIMAYILNNOD
DT SYANLIYd S€D

sweN 92AoTdud/IOPUSA
woxq

#3[05UD woxa

6%:50:60

L65S00T
SSS00T
SLY00T
£€9L66

LSOVOY
£€2%00T
TLOEOY
6€TV0V
TETY0V
S8TEQ0Y
Le866

99L66

068¢€07
06666

6T9¢€07
159¢€07%
8STOOT
SETOOT
€26207
€68¢€0¥
€C6E0V
996¢€07%
£v6e0¥
S$68¢07%
£0LEOY
SLLTOT
6%CC0T
25966

6S8€0%
€0LE0Y
Z60%07%
144454
860%0%
c06e0¥%
0PTV0¥%
9S¥TO0¥
CTELOOT
Z60%0%
826€0%
Z2e800T
86866

LO90V0Y
676€0¥
69CT0T
T89¢€0¥
62600%
S¥620¥
6CVE€0¥
8LYTIOV
S90€07%
€£50e0%
S6620%
S6TIO%
6€620%

00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 G6T
00 S6T1
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 SG6T
00 Sé6T
00 S6T
00 S61
00 S6T1
00 S6T
00 GS6T1
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 S6tl
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 Se6tT
00 GetT
00 S6T
00 S6tT
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 GeT
00 Se6tl
00 96T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 GS6T
00 S6T
00 S6T

# uosisg Dbeg ueg

T 2WwIL uny

€1/92/90
0S.THG

0LSSL XD
699S5L D
8995.L D
L9GSL MAD
9985L AD
g9gsL D
$99SL D
£946SL D
€9SSL D
TosSL D
09S8SL D
659559L MO
8G559L D
LS9SSL MDD
9g85g9L MAD
S989L AD
¥99SL D
£56G9L MO
cS9SSL D
€vg9eL  AD
82S9S9L D
9TgSL D
STSSL MO
S0SSL AD
00589L MO
cLYSL D
S9%SL  AD
T¥PSL 2D
LZVSL D
CLESL pire)
L¥PESL D
Sgess D
6€TSL D
TSTSL D
90TSL D
$60SL D
TZ28%L D
LCSPL D
STSPL 2D
ZTPPL D
28C¥L D
¥90%L D
866CL D
€960L MAD
LCv69 D
€59L9 D
¥1TZ99 D
8¢€S9 2D
g¢€9Cc9 2D
Sg6809 D
TE€809 pre]
cev¥09 D
0Z86S D
6€T6S D
# >ooud di

: 93ed uny
:ON 1xodsy



00 €LE €1/1€/8
Z¥ T1€¢E €1/1€/S
6C°288 €1/1€/S
00°59 €T/1€/S
05°29 €T/1€/8S
9L°6€9 €T/T€/S
00°L%E'T £€1/T€/S
00°CTT €1/1€/S
00°0TL €1/1€/S
S9°€2CS €T/1€/S
00°€2€ €T/1€/s
7L 68C €1/1€/8
GL°6TT'T £€T1/1€/S
00°52 €T1/1€/S
00°0S €T/T€/S
YT €6%'T €1/1¢€/8
60°C €1/1€/S
¥6° 1€ €1/1€/S
Y T6T'T €T/1€/S
00°0ST €1/1€/8
9€°G62 €1/T€/S
00°0ST £€1/1€/S
00°059 €1/1€/S
€9°62S €1/1€/S
00°208 €T/1€/S
00°02€’T €T/1€/S
8G 8L £1/T€/S
6€°%9 €1/1€/S
PP TE0’E c1/1€/Ss
00°000°0T €T/1€/8
80 02 €1/1€/S
00°6L €1/T€/S
66 %99 €T/1€/S
0G6°L8 £€1/1€/S
0§ LEE €1/1€/s
00°00T €1/1€/89
$9°9C €1/1€/S
00°SZT'6 €T/T€/S
I¥°CLE €T/T€/S
00°59 €1/1e/S
0L %0%’L £€T/1€/8
6L FTT’'CT €T/T€/S
T€°2S €1/1€/8
z8°C9 €1/1€/S
00°%Z¢ €T/T€/S
00°T€6 €1/T€/S
00 00T €T/TE/S
00°000°SS €1/1€/S
00°80T €T/TE/S
00 TITIT'T €1/1€/S
¥6°69L L €T/T€/S
0§ LEE €1/1€/S
7€ 66T €T/1€/S
00°LZS €T/T€/S
Jaunoury 23ed MO=:UD
£€I/T€/S - 00/00/0

666666 UbBNOIUL T
HNIINNODDOY S ¥EMASYENL

z sbeg

S3o9yYD burpurisino

NI ONIAVDSANYT NAFID ONII
ONI SHILIVIDHAS rad

(YD) DONI 0D NUDIOW AV

W IANYS ‘Qd04avd

ONI SHDIAHA NOILDHLO¥d
SSHDDOY JHIWHAJ

DONI SHMOY AHNILIA

d OTAONY ‘INIILHJ

S NHOL ‘HSIJY¥Yd

DT ¥Y9D OLIAWIVA

IS 3 SDIHAVYD ddIS HHI NO
DONI 1Od3d dEDIdAJ0

DI SNHOL YAVAAN
NOISIAIQ ONISVYHDOINd AIN
HITYHH 40 AIQ AEN

SIYYd OLAY DN

SI¥¥4d MONAL ® QLAY VAd¥N
TIVWYL ‘NVDIKW

NI SNOILATOS HDIAA0 OJLIANW
YHAINNIL ‘NIVOOW
SHESTUJIHINT NIAIVH

d LYIYDIVYH ‘YTVLLYVIW

d ¥SIT ‘OqadvdWoT

SNOS 3 SII¥ND N T

I9HD ® HJOTENHd ‘JYHTHDHIN
D NOIILYDNAH JHAHOIH NY'IdVA
ayod ISHEM SINOL

D11 ddr

DT HDYNOS T.LI

DT dLI

TIDNNODHTOD TYNOILVNIHINI
DONI AdNVEavodd 10dS LOH
HDIA¥AS LIAHEID 1OdHd HWOH
OHDS ddYM HILINOA DIVYOLSIH
ONIOVYWIOUDIW LI¥ASHA HDHIH
T NIHAINVIN ‘YEINdHH

I7T X71ddNS LSNOD ATddNS dH
DT ‘IVAWES XIS IVWZVH
NYOTIIENY HLION ILVA™ED

SHd ¥ HIIWJIHL NISYE LVHAED
DT ADYHANH SAFATA
ONINHANIONE LSHM dA7A

0D SO¥d YHAWIYA

SILONAOYd NOILVDIYII HNIMH
D QI¥YNOET ‘dIDONIILA

ONI 0T-Xa

D0d ‘NETINAd

AINNOD SYIHN0A

¥ OIAYIDO ‘YISHID

(OA) FTIDINOYHD MDOLSWOD
DONI ISHHO ALINNWWOD

d STETIAVHD ‘TIIdAID0D
dIHSYANLYYd ODTITHD

ONI ¥OOdINO S€D

sweN osAoTdug/Iopusa
woxg

#3(02UyD woxg

6%:50:60

ALNNOD AHIOLS

6€EE0Y
0LT?0¥%
LE6COY
c06€0¥%
62€€0¥%
9%¥€0T
PEVIOT
§568¢0¥%
9ST¥0¥%
S9%E0¥
02Ce0T
Z8LTOT
700%0%
L¥920T
G9EEQ0T
6LC00T
SLSCOT
629¢0%
880707
2e0e0v
8LLEOY
968¢€07
69T¥0%
0%0TO0T
868¢07%
89T¥0¥%
S6600T
LTEE0T
¥€8¢e07
E184%%
6¥2€0T
€S5LE07
68800T
9C800T
786001
896¢07%
8TCEOT
6LTVOV
CLTVOY
0LPE0T
2e6€0%
9TCE0®
SLLOOT
SE8E0V
65070%
9LTVOV
L96€0Y
6TLEOY
8C6€0¥%
5966

S5900T
LZ8EOT
892¢€0%
LZT6E0Y

# uosiadg

T 2WTI uny

00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 96T
00 G6T1
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 ¢Se6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 Se6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G661
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G661
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
beg 3jueg
€1/92/90
0SLTHd

¥Cc9sL D
€Z9SL  AD
Z2Z9SL D
1Z96L D
0z9sL D
6T9GL D
8T9GL D
LTI9SL D
919SL D
ST9SL D
$T9SL D
€T9SL D
ZT9SL D
TT9GL D
0T9SL D
6095L D
809SL D
L09SL D
909SL D
S09SL D
$095L D
€095 D
TO9SL D
T09SL D
009SL D
6655L D
86GGL D
L6SSL  MD
96GGL D
§6SSL  MD
¥65SL MDD
£€6G6SL MDD
T6SSL MO
I6SSL D
06554 MO
68G5L AD
88GGL D
L8SSL D
98GGL MDD
§8G5L D
$8SSL MDD
€8SSL D
Z8SSL AD
T8GSL MDD
08§SL D
6LSSL D
8LSSL D
LLSSL D
9LSSL  MD
SLSSL D
¥LSSL a0
€LGSL  MD
ZLGSL D
TLSSL D
# yosud di

: 93eQ Uny
:ON 3Ix0dsy



dTLIL NYOIYHWNY LSYId
LZZ%# DOSSY YHIHDIA HIIJA
€ON SUHINIDONH ONILVIIJO
SHNA NOINN/TWDOSIAY
6LLS9G6GTH/IILEY IS AIN
6LLS9S6STH/HILEY 1S AEN
6LLS9S6STH/UILEY 1S AHN
ONI HLHYONOD dE

SSITY0D ‘dOOM

01T YAVAEN LANLSHM

0D XAT1ddNS VAVAHN NIHILSHM
gy TYINHWNOJIIANA NIHLSHM
YHNOYOD OD HOHSYM

ONI SdN0L ALID VINIDIIA
SANVYTHOIH ALID VINIDATIA
VYNIJ INFWAINOH JJODNVE SN
ONI ¥dHS TYOIJLOATH JTHLINQA
ONI HAIMOTIOM HDINOSINMO
DTT YAYAHN 40 ALINWJIOAINN
ONI OLVJOdY']l SYHLIYMIHEANN
SAS ¥HLYM SMOJVHW HAMONUL
LILNEWHAQIANWI TVIHANHD TdL
SA0EMOD INOLSHWOL HHL

NI SONIJTOH DIAIOVYd HIIMS
SHSTIJIHILNA dVHd NNOS

¥dd D717 SHIYLSAANI MADITS
YHd TYNOILVYN HLV.LS ¥HATIS
SHIYLSAANTI HILVLS JIATIS
0D ¥HMOd OIAIOVd VIIHIS
LLEHY ‘ZIINHDS

T NI SHDIAJHIS fIVdOTO OdS
YHH Idddd4ddd SATVWN INIVS
SOIHAYYED ¥ €dM qIVNDHAVS
ONI ¥Sn ILS0davoyd

ONTI ¥daxid

OTT LIOASNVAL JdO0d ONHY

sweN S3AoTdug/Iopusp

L8 €T0‘0€E :Te30L
L8 E€T0'0€E :1e10L Mueqd
0T 0% 60/¥T/CT
00°GZT'1T £€1/¥%2/s
05 865 €1/%2/S
Sv T1Ch €1/%2/S
8€°€55'69 €1/v2/s
€97 €0€ €1/€1/S
S¥°ZZE'69 €T/0T/S
8€°LSY £€T/T€/S
€€ 96C €1/1€/5S
00°668 £€T/1€/S
80°8¥T €T/1€/S
00°8ST €T/T1€/S
00°T6T £1/T€/S
00°9€C’T €1/1¢€/5
9% 095‘T €1/TE/S
T0°TL9'E €1/1€/S
L8 V8% L €T/T€/S
Y0 T8 €T/T€/S
YL %9 €T/1€/S
00°SL6 €T/1€/8
19°0% €T/T€/S
08°56¢ €1/1€/S
00°L6C €1/1€/S
9€ T8¢ €T/1€/S
007969 €T/1€/S
00°G€S§ €T/T€/S
00°0€ €1/1€/S
£€°02L €1/1€/S
L0 %SS €1/1€/9
00°009°T €1/1€/S
8E°0S €1/1€/9
S€°88%'8 €T/T1€/S
Z28°€9¢€ €T/T€/S
Z8° IS €T/1€/S
00°009°Z €T/T€/S
99°0CT'T €1/1€/8
Jjunowy 23ed IoO23UD
£€1/I€/S - 00/00/0

666666 Ubnoiul T

DN
< obeg

s309yD burlpueisino
IINNODDVY SudHINSYHAL

woIg

#309YD woxd

6%:50:60

AILNAOD AKHIOLS

£8€00T
T0S006
005006
Z0¥%006
050006
0S0006
050006
9CIVO0¥
L66E0Y
S90v0%
0Z6TOT
LETEOT
068TO0T
£68€07
L¥Y¥ZO0T
8¢6C0V
£L99€0%
70CE0T
296C0T
26Ce0v
SE6C0%
SZTTEOV
T06€E0%
LOTPOV
Z68€07
08%€0¥%
£26E07
L9ZE0T
0€910T
LLTYO0Y
T¥ZE0T
T%#2ZO0T
69¢T0T
T9€E0¥
996¢07%
T09¢0¥

00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T1
00 S6T1
00 S6T1T
00 Se6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 G661
00 G661
00 S61
00 S6T
00 Sé6T
00 S6T
00 §G6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 Se61
00 S6T1
00 S6T1
00 GS6T
00 G611
00 G61
00 961
00 G61
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 96T
00 S6T1
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 S61L
00 g6T
00 S6Tl

# uosaag Dbes jueg

T BwWTI uny

€T/92/90
0GLTHE

TISS9 da
Z69€c ud
I69£€ ¥4
069¢€ dd
6L95E dud
LL9€E ¥4
LS9€E ¥d
¥5999L MO
£€595L D
TG9SL D
TS9GL D
059SL D
67954 D
8%9G9L D
L¥9SL D
9%9SL A0
SP9SL MDD
¥$95L MAD
€P9SL MDD
T¥9SL  AD
TV9SL AD
0%9SL D
6€9GL D
8€95L D
LEQSL D
S€9SL D
¥E£9GL MDD
€€9SL  MD
TE9SL AD
TE9SL D
0€95L D
6Z9SL D
8T9SL D
LC9SL 2D
9T9SL D
SZ9SL AD

# yo=up di
. 23ed unyg

:ON 3xodey



LICENSING BOARD



Storey County Community Bebelopment

(PLAEeT,

A Ty,

.-\L-'-_, \\v
.':).
Pl

Buginess @ |

UAL:

Licensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 - (775) 847-0966 + Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa DuFresne, Clerk’s Office June 24, 2013
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the July 2, 2013, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:
A. THE HIGHLANDER - General / 240 North C Street (Cosmetologist) vVC
B. A B CUSTOM WOODWORKING — General / 200 Canyon Way (cabinetry) RD
C. UPRISING PARAGLIDING — Home Business / 240 Vermillion (recordkeeping only) VCH
LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:
A. CALDERA ELECTRIC - Contractor / 508 Jackson Way (electrical contractor) ~ Carson City
B. KALEN JOHNSON - General / 1480 Grey Bluff Drive (misc. maintenance) ~ Fernley
C. COOL BREEZE REFRIGERATION, INC. — Contractor / 72 Webb Circle (refrig. repair) ~ Reno
D. BUCK’S PLUMBING & HEATING - Contractor / 275 Gallaway Lane (plumbing cont.) ~ Reno
E. VIRGINIA CITY MINING COMPANY — General / 171 South C Street (panning for gold) vC
F. NEVADA DISTRIBUTION SERVICES, LLC - General / 625 Waltham Way #103/104 TRI
(public warehouse and distribution)
G. SCHWABE NORTH AMERICA, INC. — General / 2777 USA Pkwy #106 TRI
(distribution center for dietary supplements)
H. MARS PETCARE US -- General / 725 Waltham Way (dist. for pet food) TRI
I. VIRGINIA CITY KETTLE CORN DEPOT - General / 188 South C Street VC
(make and sell kettle corn)
J. HOT POT, LLC - General / 420 USA Parkway, Suite #101 (restaurant) TRI
K. AMERICAN ARMS DELTA -- General / 224 Easy Sydney Drive, Suite B TRI
(firearms manufacture and repair)
L. BATTLE BORN MUNITIONS, INC. - General / 625 Waltham Way TRI
(import and distribute firearms and ammunition)
Inspection Required
ec. Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff's Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor's Office



UNION CONTRACT



Vanessa Dufresne

From: Austin Osborne

Sent: Monday, June 24, 2013 8:34 AM

To: Vanessa Dufresne

Cc: Pat Whitten; Bill Maddox; Hugh Gallagher
Subject: July 2 Agenda Item (Union Contract)
Vanessa,

| would like to add the following to the July 2 Commission Agenda. | will have the actual Union Contract for posting to
you 11:00 today, if that is okay with you. Thank you, Austin

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of modifications and extension of the Agreement between Storey County
(Employer) and Storey County Employee’s Association (Union) also referred to as AFSCME Local Union, Comstock
Chapter.

Thank you,
Austin

Austin Osborne

Administrative Officer & Senior Planner
Storey County Courthouse

Box 176 Virginia City, NV 89440

Office: 775.847.0968

Cell: 775.291.4693

Fax: 775.847.0949
aoshborne@storeycounty.org

Storey County is an Equal Opportunity Provider.

CONFIDENTIALITY DISCLAIMER:

This e-mail and any attachments are intended only for use by the addressee(s) named herein and may contain legally
privileged and/or confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, any dissemination, distribution or
copving of this e-mail and any attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please
immediately notify me and permanently delete the original and all copies and printouts of this e-mail and any
attachments.




AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 1 of 44

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
STOREY COUNTY, NEVADA
AND
COMSTOCK CHAPTER, AFSCME LOCAL 4041

JULY 1, 2013 — JUNE 30, 2016



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 2 of 44

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TITLE PAGE 1iiiieieiiiansunnorssmensmionismssarmenssasnsnsgsrsssssssssssssssastosssnisnssmonrrersnivnsss
CONTENTS oiitiueuereraestotsnsaenenesniesessnesnersassssesssinrssssasssssatestsiassstssnaymmmanartess
PREAMBLE i e s s
ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION L..otititeetiainninitarinannessasanissssetaaasnnens s
ARTICLE 2. SUPERVISOR DEFINITION .......c0iciumeransesmrersnssnescnerinimnmnsanrernins
ARTICLE 3. EMPLOYEE DEFINITION ....ooiiiiiiiiniiininiinimieniiiiieaninnan s senenasasnes
ARTICLE 4. ELIGIBILITY FOR BENEFITS ....iiiiiriienimarimaiiiiinarriansreeniananss
ARTICLE 5. RIGHT TO ORGANIZE.....ccccciimariismmssmrumsmmssmnesssssessemssssssasssassssssesnsessins s snssssssses
ARTICLE 6. INFORMATION REQUEST ....coooiiiiiiineieneiieinisneensnnnnesee e sssssnsassiss s
ARTICLE 7. UNION BUSINESS .. Ces R PRy SRR R4S SRR Sy 8 e et eSS DRANE RN TSI SRS
ARTICLE 8. UNION USE OF BUILDINGS
ARTICLE 9. NOTIFICATION TO THE UNION OF NEW EMPLOYEES & CHANGES TO COUN
CODES / ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES........coocviiiimmmmrniiecseninnn
ARTICLE 10. ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW CLASSIFICATION.....ccccocnmiininnnnrireiiinnas
ARTICLE 11. RELEASE TIME FOR NEGOTIATION/GRIEVANCE COMMITTEES ...
ARTICLE 12. EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS OF THE UNION......cciunnisuscnsanmmsnnssmanransesssssasensans
ARTICLE 13.  PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS ..
ARTICLE 14, MANAGEMENT RIGHTS .. T
ARTICLE 15. AUTOMATIC PAYROLL DEPOSIT PROGRAM .........................................................
ARTICLE 16. NON-DISCRIMINATION...
ARTICLE 17. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
ARTICLE 18. JOB CLASSIFICATIONS/SALARIES ...................................................
ARTICLE 20.  MERIT INCREASE .....oiiiiiiiiiimniiisissssinsssrasas s s siassissasssasiassbssissisasasssanass
ARTICLE 21.  RECLASSIFICATION. ...oovireeeeinisenssesiesseiesssissesssstassanssesssissssissmssisiisssniisissvasssaie
ARTICLE 22.  COST OF LIVING ..eoottvimirmnumresinnenmnssesssessarsssssessssssesssmsssssssssssssassasebs st siassnsssssiass
ARTICLE 23. HOURS OF WORK ........ccvveiniiiiiiinnn
ARTICLE 24, OVERTIME COMPENSATION .....ooicoiiimimmiiiiniiiiis it s s
ARTICLE 25. CALL BACK...
ARTICLE 26. STANDBY .. -
ARTICLE 27. VACATION (ANNUAL LEAVE) SRR e e TR TR
ARTICLE 28.  SICK LEAVE & BEREAVEMENT LEAVE
ARTICLE 29. CATASTROPHIC SICK LEAVE
ARTICLE 30. LEAVES OF ABSENCE......coicuiimiirieninmmsrensassnsenmismiisnit i ssssssssssssss s
ARTICLE 31.  ON THE JOB INJURY ...ocoiiiiiiiiiniammiiimissamssssesnsss st sssamsisssasnssasass ssasssssssssssssnssasssasins
ARTICLE 32. LEAVE FOR CIVIC DUTIES.......coii ittt s
ARTICLE 33.  MILITARY LEAVE... oottt s sas st
ARTICLE 34. HOLIDAYS..
ARTICLE 35. LONGEVITY
ARTICLE 36. PAY AND EXPENSES FOR EDUCATION TRAINING & LICENSING ............
ARTICLE 37. EDUCATION INCENTIVE.......cciiiiiiiiiinniniicisniisis i
ARTICLE 38.  UNIFORM ALLOWANCE.....ccooosieteriressiinesinsesismsrssssassmnssnesioasessssasssssiassasasassasssassans
ARTICLE 40. LAYOFF & RECALL....ooiiiiiitiiienit e bbb s s
ARTICLE 41,  FILLING OF VACANCIES.....ccoiiiuiuinniiessssnsiatisss s s e sy
ARTICLE 42. PERSONNEL RECORDS.......oociiiiiiiiiininsi s s
ARTICLE 43. DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE.......icciimiiimiiinsiiinsisiiissiinisia s
ARTICLE 44. INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS.......coiiiimmssre it
ARTICLE 45. POLYGRAPH EXAMINATIONS......cccoiiiirmrisinmiiiisiiestnsaasisssiasssrassasssssas
ARTICLE 46. BENEFITS INSURANCE.......cccicinitiminimenisimsimniiisamninss s s asis s s s s
ARTICLE 47. RETIREMENT..............

AN b BN =

Y

O 0o~ ~1—g30an

D) = o e ek = e e e e e e e
OO oo oo oo NN R WO OO

e 6 6 o6 © & o o © 6 &6 ¢ 6 © O © O O O 6 6 o ©o o o o o
LW W W W WL WWRNNNDNDDNDNNDDN
N NN R RN = O RN W=

[9%)
oo



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County

2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 3 of 44

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 48. EMERGENCY CLOSURE.... ......oiiiiiisiee i e s as s s s s rae e
ARTICLE 49. PREVAILING RIGHTS ...t st svastasisiasassssassssassass
ARTICLE 50. PRIVATIZATION/SUBCONTRACTING ..covciiiiniiminimessssrinssiicisiis s
ARTICLE 51.  SUCCESSOR CLAUSE......ccovniieitirmennississsssssiisss s s ssssssssssssssns
ARTICLE 52. NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT ....cciiviriieninneemseieniinsssnsssssss s ssies s thasssssisass s ssasssians
ARTICLE 53.  SAVINGS CLAUSE....cccoitsiiniriiiiimsssse st bbb sssasassis s s ses
ARTICLE 54, DURATION OF AGREEMENT ....ccuciieiimesiiinrimniesissinmssiisiinis e esiessssesesiesss

Agreement and SIGNATUIE. . .....vuuiiueiiianiras i tiaa e s s

APPENDIX A.  Salary Tables and Storey County Job Classifications and Pay Grades........cooovese

APPENDIX B. Performance Review Policy........... Contact Personnel Office.....cccuiciiiiiiiaiiiiniininnns

39
39
39
40
40
40

41

42

44



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 4 of 44

PREAMBLE

This Agreement is made and entered into this 2™ day of July, 2013, at Virginia City, Nevada, pursuant to
the provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes, by and between the Storey County Board of
Commissioners in the County of Storey, Nevada, a County Government, hereinafter referred to as the
Employer, and the Storey County Employee's Association AFSCME Local Union Comstock Chapter,
hereinafter referred to as the Union.

It is the purpose of this Agreement to achieve and maintain harmonious relations between the Employer
and the Union, to provide for equitable and peaceful adjustment of differences which may arise, and to
provide proper standards of wages, hours and other conditions of employment.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 5 of 44

ARTICLE 1. RECOGNITION

The Employer hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining agent for all Employees
in the job classifications listed in Appendix A attached hereto. The Employer agrees not to
recognize or bargain with any other organization purporting to represent the members of the
bargaining unit for as long as the Union remains eligible for recognition as an Employee
organization.

ARTICLE 2. SUPERVISOR DEFINITION

Supervisory Employees, as defined by NRS 288, shall be specifically excluded from membership
in the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE 3. EMPLOYEE DEFINITION

As used herein, unless the context otherwise requires, the words and terms listed below shall
have the meanings ascribed to them in this section. All positions shall be filled according to this
agreement and County policy.

1. “Regular Full-Time Employee” means an Employee who has been retained in a regular
position after completion of the probationary period, whose regular workweek consists of
at least forty (40) hours. This definition shall be changed throughout the contract to mean
that a full-time workweek consists of at least forty (40) hours. Current Employees
considered full-time with a 35-hour workweek shall continue to be considered full-time
with a 35-hour workweek until such time as their full-time workweek becomes 40 hours.

2. “Regular Part-Time Employee” means an Employee in a position which is considered
half-time or more according to the full-time work schedule of the Employer.

3. “Probationary Employee” means an Employee who is on probation in a regular position
for a period of nine (9) months. Newly hired Probationary Employees are excluded from
the coverage of this Agreement and may be laid-off or discharged during this period for
any reason or no reason. After such trial period, an Employee shall be deemed to be a
Regular Employee, and shall acquire seniority from his/her first date of hire.
Probationary Employees shall not be subject to the terms of this Agreement except as
otherwise provided herein. Probationary periods may be extended for not more than
three (3) months by mutual agreement.

4. Temporary, Intermittent, and Seasonal positions are excluded from the coverage of this
Agreement. These positions may fill regular or non-regular positions.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 6 of 44

ARTICLE 4. ELIGIBLITY FOR BENEFITS

The rights and benefits provided herein shall be accorded to all Regular Full-Time Employees
and Regular Part-Time Employees. Regular Part-Time Employees shall receive prorated Annual
Leave, Sick Leave and Merit salary increase benefits according to the number of hours worked.
The term of any probationary period shall be credited for the purposes of determining Annual
Leave, Sick Leave, Merit salary increases, promotional rights, and insurance eligibility.

ARTICLE 5. RIGHT TO ORGANIZE

Employees shall have the right to form, organize, join and administer an Employee organization
and to designate their representatives for purposes of collective bargaining, The Employer shall
not restrain, coerce, discriminate against or otherwise interfere with an Employee in the exercise
of these rights.

ARTICLE 6. INFORMATION REQUEST

The Union may request, in writing, reasonable information concerning any subject matter
included in the scope of mandatory bargaining necessary for and relevant to collective
bargaining, or necessary for the administration or application of this Agreement. The Employer
shall furnish the information requested within a reasonable period of time.

ARTICLE 7. UNION BUSINESS

Representatives of the Union and its affiliates will be permitted to transact Union business on
County property, provided that this shall not disrupt normal work. Union business may only be
conducted during non-work time, such as before work and after work, during breaks and/or
lunchtime. Union business may only be conducted in common areas and/or designated Employee
break areas. Designated representatives of the Union shall be allowed to receive telephone calls
or other communiqués concerning Union business at any time during working hours. The Union
shall have the right to use the interoffice mail for Union business. County email may be used
internally to conduct Union business, but shall be limited to all parties to this Agreement and
subject to established County policies. The Union may post notices involving Union business in
the location(s) and manner(s) as mutually agreed upon.

ARTICLE 8. UNION USE OF BUILDINGS

The Union may use the County's buildings, excluding District Court, for meetings if such use
does not interfere with the County's operations. The Supervisor's permission must be obtained
before any meeting, but such permission may not be unreasonably withheld. Subject to
scheduling conflicts, the Employer agtees to allow the Union to use Employer buildings,
excluding District Court, for Union meetings.

The Union acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall be solely responsible for the opening,
closing, and securing of County buildings used by the Union for Union meetings. The Union
acknowledges and agrees that the Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the Employer



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 7 of 44

harmless for any damages incurred and against any claims made or actions initiated against the
Employer as a result of the Union's use of County buildings for Union meetings.

ARTICLE 9. NOTIFICATION TO THE UNION OF NEW EMPLOYEES & CHANGES
TO COUNTY CODES/ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES

1. The Employer shall notify the Union of the name, classification and starting grade and
step for each new Employee within thirty (30) days of the new Employee's starting date.

2. The Employer shall provide each new Employee an Orientation pursuant to Storey
County Administrative Policies and Procedures.

a. Employees in a position eligible for AFSCME rights and benefits shall be
provided the name and email contact information for the current Comstock
Chapter President or other designated representative, as well as access to the
Storey Membership website or a designated website where the current Agreement
can be viewed in its entirety.

3. The Employer shall provide to the current Comstock Chapter President or other
designated representative a copy of all new and amended County Codes and County
Administrative Policies, as well as written notice of all repealed County Codes and
County Administrative Policies, within thirty (30) days of approval thereof.

ARTICLE 10. ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW CLASSIFICATION

In the event the Employer creates a new job classification that will be placed in the bargaining
unit or amends the job requirements of an existing job classification within the bargaining unit,
the Employer shall notify the Union as to its intended action. Where the proposed change(s)
impact matters within the scope of mandatory bargaining as specified in NRS 288 and this
Agreement, upon written request from the Union, the Employer will enter into negotiations to the
extent required by law or this Agreement.

ARTICLE 11. RELEASE TIME FOR NEGOTIATION/GRIEVANCE COMMITTEES

Up to two (2) members of the Union shall be granted leave from duty with full pay for a
reasonable number of meetings between the Employer and the Union for the purpose of
negotiating the terms of the Agreement when such meetings take place at a time when such
members are scheduled to be on duty.

Up to two (2) members of the Union’s Grievance Board, one (1) aggrieved Employee, one (1)
Union representative, and any witness shall be granted leave from duty with full pay for all
meetings between the Employer and the Union for the purpose of processing grievances and
attending hearings when such meetings take place at a time when such members are scheduled to
be on duty.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 8 of 44

ARTICLE 12. EXCLUSIVE RIGHTS OF THE UNION

The rights and privileges of the Union and its representatives as set forth in this Agreement shall
be granted only to the Union as the exclusive representative of the Employees in the bargaining

unit,

ARTICLE 13. PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

1.

The Employer agrees to deduct biweekly dues in the amount certified to be current by the
Treasurer of the Union from the pay of those who individually authorize in writing that
such deductions be made. The election of payment of dues by payroll deduction cannot
be changed or revoked by the Employee without written permission from the Treasurer of
the Union, except as provided in subsection 2 of this Article. The Employer will not
honor any blanket request by the Union for payroll deductions.

The written authorization for payroll deduction of dues shall remain in full force and
effect during the term of this Agreement and shall clearly state the following terms and

conditions under which it may be revoked:

a. The individual Employees may revoke a request that dues be deducted by

submitting written notice to the Union and Payroll Processing. The revocation is
effective on a date determined by Payroll Processing, but not later than thirty (30)
days after the date upon which Payroll Processing receives written notice from the
Employee.

. The total amount of deductions shall be remitted by the Employer to the Treasurer

of the Union by check via U.S. Mail as soon as reasonably possible after the end
of each biweekly pay period. The Employer will provide a list either by hard copy
or disc of the names of the individual Employees for whom dues are remitted.

. The Employee's earnings must be regularly sufficient after other legal and

required deductions are made to cover the amount of the appropriate Union dues.
When a member in good standing of the Union is in non-pay status for an entire
pay period, no withholding will be made to cover that pay period from future
earnings. In the case of an Employee who is in non-pay status during only part of
the pay period, and the wages are not sufficient to cover the full withholding, no
deductions shall be made. All other legal and required deductions have priority
over Union dues.

. The Union shall indemnify, defend and hold the Employer harmless against any

and all claims, demands, suits, and all other forms of liability which might arise
out of or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Employer pursuant to
the provisions of this Article.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 9 of 44

ARTICLE 14. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

1.

Those subject matters which are not within the scope of mandatory bargaining and which
are reserved to the Employer without negotiation include the following:

a. The right to hire, direct, assign, or transfer an Employee, but excluding the right to
assign or transfer an Employee as a form of discipline.

b. The right to reduce in force or lay-off any Employee because of lack of work or lack
of money, subject to NRS 288.

c. The right to determine:

1. Appropriate staffing levels and work performance standards, except for safety
considerations;

2. The content of the workday, including without limitation workload factors,
except for safety considerations;

3. The quality and quantity of services to be offered to the public; and
4. The means and methods of offering those services.
d. Safety of the public.

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Agreement, the Employer is entitled to take
whatever actions may be necessary to carry out its responsibilities in situations of
emergency such as riot, military action, natural disaster or civil disorder. Those actions
may include the suspension of this Agreement for the duration of the emergency. Any
actions taken under the provisions of this subsection must not be construed as a failure to
negotiate in good faith.

The Employer shall have the ultimate right and responsibility to manage its operation in
the most efficient manner consistent with the best interests of all of its citizens, taxpayers,
and Employees.

The Employer may discuss but is not required to negotiate subject matters enumerated in
subsection (1) of this Article which are outside the scope of mandatory bargaining.

The retention of these rights does not preclude any Employee from filing a grievance or
seeking a review of the exercise of these rights.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 —2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 10 of 44

ARTICLE 15. AUTOMATIC PAYROLL DEPOSIT PROGRAM

The Employer agrees to provide an automatic payroll check deposit program. All bargaining unit
Employees shall have direct deposit with an approved financial institution. The Union holds the
Employer harmless if the bargaining unit Employee is not in compliance with the direct deposit
program as outlined by the Employer pursuant to this Agreement.

ARTICLE 16. NON-DISCRIMINATION

Employer agrees to comply with all applicable laws prohibiting discrimination in employment
including Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; the Age Discrimination in Employment Act
of 1967; the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972; the Immigration Reform and Control
Act of 1986; the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended; the applicable Nevada
Revised Statutes on Equal Employment Opportunity (NRS 613); the right of an Employee to join
or refrain from joining an Employee organization (NRS 288); and any other applicable federal,
state, and local statutory provisions.

ARTICLE 17. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
1. DEFINITIONS

a. A grievance is a claimed violation, misapplication, or misinterpretation of this Agreement
or rules, regulations, and policies of the Employer governing matters within the scope of
mandatory bargaining pursuant to NRS 288. Informal discussions and attempts to resolve
the matter prior to filing a formal grievance are excluded.

b. A grievant is an Employee or group of Employees who are covered by the provisions of
this Agreement and who believe they have been adversely affected by an act or formal
decision of the Employer occasioning the grievance, and who file a grievance. The Union
may be the grievant if an act or formal decision of the Employer which is alleged to be a
grievance directly relates to a Union activity or privilege addressed in this Agreement.

c. Working Days for the purpose of a grievance or an appeal shall mean a weekday, Monday
through Friday, excluding holidays.

d. The Grievance Board shall be composed of two (2) members appointed by the Employer
and two (2) members appointed by the Union.

e. The Grievance Screening Committee shall consist of any three (3) current members of the
Board of Directors of the Comstock Chapter.

2. RIGHTS OF REPRESENTATION
With the consent of the aggrieved Employee(s), one (1) Union representative shall be present for

any meeting, hearing, appeal, or other proceeding between the Employer and the grievant
relating to a grievance that has been filed pursuant to this Article. If, in the judgment of the



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 11 of 44

Union, a grievance affects a group of Employees or the Union, the Union may initiate and file
such grievance with the Personnel Director and the processing of such grievance shall commence
at Level II. The Union may process such a grievance through all levels of the procedure.

3. INDIVIDUAL RIGHTS

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any Employee having a
complaint to discuss the matter with the appropriate Supervisor(s), and to have the matter
resolved without the intervention of the Union, as long as the Union has had, at the request of the
Employee, the opportunity to be present at such discussions.

4, INFORMAL RESOLUTION

Within ten (10) working days from the event giving rise to a grievance or from the date the
Employee(s) could reasonably have been expected to have had knowledge of such event, the
Employee shall orally discuss the grievance with his/her immediate Supervisor. A Supervisor
shall have five (5) working days to provide a decision to the Employee.

a. The Grievance Screening Committee shall convene within ten (10) working days from
the date the Supervisor provides, or should provide, a decision to the Employee. The
Committee shall determine the validity of proceeding to a Formal Level Grievance. The
Employee shall be provided a pre-determined amount of time to provide evidence,
prepare for witnesses, etc., as necessary. Should the Grievance Screening Committee
determine there is no valid cause to proceed to a Formal Level Grievance, the issue is no
longer considered a Grievance per this Agreement.

5. FORMAL LEVELS

Level I If a grievant is not satisfied with the resolution proposed at the informal level, s/he may,
within ten (10) working days of the receipt of such decision, file a formal written grievance with
his/her Supervisor, describing the grievance, the specific section(s) of this Agreement or County
rules, regulations, and/or policies allegedly violated, and the remedy requested. The Supervisor
may have a meeting with the grievant and within ten (10) working days of receiving the
grievance provide a written decision to the grievant.

If the Supervisor fails to respond within ten (10) working days of receiving the grievance, the
grievance, if non-monetary, shall be granted in the grievant's favor. 1f the grievance contains a
request for a monetary remedy, the grievance shall automatically advance to Level 1L

Level II, Tf the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered by the Supetvisor, the grievant
may, within ten (10) working days from the receipt of such decision, file a written appeal to the
Personnel Director. Within ten (10) working days of receipt of the written appeal, the Personnel
Director shall direct that the Grievance Board be convened at a place agreeable to the parties and
at a time not more than twenty (20) working days from the date of the notice directing that the
Grievance Board be convened. The procedure for the Grievance Board shall be previously



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 12 0of 44

agreed upon by the Union and the Employer. The majority decision by the Grievance Board is
final and binding.

Level ITI. In the event the Grievance Board is deadlocked, the grievance may be submitted to
arbitration for resolution. The grievant or the Union shall exercise the right to arbitration by
giving the Personnel Director written notice of intent to arbitrate within ten (10) working days
from the date of receipt of the Grievance Board's notification of deadlock at Level IL. If any
question arises as to the ability to arbitrate the grievance, and the grievant or the Union has
decided to proceed, such question will first be ruled upon by the arbitrator selected to hear the
dispute.

Within ten (10) working days after the Personnel Director receives the written notice of intent to
arbitrate, The Employer and the grievant or the Union will attempt to agree upon a mutually
acceptable arbitrator, and to obtain a commitment from such arbitrator to serve. If the parties are
unable to agree upon an arbitrator, or to obtain a commitment to serve from the agreed-upon
arbitrator within the ten (10) working day period, a request for a list of seven (7)) arbitrators may
be made by either party to the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service. Within five (5)
working days of receipt of the list, each party shall alternately strike names from the list, and the
name remaining shall be the arbitrator. The party to strike first shall be determined by a toss of
the coin. The parties shall be bound by the rules and procedures of the American Arbitration
Association in the selection of an arbitrator.

The arbitrator shall, thereafter, confer promptly with the parties; shall set and hold hearings; and
shall issue a written decision setting forth the arbitrator's findings of fact, conclusions of law, and
decision within thirty (30) working days from the date of the conclusion of all hearings on the
matter arbitrated. The arbitrator's written decision shall be consistent with the law and the terms
of this Agreement, and shall be final and binding upon the parties. The arbitrator's authority shall
be limited to the application and interpretation of the provisions of this Agreement and any
related rules, regulations, and policies of the Employer. No arbitrator shall have the power or
ability to modify, amend, or alter any terms or conditions of this Agreement.

6. ARBITRATION COSTS

a. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by the Employer and the
Union. Each party shall bear the costs of its own presentation including, but not limited
to, witness fees and expenses, preparation, pre- and post-hearing briefs, and legal fees, if
any.

b. Ifa court reporter is requested by either party, the requesting party shall pay the costs of
the reporter. If the record is transcribed, the requesting party will pay the transcription
costs unless the parties mutually agree to share the cost. Any party desiring a copy of the
transcription will pay the costs for the copy. If the arbitrator requires a reporter and
transcript, the parties will share the cost equally.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 13 of 44

7. JURISDICTION OF THE ARBITRATOR

The arbitrator shall decide all substantive and procedural issues. Upon request of either party,
and in the discretion of the arbitrator, the merits of a grievance and the substantive and
procedural issues arising in connection with the grievance shall be consolidated for hearing.
The decision of the arbitrator may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction.

8. GENERAL PROVISIONS

a. If the grievant fails to carry his/her grievance forward to the next level within the
prescribed time period, the grievance shall be considered settled based upon the decision
rendered at the most recent step utilized.

b. The grievant may be represented by a person of his/her choice at any level of this
procedure.

¢. Nothing contained herein shall preclude an Employee, with or without representation,
from bringing a matter not addressed herein through the chain of command to the
Personnel Director.

d. Proof of service shall be accomplished by certified mail or personal service evidenced by
a notarized affidavit of service.

9. EXCEPTIONS TO TIME LIMITS

The time limits set forth in this Article shall be strictly observed, unless extended by written
agreement of the Union and the Employer, or otherwise excused for just cause.

A grievance alleging errors in salary which are ongoing shall be deemed continuing and all
subsequent errors shall relate back to and be incorporated within the grievance alleging the errors
in the first instance.

Notwithstanding the expiration of this Agreement, any grievance filed prior to expiration may be
processed through the grievance procedure to resolution.

ARTICLE 18. JOB CLASSIFICATIONS / SALARIES

The job classes and corresponding rates of pay shown in Appendix A have been established by
formal action of the Board of Commissioners effective July 1, 2013. The rate of pay for each
class that is an exempt position under the Federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) shall be a
biweekly rate of pay which is a step in the range assigned to the job classification. Any change in
the job classification or rates of pay for job classification shall be subject to negotiations.

When payment is to be made for a period of less than a two week time period, the bi-weekly rate
of pay shall be converted to an hourly rate and the amount of compensation due to the Employee
shall be computed based on the number of hours worked using the hourly rate. The hourly rate



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 14 of 44

for Regular Full-Time Employees is based on a forty (40) hour workweek. Regular Part-Time
Employees will be paid the same hourly rate of pay established for the same job classification
established for Regular Full-Time Employees on a prorated basis based on actual hour worked.
The results shall be rounded up to the nearest penny.

Pay periods and paydays for Employees are paid on a bi-weekly basis. The standard established
workweek for Employees begins at 12:01 am on Monday and ends at 12:00 midnight on the
following Sunday. Alternate pay periods may be established by mutual agreement of the
Employee and the Supervisor, and with the approval of the Personnel Director and notification to
the Payroll Department.

Payday is on Friday of every other week. If payday falls on a holiday, Employees are paid on the
preceding workday. In the event that the Employee detects an error the Employee will notify the
Supervisor and supply proper backup supporting his/her claim. The Supervisor will then advise
the Payroll Department and the Employee will receive the adjusted amount on the next
paycheck.

Time Reporting. Recording of hours worked and/or Leave time taken by Employees is necessary
to provide an accurate basis for preparing paychecks, to ensure compliance with the federal and
state laws, and to maintain an effective and efficient cost accounting system. All Employees are
responsible for accurately completing their own daily time sheets. All Employees will record all
hours worked and all hours off on Leave; Sick, Vacation, or other Leave approved. The
Employee and the Employee's Supervisor or his/her designee must sign the time sheet before
being submitted to the Payroll Department.

EXTRA DUTIES

1. Bilingual Pay. An Employee who is required to use his/her bilingual skills as a function
of their job duties shall be entitled to two and one half percent (2.5%) of their base pay.

2. TAC Differential. The parties acknowledge that Terminal Agency Coordination (TAC)
may be assigned to a variety of different positions within the County. If the TAC duties
are assigned in writing by the department Supervisor to an Employee, the Employee so
assigned will receive an additional two and one half percent (2.5%) added to their base
pay for all hours worked for the duration of the assignment. This differential will be paid
for the period of time during which the Employee may be called upon to perform TAC
tasks and is not tied to the specific days on which the duties are actually performed. No
more than one Employee in each department may receive this differential for TAC duties
at any one time.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 15 of 44

ARTICLE 19. ACTING PAY

An Employee who is assigned additional responsibilities in a higher classification recognized
within the bargaining unit for a minimum of ten (10) consecutive working days or more shall be
entitled to temporary duty pay in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Employee's current rate
of pay in addition to the Employee's regular rate of pay for the duration of the assignment.

ARTICLE 20. MERIT INCREASE

Employees who maintain a performance evaluation of standard or better are eligible to receive
merit increase in pay. There are ten (10) steps in the salary range for cach job classification.
Performance Review Policy for Storey County (see Appendix B). Peer evaluations shall not be
considered in evaluating an Employee’s performance for purposes of this Article. All Merit
increases are subject to the final approval of the Personnel Director.

1. Upon each successive anniversary date, on the recommendation of the appointing
authority, annual merit increases shall be granted to the Employee in recognition of
receiving the following overall performance ratings of duties assigned to his/her
position:

a. An overall Below Expectation performance rating shall not be granted a step
advancement;

b. A three and one-half percent (3.5%) one-step pay increase in recognition of an
overall Meets or Exceeds Expectations performance rating for a maximum of
ten (10) Merit steps.

2. Merit increases not granted: If a Merit increase is not granted at time of eligibility,
the Supervisor shall inform the Employee in writing and state the reason(s) upon
which the decision was based, and provided a prescribed remedy to improve the
Employee’s performance. If within three (3) months the Employee has corrected the
deficiency, the Merit salary increase will be granted and paid from that date.

3. If an Employee has not been evaluated within thirty (30) days following his/her
anniversary date, a Merit increase will be granted retroactive to the anniversary date.
The Employee shall notify the Personnel Director in-writing that the evaluation has
not been done.

4. Parties to this Agreement shall re-open this Article during the course of this
Agreement to negotiate incorporating language to adjust the performance evaluation
and Merit increase process.

ARTICLE 21. RECLASSIFICATION

1. Entitlement. An Employee may submit a written request to his/her Supervisor seeking a
job reclassification study if s/he believes that his/her job description, specifications, duties



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 16 of 44

and responsibilities have changed, both in number and variety, as to cause a significant
and permanent workload and/or responsibility increase. The Employee's written request
shall include sufficient documentation in support of the request to enable the Personnel
Director to determine whether a job reclassification study is warranted. An Employee may
not submit more than one written request for a job reclassification study per twelve (12)
month period.

2. Procedures. A requesting Employee's Supervisor may submit a written request, or in the
event that the Supervisor fails or refuses to do so, the Employee may submit a written
request for a job re-classification study to the Personnel Director. The Personnel Director
will reasonably attempt to conclude the investigation within ninety (90) days after receipt
of the written request and provide the Supervisor and the Employee with a written
decision, which shall include the reasons supporting such decision. If approved, the re-
classification shall be effective as of the date of the written decision provided to the
Employee and the Supervisor. A regular Employee who is promoted to a new
classification will move to that step in the range which provides not less than a five
percent (5%) pay increase, not to exceed the top step in the range for the class.

3. Dispute over classification. In the event that a dispute arises regarding the Personnel
Director’s decision whether to conduct a job reclassification study or regarding the
Personnel Director’s decision reached at the conclusion of the job reclassification study,
the dispute shall be adjudicated as a grievance in accordance with Article 17 of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 22. COST OF LIVING
1. For years in which a PERS contribution rate increase occurs, each Employee shall
receive a Cost of Living increase (Cost of Living Adjustment COLA) equal to fifty percent
(50%) of any PERS increase for that year (see Figure 1).

2. For years in which no PERS contribution rate increase occurs (see Figure 1):

a. Bach Employee who is capped in the ten-step salary schedule shall receive a Cost
of Living increase equal to two percent (2%) for that year;

b. Each Employee who is not capped in the ten-step salary schedule shall not be
granted a Cost of Living increase for that year.

EMPLOYEE YEAR A YEAR B
PERS Contribution No PERS Contribution
Rate Increase Rate Increase
Capped Employee 50% PERS 2% COLA
Non-Capped Employee 50% PERS None

Figure 1: The table corresponds to Article 22, Subsections 1 and 2. The contribution rate to the Public
Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) is revisited during each Legislative session.




AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 - 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 17 of 44

ARTICLE 23. HOURS OF WORK

Employees are expected to be available and ready for work at the beginning of their assigned
shifts and at the end of their scheduled rest and meal periods. Preparation for rest and meal
periods as well as the end of the workday is work time. Rest and meal periods include the time
spent going to and from the place where the break is taken.

Each Regular Full-Time Employee is assigned a regular schedule of forty (40) hours per
workweek. A standards workweek consists of five (5), eight (8) hour shifts. Supervisors may
schedule Employees an alternative work schedule when appropriate. If the Supervisor chooses to
schedule Employees to an alternative work schedule the affected Employees must sign an
alternative work schedule agreement. Each Regular Part-Time Employee is assigned a regular
schedule by the Supervisor. All schedules are subject to the approval of the Personnel Director.

Any changes to an Employee's permanent regularly scheduled workweek shall require a thirty
(30) day written notice to the Employee, with the exception of a drastic change in workload or if
the change in schedule is mutually agreed upon by both the Employee and the Supervisor.

Regular Employees shall receive one (1) fifteen (15) minute paid rest period near the midpoint of
each half of the workday. No Employee shall work more than four (4) consecutive hours without
either a rest period or a meal period. Rest periods may not be delayed to the end of the workday
to enable an Employee to leave work early.

Employees that work more than four (4) consecutive hours, including a rest period, shall be
given a minimum thirty (30) minute meal period before beginning the sixth (6™ hour of work.
Employees working an alternate work schedule will take a minimum thirty (30) minute meal
period near the midpoint of the workday and a ten (10) minute rest period per each three-and-
one-half (3%) hours of work. The meal period for Employees in the Public Works Department
shall be one-half (1/2) hour, near the midpoint of the workday. Meal periods will be
uninterrupted and unpaid, during which no work is performed.

Work shall be scheduled in a manner which allows Employees rest periods and meal periods.
The Supervisor, in a manner which allows maximum public access to County services, shall
schedule rest and meal periods. Provided Employees receive the rest periods and lunch periods to
which they are entitled, schedules and lengths of rest and meal periods may be adjusted from
time to time to meet the needs of individual Employees and to respond to changes in department
workload. All schedules are subject to the approval of the Personnel Director.

Employees working in the Communication Class Series and who have signed a waiver of breaks
are excluded from this Article as it pertains to breaks and meal periods.

An Employee shall receive shift differential pay, in addition to base pay, for all regularly
scheduled hours worked on a regularly scheduled shift if fifty percent (50%) or more of the
regularly scheduled hours fall between 1800 hours and 0600 hours. The differential rate shall be
five percent (5%) of the Employee’s base pay.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 18 of 44

ARTICLE 24. OVERTIME COMPENSATION

Overtime work shall be offered to eligible and qualified Employees in the classification
involved, in the order of their seniority. If the Employee declines the offer of overtime work,
such overtime work shall be offered to the next Employee in ascending order of seniority. Such
rotation shall be on a continuous basis, that is, the Employee next in line of seniority to the
Employee who was offered the immediately preceding period of overtime work shall be first
offered the current overtime work.

Employees may be required to remain on-duty beyond their regularly scheduled hours. Overtime
shall be compensated at the rate of one-and-one-half (1.5) times the regular hourly
compensation. Overtime will be earned in increments of one-quarter (1/4) hours of time worked.
Overtime shall be paid for hours worked, except as provided under Callback, in excess of forty
(40) hours in one work week.

Paid Annual Leave, Sick Leave, and approved Holidays shall be considered work-time for
purposes of calculating overtime.

An Employee's Supervisor shall specifically authorize all overtime.

ARTICLE 25. CALL BACK

Any Employee who is required to return to work by his/her Supervisor in accordance with NRS
286 shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours pay at one-and-one-half (1.5) times the regular
hourly rate. Time worked in addition to the initial two (2) hours shall be compensated at one-
and-one-half (1.5) times the regular rate of pay for all time actually worked.

ARTICLE 26. STANDBY

An Employee is in Standby status when s/he is:

1. Directed by the Employee’s Supervisor or the County Manager to remain available
for notification to work during specified hours;

2. Prepared to work if the need arises; and
3. Able to report to work within forty (40) minutes.

An Employee is entitled to receive additional pay of $2.00 for every hour if s/he is in Standby
status or $3.00 for every hour s/he is in Standby status on a Holiday.

When an Employee begins the performance of his/her regular duties after receiving notice to
work, s/he ceases to be on Standby status and qualifies for straight-time or overtime pay,
whichever is applicable, for the actual time worked. Upon completion of the work, s/he returns to
Standby status for the remainder of the time s/he has been directed to be available to work.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 19 of 44

An Employee in Standby status is required to abide by any and all applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules, regulations, policies, and procedures governing on-duty conduct.

This Article shall apply only to Employees in classified positions in the Community
Development Department, and Public Works roads, water and sewer. All others shall require the
approval of the County Manager.

ARTICLE 27. VACATION (ANNUAL LEAVE)

Regular Employees continually scheduled to work an average of twenty-one (21) hours or more
per week will accrue Annual Leave. Employees do not earn extra Annual Leave for overtime
hours worked. Accrual of Annual Leave for eligible Employees shall be as follows:

Date of hire to 5 years =(.0577 per hour on paid Status
Completed 5 years to Term of Employment = 0.0769 per hour on paid Status

Vacation credits shall be accrued for each pay period the Employee is in full pay status for a
major portion of his/her regularly scheduled biweekly hours. Hours of Vacation shall be
accumulated, provided that no Employee may accumulate earned Vacation in excess of two
hundred and forty (240) hours. Not more than this number of Vacation hours may be taken
within any calendar year, subject to staffing requirements. An Employee shall be paid at his/her
regular hourly rate for each hour of Vacation time taken. Vacation taken during a biweekly
period shall be charged before Vacation earned during that pay period is credited.

Holidays, as enumerated in this Agreement, occurring within the Vacation period will not be
counted against Vacation hours. An Employee becoming ill while on Annual Leave shall have
leave charged to Sick Leave upon request and upon presentation of proper documentation.

Employees voluntarily separated from the Employer shall lose all rights for computing prior
service upon re-employment by the Employer.

Upon termination of employment, each Employee shall be compensated at his/her regular hourly
rate for his/her total Vacation hours accrued, subject to the Employer's limitations.

Vacation preferences shall be granted in order of seniority. For purposes of this Section, seniority
shall be based on total of years/time in County service.

Employees shall request Vacation leave by providing a minimum of fourteen (14) calendar days
notice to the Supervisor or Department Head. An exception to this fourteen (14) calendar day
requirement may be granted by the Supervisor or his/her designee after considering the
circumstances that warrant such exception and the convenience and conventionality of the
department.

If an Employee, on or before October 15th, requests Annual Leave in writing and his/her request
is denied for any reason at any time, s/he is entitled to payment for any Annual Leave in excess
of two hundred and forty (240) hours that s/he requested to take and which s/he would otherwise



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 20 of 44

forfeit as the result of the denial of his/her request. The payment for the Employee's unused
Annual Leave is capped at sixty (60) hours per calendar year and must be made to him/her no
later than January 3 1st.

ARTICLE 28. SICK LEAVE & BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

Sick Leave hours shall accrue for each pay period the Employee is in full pay status for a
majority of the Employee's scheduled biweekly hours. Accrual of Sick Leave for eligible
Employees shall be 0.0577 per hour of paid status from date of hire to term of employment.
Accrued Sick Leave hours shall be available for use by eligible Employees at the end of three (3)
months of continuous employment.

Sick Leave shall be granted when the Employee is incapacitated due to illness, injury,
pregnancy, or childbirth. Sick Leave shall be granted when the Employee is quarantined,
receiving required medical or dental service or examinations, or upon injury or illness of the
Employee's spouse, children, parents, or any other legal dependent. The Employee must notify
the Supervisor prior to taking Sick Leave. If an Employee does not have adequate accrued Sick
Leave time, the Employee may be granted the use of other accrued Leave time, if any, in licu
thereof, In no case, however, will Sick Leave time be used or granted as Vacation time.

Bereavement Leave shall be granted to any Regular Full-Time or Part-Time Employee who must
be absent from work upon the death of and/or to attend the funeral of a family member within the
third degree of consanguinity or affinity, up to a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours of
Bereavement Leave per each occurrence, and shall not be charged to the Employee’s
accumulated Sick Leave. Bereavement Leave in excess of twenty-four (24) hours may be
charged to accumulated Sick Leave upon the recommendation of the Supervisor and approval of
the Personnel Officer.

Employees may donate Sick Leave to those Employees that do not have adequate accrued Sick
Leave as provided in Article 33 governing Catastrophic Sick Leave.

Sick Leave shall be charged on the basis of actual time used to the nearest quarter (1/4) hour.
Holidays occurring during Sick Leave periods shall not be counted as Sick Leave time. Sick
Leave taken during a biweekly pay period shall be charged before Sick Leave earned during that
pay period is credited.

An Employee requesting Sick Leave lasting longer than three (3) continuous work days may be
required to provide the Supervisor with evidence acceptable to the Supervisor to substantiate the
request.

Upon termination of employment, other than for just cause, an Employee who has accrued a
minimum of three hundred and sixty (360) hours of Sick Leave shall be compensated for his/her
total Sick Leave hours at the following rates up to a maximum amount of $5,000.00.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 21 of 44

SICK LEAVE BUY-OUT

Years of Continuous Service Rate of Pay

5 years but less than 10 years 12.5 cents on the Dollar
10 years but less than 15 years 25.0 cents on the Dollar
15 years but less than 20 years 40.0 cents on the Dollar
20 years to termination of employment 50.0 cents on the Dollar

Regular Full-Time Employees using sixteen (16) hours or less of any combination of Sick and/or
Family Sick Leave in a calendar year shall receive eight (8) hours of “Well Day”* leave with
straight-pay. “Well Day” Leave shall not be charged to the Employee’s accrued Sick Leave or
Annual Leave. “Well Days” not taken within one (1) calendar year of accrual shall be forfeited.

*The “Well Day” clause shall become effective January I, 2014 and is scheduled to
“sunset” on December 31, 2015, unless reviewed and extended by mutual agreement of
the Board of County Commissioners and the Union.

ARTICLE 29. CATASTROPHIC SICK LEAVE

1. Key Definitions

a.

“Catastrophe” means the Employee is unable to perform the duties of his/her
position or a modified duty assignment because of a serious illness or accident
which is life threatening or which will require a lengthy convalescence.

“Life Threatening” means a condition which is diagnosed by a physician as
creating a substantial risk of death.

“Lengthy Convalescence” means a period of disability which the attending
physician determines will exceed six (6) weeks.

2. Request for Catastrophic Leave

a.

Catastrophic Leave may not be used when the subject of the catastrophe is a
member of the Employee’s family. Catastrophic leave is limited to catastrophes
which befall the Employee.

An Employee may not receive any leave from the Catastrophic Leave account
until s/he has used all his/her accrued Annual, Sick, and other paid Leave.

An Employee who is himself/herself affected by a catastrophe as defined in
subsection (1) may request in writing that a specified number of hours of
Catastrophic Leave be granted.

The request form will be made available at the Personnel Office and must be



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 22 of 44

completed by the Employee, except in cases where an Employee is unable to do
SO.

e. The maximum number of hours that may be granted to an Employee shall be four
hundred and eighty (480) hours per rolling calendar year. Any requests for an
exception to this limit must be reviewed and approved by the County Manager,
the Personnel Director, and the Union President if the Employee is a represented
member of the Union.

f. An Employee may not receive any hours from the Catastrophic Leave account
until s/he has worked for the County for at least two (2) years and has made the
minimum annual contribution to the Catastrophic Leave account.

g. An Employee who fails to qualify for Catastrophic Leave pursuant to the
requirements set forth in Subsection (f) above may receive Catastrophic Leave if
eligible Employees independently contribute a designated number of hours in
eight (8) hour increments to the non-qualifying Employee’s specific Catastrophic
event. The receipt of such Catastrophic Leave shall be subject to the remaining
requirements set forth in this Article.

h. An Employee who receives donated hours is entitled to payment for the Leave at
a rate no greater than his/her own rate of pay.

i. A request for Catastrophic Leave, inclusive of exceptions to the aforementioned,
must be approved by the Personnel Director and the Union President if the
Employee is a represented member of the Union.

3. The minimum annual contribution to the Catastrophic Leave account shall be eight (8)
hours per rolling calendar year. An Employee must have a combined balance of at least
two hundred and forty (240) hours of Sick and Annual Leave on the books to contribute
to the account.

4. Any hours of Annual or Sick Leave that have been transferred from an Employee’s
account to the Catastrophic Leave account may not be returned or restored to that
Employee. This section does not prevent the Employee from receiving Leave pursuant to
Section (2) of this Article.

5. All Employees of the County who are eligible to use Sick Leave, whether or not the
positions they occupy are part of the Storey County Employee’s Association, AFSCME,
may use the Leave from the Catastrophic Leave account and/or donate to this account,
subject to the remaining requirements set forth in this Article, unless such Employees are
covered by another bargaining unit’s collective bargaining agreement.

6. Annual and Sick Leave will be transferred at the rate of one (1) hour for one (1) hour
credit donated consistent with the provisions of NRS 245. Donated time will be
converted to a dollar amount based upon the donating Employee’s current base hourly



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 23 of 44

rate of pay. When an Employee is granted use of Catastrophic Leave, Employee’s
current base hourly rate of pay by the total number of hours granted.

7. Review of Status of Catastrophe; Termination of Leave; Disposition of Hours Not Used:

a. The Personnel Director or his/her designee shall review the status of the
catastrophe of the Employee and determine when the catastrophe no longer exists,
based on appropriate medical documentation.

b. The Personnel Director or his/her designee shall not grant any hours of Leave
from the Catastrophic Leave account after the catastrophe ceases to exist, or the
Employee who is receiving the Leave resigns or his/her employment with the
County is terminated.

¢. Any Leave which is received from the Catastrophic Leave account which was not
used at the time the catastrophe ceases to exist or upon the resignation or
termination of the employment of the Employee must be returned to the
Catastrophic Leave account.

8. Maintenance of Records on Catastrophic Leave. Records will be maintained by the
Payroll Department under the direction of the Comptroller. The Union may request in
writing information concerning the use of the Catastrophic Leave account provided that
any request for medical information be accompanied by a written release signed by the
affected Employee(s).

9. Substantiation of Catastrophe. The Personnel Director or his/her designee may require
written substantiation of the catastrophe and expected duration by a physician of his/her
choosing. Said physician shall be of equal or greater qualification as the treating
physician. The cost of such written substantiation shall be borne by the Employer. Visits
to said physician shall be on County time.

ARTICLE 30. LEAVES OF ABSENCE

Leaves of Absence are available to accommodate the compelling needs of Employees when
other forms of allowable absence are not available.

1. In all cases, the County's Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) shall apply as a
minimum, if applicable.

2. Leaves of Absence with pay may be granted for medical purposes. Use of accrued Sick
Leave (Leave with pay) may be approved in cases of sickness, injury, pregnancy,
childbirth or adoption. If absence is over five (5) days duration, it becomes a Medical
Leave of Absence and must meet criteria for Leave of Absence as well as criteria for
general use of Sick Leave. A doctor's statement may be required when applicable. Upon
exhausting accrued Sick Leave, an Employee may request a Medical Leave without pay.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 24 of 44

3. The Supervisor, for medical disability when an Employee has exhausted paid Sick Leave
or for personal reasons, may grant a Leave of Absence without pay. Policies regarding
each are as follows:

a.

Medical Leaves of Absence without pay may be granted in cases of sickness,
injury, pregnancy, childbirth or adoption. Medical/disability Leaves of Absence
may be granted for a justifiable period of time up to ninety (90) calendar days.
Extensions may be granted up to a total of one hundred and eighty (180) calendar
days.

4. Personal Leaves of Absence without pay for purposes other than medical/disability may
be granted at the discretion of the Supervisor, and are subject to approval by the
Personnel Director.

a.

An Employee who requests a Leave of Absence for Vacation or similar purposes
is required to exhaust accrued Vacation time prior to the start of an unpaid Leave
of Absence of more than five (5) work days. An Employee who requests a Leave
of Absence for personal emergency or similar purposes is not required to exhaust
Vacation time prior to the Leave. Whether the reason for the Leave of Absence
requires prior use of accrued Vacation shall be at the discretion of the Supervisor.
However, in all cases where a Leave in excess of ninety (90) calendar days is
requested, Vacation accrual must first be exhausted.

Personal Leaves of Absence without pay may be granted for a maximum of six
(6) months.

5. Effect of Leave of Absence without Pay on Employee Benefits.

a.

Time spent on an unpaid Leave of Absence of over thirty (30) calendar days will
not be counted as time employed in determining an Employee's eligibility for
benefits that accrue on the basis of length of employment.

An Employee on an unpaid Leave of Absence of over thirty (30) calendar days
will not accrue Vacation or Sick Leave during the Leave of Absence.

An Employee on an unpaid Leave of Absence of over thirty (30) calendar days
shall not be entitled to receive Employer-paid group insurance premiums, but is
entitled to assume the premium payments if the insurance policy allows. The
Employee must agree in writing to assume the premium payment.

Upon notifying the Employer of his/her intention to return to employment, an
Employee shall be reinstated to his/her original job.

Upon return from any unpaid Leave of Absence over thirty (30) calendar days, the
Employee's anniversary date will be adjusted by the amount of time out of pay
status.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 25 of 44

6. Procedures and Responsibilities.

a. Employees seeking Leave of Absence are required to:

1.

Notify the Supervisor in writing as far as possible in advance of the need for a
Leave of Absence.

Obtain and complete an Absence Request form and submit it for approval to
the Supervisor.

Provide support documentation such as a physician's written statement,
military orders, adoption papers, etc., if applicable.

If approved during the Leave, maintain contact with the Supervisor regarding
prognosis and/or possible return date. Notify Supervisor at earliest possible
date of intended date of return.

If an extension of Leave of Absence becomes necessary, a written request
must be submitted to the Supervisor prior to the expiration of the Leave of
Absence.

b. The Employee's Supervisor will review the absence request and forward it to the
Personnel Director for approval.

1.

The Supervisor will review and act upon a request for Leave of Absence in
consideration of the following factors:

a. The purpose for which the Leave is requested;
b. The length of time the Employee will be away; and

c. The effect that Leave will have on the ability of the department to
carry out its responsibilities.

The Supervisor will ensure that a properly coded time sheet is submitted
biweekly to the payroll department during the duration of the approved Leave.

The Supervisor may approve up to twenty-four (24) hours of Leave to an
Employee for emergency Leave, without loss of any accrued time.

ARTICLE 31. ON-THE-JOB INJURY

In the event an Employee is absent from work due to an accepted job-related injury, at the sole
discretion of the Personnel Officer, the Employer may pay the Employee the difference between
awarded Temporary Total Disability (TTD) payments and the Employee's full salary for a period
of sixty (60) calendar days; however, such payment must be made by Employer to an Employee



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 26 of 44

who has suffered a job-related injury as a result of workplace violence or during the performance
of a hazardous duty in response to an officially declared County emergency. Such payment may
be extended an additional sixty (60) days at the sole discretion of the Personnel Officer unless
the following provisions apply:

1. The Employee is able to perform his/her regular duties;

2. The Employee is able to perform temporary modified duties; or

3. The Employee becomes qualified to receive permanent disability compensation.
ARTICLE 32. LEAVE FOR CIVIC DUTIES

Temporary Leave at full salary will be provided to each Employee for jury duty, court
appearances, or administrative proceedings arising out of the Employee's employment, selective
service examinations, and voting. Leave may be granted for court appearances or administrative
proceedings, not related to employment, in which the Employee is a party or a witness.

Employees subpoenaed or otherwise required to appear in court or at administrative proceedings
arising out of his/her employment and which appearances occur outside his/her regularly
scheduled shift shall be paid one-and-one-half (1.5) his/her regular rate of pay for the time spent
at such appearances. Juror and witness fees received by the Employee shall be forfeited to the
Employer.

ARTICLE 33. MILITARY LEAVE

Any Employee who is an active member of the United States Army Reserve, Naval Reserve,
Marine Corps Reserve, Coast Guard Reserve, Air Force, Reserve, or the Nevada National Guard
must be relieved of his/her duties, upon his/her request, to serve under orders without loss of
regular compensation for a period of not more than fifteen (15) working days in any one (H
calendar year. Employees may choose to use Annual Leave and compensatory time before taking
Leave without pay. The Employer cannot require that Vacation or other personal leave be used.

Employees returning from Military Leave are entitled to any benefits determined by seniority
that they had when their Leave began and to any benefits which would have accrued had they
remained continuously employed. The Employer must count the years of Military Leave as if
they were years of actual work to determine the accrual rate of Annual and Sick Leave, and to
determine the rate of pay if the rate is based on seniority. Employees do not have to be allowed
to accrue Annual and Sick Leave while on Military Leave, unless other Employees are allowed
to do so.

On completion of the period of military service, returning Employees must provide notice of the
intent to return to employment. The length of time that the Employee has to provide notice

depends upon the amount of time spent in service as established by Federal law.

Employees' reemployment rights shall be governed by Federal law.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 27 of 44

ARTICLE

34. HOLIDAYS

1. Holidays. Recognized Holidays, in accordance with NRS 236, shall be as follows:

New Year's Day (January 1st)

Martin Luther King's Day (Third Monday in January)

President's Day (Third Monday in February)

Memorial Day (Last Monday in May)

Independence Day (July 4th)

Labor Day (First Monday in September)

Nevada Day (Last Friday in October)

Veteran's Day (November 11th)

Thanksgiving Day (Fourth Thursday in November)

Day after Thanksgiving (Friday following the Fourth Thursday in November)
Christmas Day (December 25th)

Any day that may be appointed by the President of the United States for public fast,
Thanksgiving, or as a legal observed holiday, except Columbus Day.

a. If a holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday becomes the observed holiday.

b. Ifaholiday falls on a Sunday, the following Monday becomes the observed holiday.

One floating holiday per calendar year to be pre-approved by the Employee’s Supervisor.

2. Holiday compensation. Each Regular Full-Time Employee shall receive Holiday compensation.
The Holiday compensation shall be equivalent to the Employee's regularly scheduled shift — eight
(8), ten (10), or twelve (12) hours. If the Employee is scheduled for six (6) twelve (12) hour shifts
and one (1) eight (8) hour shift, the Holiday compensation will be twelve (12) hours.

a. Holidays worked - regular shift. An Employee required to work his/her regularly

scheduled shift on a recognized Holiday shall receive regular pay PLUS additional
Holiday compensation computed at time and one-half (1.5) of straight-time for the
regularly scheduled shift, the combination thereof equaling two and one-half (2.5)
compensation.

b. Holidays worked - overtime. An Employee required to work overtime on a recognized

Holiday shall receive overtime compensation computed at one and one-half (1.5) of
straight-time pay for the overtime worked, pursuant to Article 24 of this Agreement.

3. Holidays not worked. Employees who are not required to work on a recognized Holiday shall
receive Holiday compensation equivalent to one (1) regularly scheduled shift.

a.

Except for Employees in the Communications Series, if an Employee’s regularly
scheduled day off falls on a Holiday or observed holiday, the Employee will be granted
one (1) shift off with pay during the workweek of the Holiday. The day of that workweek
to be taken off is subject to scheduling and upon mutual agreement of the Employee and
the Supervisor.

If the regularly scheduled day off of a Communications Series Employee falls on a
Holiday, the Employee may elect to take one (1) regularly scheduled shift off in the same
workweek, in lieu of Holiday pay, as mutually agreed between the Employee and
Supervisor.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 28 of 44

5. Compensation for part-time employees. Regular Part-Time Employees shall receive holiday
compensation based on their regularly scheduled shift.

6. Pay status. In order to receive holiday compensation, an Employee must be in pay status
immediately before and after the holiday.

ARTICLE 35. LONGEVITY

An Employee who has completed three (3) or more full consecutive years of uninterrupted
regular employment with the County prior to July 1, 1997, shall receive Longevity payment.

The payment shall be an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the Employee’s current base rate
of pay; base pay in this area of the contract is recognized as a 40-hour workweek for the Public
Works Series Employee, and 35-hour workweek for the Administrative Series Employee, even if
the Employee works a 40-hour workweek, for each full year of uninterrupted service, subject to
the terms and conditions set forth in the County’s Personnel Policies, Compensation Plan,
Section 5.15.4, Maximum Amount of Longevity. Payment shall be paid biweekly based on the
current base rate of pay.

At the beginning of any fiscal year in which the number of Employees receiving lump sum
longevity pay becomes two (2) or less, the receipt of lump sum Longevity pay ceases to exist and
any remaining eligible Employee shall be placed on an adjusted biweekly salary schedule. As of
July 1%, 2010, all Employees qualified to receive Longevity are on an adjusted biweekly salary
schedule.

In the event that the County alters or amends the terms, conditions, method and/or calculations of
the payment of Longevity pay currently set forth in its Personnel Policies, Compensation Plan,
Section 5.15, Longevity Pay, under which eligible non-bargaining unit Employees participate,
eligible bargaining unit Employees covered by this Article shall be afforded the same
opportunity to participate on the same basis as non-bargaining unit Employees. Elected Officials
Longevity is subject to NRS 245.044, except the Justice of the Peace whose Longevity is
provided through County Ordinance and Resolution.

ARTICLE 36. PAY AND EXPENSES FOR EDUCATION, TRAINING & LICENSING

The Employer shall reimburse an Employee who must obtain a license/certification to advance
through his/her job-classification series or who must obtain a renewal or re-certification to
maintain his/her current job for the license or certification or the renewal or re-certification fee.
This shall be subject to prior review by the Employee’s Supervisor and approval by the
Personnel Director.

ARTICLE 37. EDUCATION INCENTIVE
Upon mutual agreement of the Employee and Employer, the Employee, subject to prior approval
of the Employee's Supervisor and the Personnel Director, may pursue additional education. All

mutual agreements that contain compensation and reimbursements must be in writing.

1. If the Employer mandates the education, the Employer shall pay all related costs



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 29 of 44

including compensation for the time spent in the class.

a.

Training and education which is required for the Employee to maintain his/her
licenses, certifications, and credentials for his/her current job classification, and
which is necessary for the Employee to maintain the minimum qualifications for
his/her current job classification, and which is approved by the Supervisor or
Department Head, shall be paid for by the Employer and shall not be subject to
the following provisions in this Article. Expenses shall include textbooks and
other materials required for the required training and education. The Employee
shall receive the regular rate of pay during training and education which takes
place during the 40-hour workweek period.

2. If the education is optional, the Employer may elect to compensate by providing
reimbursement for costs or paying all related costs and/or time spent in class. Prior
mutual written agreement between the Employee, the Employee’s Supervisor, and the
Personnel Director is required.

a.

The training must be related to the required skill or education for the Employee’s
current position or to a logical career path with the Employer.

Only a Regular Full-Time Employee is eligible for reimbursement for course
work after successful completion of the probationary period. Further eligibility
may be determined by the Department Head and the Personnel Director.

The Employer may provide up to three thousand dollars ($3,000) Education
assistance to the Employee for each fiscal year. There will be no reimbursement if
the costs are assumed by any other institution, scholarship, or grant-in-aid. The
Employee is responsible for providing proof that s/he completed the course with a
minimum grade of “B” eighty percent (80%). If the course is of a nature such that
no grade is given (i.e., pass or fail), the Employee must provide to the Employer a
certificate of completion or other official documentation showing satisfactory
passage of the course.

Education assistance shall include tuition, course fees, and required textbooks.
Other items such as required calculators and lab tools may also be reimbursed in
accordance with this Section when approved by the Department Head. While
courses shall normally be taken on the Employee’s own personal time, exceptions
may be granted by the Department Head when the Employee’s absence from
work will cause no adverse impacts to his/her duties and other Employees in the
workplace. The decision of the Department Head shall be subject to approval by
the Personnel Director and County Manager.

Employees who do not complete the course with a notice of “satisfactory”, or
grade of “B” eighty percent (80%) or better must reimburse the Employer for the
full amount of the assistance provided.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 30 of 44

f. Employees who voluntarily terminate their employment with the Employer
(County) will be required to pay back the Employer for all optional education
assistance exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) provided by the Employer
within the past five (5) years of employment. The amount owed will be deducted
from funds owed to the Employee for Sick Leave and other extra pay
reimbursement at termination. Funds owed will not be deducted from remaining
payroll funds owed to the Employee. If there are insufficient funds to cover the
required reimbursement, the Employee will be required to pay the Employer/
County the remaining amount owed within thirty (30) days of the date of
termination.

g. Each Employee requesting Educational assistance shall complete and sign an
Education Reimbursement Agreement that complies with the provisions of this
Article.

h. If mutually agreed upon between the Employee, Department Head, Personnel
Director, and the County Manager, additional Education assistance may be
provided.

ARTICLE 38. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE.

1.

The Employer shall reimburse Employees the cost of required uniform clothing. This
shall include, but not be limited to, required shirts, jackets, and other clothing containing
County logos, insignias, related lettering, etc. The cost for reimbursement shall be borne
by the Department requiring the purchase or wearing of uniform clothing.
Reimbursement shall be subject to receipts or other proof of purchase documentation.

The Employer will furnish such protective devices as goggles, safety shoes/boots, rubber
boots and gloves, and all other equipment necessary to protect Employees from industrial
injury and health hazards. The Employer will replace all protective devices on an as
needed basis when the Employer determines they are worn out, are no longer serviceable,
or have been grossly contaminated. All Safety equipment will conform to all current
safety standards such as, but not limited to, OSHA, MSHA, etc.

The Employer shall provide all Regular Full-Time Employees in classified positions in
Public Works roads, water, and sewer, a clothing allowance of three hundred fifty dollars
($350.00) annually. This allowance shall be paid in two (2) equal lump sum payments,
one on the first pay period in June of each year and the second on the first pay period of
December of each year; OR, upon agreement between the Employee and his/her
Supervisor, the Employee may elect to be reimbursed up to a maximum of four hundred
dollars ($400.00) annually with provided receipts and prior agreement between him/her
and the Supervisor.

Where steel-toed or safety footwear is required for County duty, including requirements
by OSHA or MSHA, the Employer will provide a footwear allowance to the Employee of
up to one hundred fifty dollars ($150.00) every two (2) years based upon receipts or other



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 31 of 44

documentation to reimburse the Employee for the difference in price between steel-toed
equipment and footwear and similar acceptable footwear without steel-toe protection.
The two (2) year period will be calculated from the date of the Employee last received a
footwear reimbursement of the full one hundred and fifty dollars ($150.00) or received
that amount cumulatively; provided that the Employee will receive up to the full
reimbursement at any time his/her steel-toed or safety footwear is damaged by work-
related duty so as to render the footwear unserviceable (excluding normal wear and tear
as determined by the Department Head or Supervisor). The Department Head or
Supervisor shall identify the positions which are eligible for reimbursement. Footwear
purchased under this Section must comply with applicable safety standards established by
the County or with OSHA or MSHA standards.

Upon approval by the Supervisor, the Employer shall reimburse a Regular Full-Time
Employee in a classified position in Public Works roads, water, or sewet, for the costs of
repairing or replacing watches or prescription eye glasses/contact lenses which are lost,
damaged, or stolen while the Employee is in the performance of his/her duties, provided
that there is notification to the Supervisor within seven (7) business days. Reimbursement
amounts shall be limited to the actual replacement value for prescription eyewear, and
fifty dollars ($50.00) per claim for watches. An Employee may only make a claim up to
one hundred seventy five dollars ($175.00) for each fiscal year.

ARTICLE 39. SENIORITY

1.

County Seniority . County seniority shall be calculated on the basis of calendar days of
continuous service since the date of hire for Employees hired on or before June 30, 2005.
County seniority shall be calculated on a prorated basis based on actual hours scheduled
to be worked since the date of hire for Employees hired on or after July 1, 2005.

Job classification seniority. Job classification seniority shall be calculated oil the basis of
calendar days of continuous service since the date of appointment to the job classification
for Employees hired on or before June 30, 2005. Job classification seniority shall be
calculated on a prorated basis based on actual hours scheduled to be worked since the
date of appointment to the job classification for Employees hired on or after July 1, 2005.

Break in service. Occurs when an Employee resigns, is discharged for cause or retires.
However, County seniority accrued prior to layoff shall be continued upon recall and
reemployment. Job classification seniority may be continued provided the Employee is
rehired into the same job classification. Should there be a voluntary interruption or break
in service, seniority shall commence as of the date of last entrance into County service.
Approved Leaves of Absence shall not be considered as breaks in service.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

Page 32 of 44

ARTICLE 40. LAYOFF & RECALL

The Employer shall determine the department that will be affected by layoff. The Employer shall
determine reductions in staff levels that will have the least detrimental effect on department
operations and will specify layoffs accordingly. County seniority will be the determining factor
when identifying which Employee(s) are to be laid-off.

LAYOFF:

1. Notice to Union. Whenever it is determined that a layoff of Employee(s) may occur
because of lack of work or funds, the Personnel Officer shall give written notice of the
layoff, including the specific reason(s) such action is necessary and the estimated length
of the layoff period, to the Union at least seven (7) calendar days prior to the effective
date of notification to Employees.

2. Notice to Employee(s). Employees to be laid-off shall be given written notice of such
layoff at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date.

3. Sequence of layoff. Within the job classification(s) selected for layoff within the
departments, the following sequence of layoff shall occur:

a.

Temporary and probationary Employees within the job classification selected for
layoff shall be laid-off first.

Thereafter, the Employee(s) with the least County seniority in the job
classification(s) selected for layoff shall be laid off next.

Regular Employees shall be laid off only after those layoffs within Subsection (a)
of this subsection have been exhausted.

4. Bumping rights shall be exercised in the following sequence of steps:

a.

The Employee may replace an Employee in the same job classification, in another
department, if the Employee has more County seniority than the Employee to be
displaced.

If the Employee is unable to exercise bumping rights at Step (a), the Employee
may replace an Employee in a lower job classification within the same job series
in the same department, if the Employee has more County seniority than the
Employee to be displaced.

If the Employee is unable to exercise bumping rights at Step (b), the Employee
may replace an Employee in a lower job classification within another job series in
the same or other department, if s/he has more County seniority than the
Employee to be displaced and meets the minimum qualifications for the other
position.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 33 0of 44

i. An Employee electing to exercise bumping rights shall assume the grade
of the Employee being bumped and the step closest to the bumping
Employee's existing salary at the time of the layoff.

ii. Any Employee who is bumped shall have the right to exercise bumping
rights in accordance with the provisions of this section. The decision to
bump must be submitted in writing within seven (7) calendar days of
notification.

ili. Whenever it is determined that a layoff of Employees shall occur, the
Employer agrees to supply current County seniority lists and job
classification seniority lists to the Union for the jobs being affected.

RECALL:

1.

The name of an Employee who has been laid-off shall be placed on the re-employment
list and shall be recalled in the inverse order in which the Employee was laid-off. Persons
on such a list will be offered appointment to an opening in the job classification or
equated job classification or any vacancy for which the Employee is qualified and no new
Employee will be hired until all qualified Employees on layoff status desiring to return to
work shall have been offered the position. The Employee must provide the Employer
with any address change while waiting for recall.

Notice of recall will be made in writing by certified mail to the Employee's address of
record.

An Employee who is sent notice of recall must respond within ten (10) working days of
the receipt of the notice of recall.

An Employee recalled to his former or equated job classification must report for
reemployment on the date established by the Supervisor or be considered to have
abandoned his recall rights so long as said date is beyond ten (10) working days from the
date of receipt of the notice of recall.

An Employee recalled to a job classification with a lower salary rate than his previous job
classification may refuse such position and remain eligible for recall. In the event that an
Employee accepts such a position, the Employee's name will be removed from the
reemployment list.

An Employee on layoff accrues no additional Sick Leave or Annual Leave. When an
Employee is recalled from layoff and re-employed, s/he is considered to have continuous
service credit for computation of future earned Annual Leave. Sick Leave will be
reinstated in an amount equal to that as of the date of Employee's layoff provided;
however, Sick Leave will not be reinstated if the Employee has been previously
compensated for accrued, unused Leave upon layoff, unless the Employee fully
reimburses Employer for buy-out.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 34 of 44

7. Employees on a re-employment list shall retain eligibility for recall for a period of
eighteen (18) months from the date their name was placed on the list.

8. Upon returning to his/her original job classification, an Employee shall retain his/her
accrued time for Merit increase and Longevity if rehired within eighteen (18) months.

ARTICLE 41. FILLING OF VACANCIES

All vacancies and/or promotional vacancies shall be filled by candidates who meet the minimum
requirements of the position, as established by the Employer prior to the opening.

Notice of all vacancies and/or promotional vacancies within the bargaining unit shall be given to
all Employees of the County by posting such notice on bulletin boards and via email and/or fax
within the County departments for a period of not less than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the
last date for application or the date scheduled for testing, whichever is earlier. Notice shall
contain the following information:

1. Title and job description of the position;

2. All eligibility requirements including education, employment, training or experience
criteria, and whether equivalent factors will be recognized;

3. Whether preference or priority will be given to County Employees;

4. Whether County or other seniority or length of service will be considered a factor, and if
so, what weight will be given to such consideration in measuring or rating applicants;

5. Whether there will be competitive testing, and if so, the date, time and place of the test;
the nature and scope of the test subject matter, and any reference material or sources upon
which the test is based.

6. Whether the test will consist of written, oral and or physical demonstration components.
ARTICLE 42. PERSONNEL RECORDS

The Employer will maintain a personnel file on each Employee. The Employer shall maintain
only one (1) set of files on each Employee; the personnel office shall maintain said files. Any
Employee has the right to review his/her personnel file upon request to the Personnel Office.
Reasonable advance notice will be provided. This right is limited to the individual Employee to
review his/her own personnel file. However, an Employee may, with proper release forms,
permit his/her personnel file to be reviewed by a party so authorized, upon presentation of
properly executed forms to the personnel office, which form shall be developed by the Personnel
Office. Except as provided above, only those people working in the Personnel Office, and the
Employee's Supervisor, shall have access to an Employee's files. In addition, the Employer's
authorized attorney(s) shall have the right to access an Employee's files for legitimate personnel



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 35 of 44

purposes related to discipline, complaints, grievances, arbitrations, and lawsuits involving the
Employee.

Employees are encouraged to request placement in their files of any educational or other
accomplishments that serve to recognize an achievement bearing on both the Employee and the
Employer. A denial of such request and reason for denial shall be provided to the Employee in
writing.

Any materials placed in an Employee's file shall be copied to the Employee. Any derogatory
information shall be signed by the Employee. Such signature shall serve as acknowledgement of
receipt only. An Employee's refusal to sign should be witnessed by a third party.

Any Employee under this policy, upon reviewing his/her personnel file who finds inaccurate or
misleading material, may prepare and present to the Employee's Supervisor and Personnel
Officer a clarifying statement pertaining to the document in question requesting removal of said
document from his/her personnel file. Consultation with and approval from the Supervisor or
Personnel Officer is required prior to any action to remove material from a personnel file.

All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be
filed separately from the personnel files of the participants. No information from any Employee
personnel file may be given to a business without written permission of the Employee.

Any person accessing an Employee's file shall sign a file entry roster unless the access is the
normal day-today access made by Employees working in the personnel office.

ARTICLE 43. DISCIPLINE & DISCHARGE

As a general policy, discipline shall be administered or imposed to fit the circumstances on a
basis of progressive discipline; however, in the case of a serious offense, an Employee may be
summarily dismissed in the absence of a sequence of lesser discipline. No discipline shall be
imposed except far just cause.

1. PERSONAL REPRIMAND - Notification administered by a Supervisor regarding a potential
corrective action.

2. VERBAL WARNING- May be a documented corrective action per County policy. The
documentation may remain in the Employee’s personnel file for a period of no longer than
twelve (12) months, after which time the Employee may request in writing to the Personnel
Director that it be removed, provided that no other corrective action has been taken.

3. WRITTEN REPRIMAND- Written corrective or disciplinary action that maybe administered
by a Supervisor and shall document the cause for such action, in what manner the Employec's
conduct was improper, the necessary corrective action, and that further disciplinary action may
be taken if the Employee's conduct or performance is not corrected.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 36 of 44

The Supervisor shall provide a copy of the warning letter to the Employee and erasure that the

Employee signs one copy of the warning letter which shall be retained in the Employee's service
record. A warning letter shall remain in the Employee's service record for a minimum period of
eighteen (18) months, after which point the warning letter may be removed from the Employee's
service record upon the written request of the Employee and approval of the Personnel Director.

4, SUSPENSION - In the event of the commission of a serious offense, the offending Employee
may be suspended without pay for a period not to exceed thirty (30) calendar days, in accordance
with the gravity of the offense and the previous record of the Employee. The Employer shall
furnish the Employee with a written statement of the reasons and grounds for the suspension
utilizing the Specificity of Charges. A suspension shall remain in the Employee's service record
for a minimum period of twenty-four (24) months, after which the suspension may be removed
from the Employee's service record upon the written request of the Employee and approval of the
Personnel Director. Suspensions imposed for violations of Title VII or for violations of safety
rules, regulations, laws, and/or procedures shall not be removed from the Employee's service
record.

5. DEMOTION OR DISCHARGE - The Employer shall furnish the Employee with a written
statement of the reasons and grounds for the demotion or discharge utilizing the Specificity of
Charges.

6. SPECIFICITY OF CHARGES - All disciplinary actions imposing suspension, demotion or
discharge shall be furnished to the Employee in writing and shall state the nature of the offense,
the cause for such action, in what manner the Employee's conduct was improper, and the specific
rule, regulation, ordinance, law or policy violated.

The Supervisor shall provide a copy of the Specificity of Charges to the Employee and ensure
that the Employee signs one copy of the Specificity of Charges which shall be retained in the
Employee's service record. The Employee's signature does not constitute an admission of guilt,
but merely an acknowledgement of receipt of the charge. If the Employee refuses to sign, a
witness signature must be obtained.

7. DISPUTE OVER DISCIPLINE OR DISCHARGE - In the event that a dispute arises between
the Employer and the Employee regarding the existence of good cause for the suspension of the
Employee, or the demotion or discharge of the Employee, such dispute shall be adjudicated in
accordance with Article 17 of this Agreement.

Suspension in excess of ten (10) working days, demotion, or discharge shall be effective upon
the date stated in the Specificity of Charges and shall not be stayed by the filing of a grievance
discipline unless the discipline is ultimately reversed. Reversal of a suspension in excess of ten
(10) working days, demotion, or discharge shall result in reinstatement and an award of back pay
to and including the effective date of discipline.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 37 of 44

ARTICLE 44. INVOLUNTARY TRANSFERS

No Employee may be transferred for purposes of harassment or discipline. An Employee who
believes s/he has been transferred for the purpose of harassment or discipline may file a
grievance in accordance with Article 17 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 45, POLYGRAPH EXAMINATIONS

No Employee shall be compelled to submit to a polygraph examination against his/her will. No
disciplinary action or other recrimination shall be taken against an Employee for refusing to
submit to a polygraph examination. Testimony regarding whether an Employee refused to submit
to a polygraph examination shall be limited to state that, "Storey County does not compel
Employees to submit to polygraph examinations." This Article is limited in its application to
current Regular Full-Time Employees and current Regular Part-Time Employees as defined in
Article 3 of this Agreement, and is subject to all applicable State and Federal laws.

ARTICLE 46. BENEFITS INSURANCE

1. Employee eligibility for health insurance shall commence ninety (90) days after the hire date
and to the first day of the next month.

2. The Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly premiums for health
insurance (to include hospitalization, major medical, dental, and vision) for Regular Full-
Time Employees. The Employer agrees to pay one hundred percent (100%) of the monthly
premiums for health insurance for all Regular Full-Time Employees hired on or before June
30, 2005. The Employer agrees to pay a prorated percentage of monthly premiums for health
insurance based on actual hours scheduled to be worked for Regular Part-Time Employees
working at least twenty-one (21) hours but less than forty (40) hours per workweek hired on
or after July 1, 2005. Employer agrees to pay $30,000 A D & D of Employee for the term of
this Agreement.

3. For Employees hired before July 1, 2014, the Employer agrees to pay the monthly premiums
for health insurance for dependents (up to age 26) of Employees and spouses who are not
eligible for any other health insurance coverage on the same percentage basis as Employer
pays for the Employee. Effective May 1, 2012, if the Employee’s spouse is eligible for any
other health insurance coverage, the Employee may choose to cover his/her spouse on
Employer’s plan for a charge equal to fifty percent (50%) of the cost of the spouse’s
coverage.

a. All Employees shall provide annual certification stating whether their spouses are eligible
for any other health insurance coverage on a County provided affidavit.

b. This Article shall be reopened for negotiation in 2014 in accordance with NRS 288 so
that in the event that Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employee’s Association/ Operating
Engineers Local Union No. 3 and/or Storey County Fire Fighters Association IAFF Local
4227, and/or any other collective bargaining unit recognized by the Employer negotiates



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 38 of 44

a higher level of spousal and/or dependent coverage than is provided in this Article, or
that coverage is offered to any Employees excluded from coverage by Collective
Bargaining Agreements (with exception of those subject to statutory requirements), the
Union under this Agreement may negotiate this Article.

4. For Employees newly hired on or after July 1, 2014, spouses and dependents are not eligible

for Employer-paid health insurance coverage.

a. For the purposes of this Article, “newly hired” Employees shall not include: any
Employee continuously employed by the County in any position (including but not
limited to any elected, part-time, intermittent, or seasonal positions) and whose position
becomes or who moves to a position that is or becomes eligible for health insurance
benefits; and any Employee who has had a break in service of no more than eighteen (18)
months for any reason.

b. This Article shall be reopened for negotiation in 2014 in accordance with NRS 288 so
that in the event that Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employee’s Association/ Operating
Engineers Local Union No. 3 and/or Storey County Fire Fighters Association TAFF Local
4227, and/or any other collective bargaining unit recognized by the Employer negotiates
a higher level of spousal and/or dependent coverage that is provided in this Article, or
that coverage is offered to any Employees excluded from coverage by Collective
Bargaining Agreements (with exception of those subject to statutory requirements), the
Union under this Agreement may negotiate this Article.

5. Employee may opt out of Employer paid health insurance coverage and receive fifty percent

(50%) of the premium the Employer would have paid for Employee only. Premium
percentage will be paid to the Employee via payroll once per month and may be considered
taxable income. Opt-out must be done annually during an open enrollment period.

The Employer shall allow one (1) representative from the Union to communicate with the
Employer and participate in a representative advisory role with the Employer in decision
making pertaining to changes to Employee health benefits, including medical, dental, and
vision.

7. Legal Liability. NRS Chapter 41 shall apply to all represented Employees as appropriate.

ARTICLE 47. RETIREMENT

1.

Retirement contributions. The Employer will pay retirement contributions for Employees
covered under this Agreement as required by NRS 286. No provision of this Article shall be
deemed to waive any provision of NRS Chapter 286 in respect to "Early Retirement."

2. Health insurance subsidy. The Employer shall pay monthly health insurance premiums for

retirees as required under NRS Chapters 286 and 287. This payment shall be made regardless
of the insurance provider elected by the retiree to provide coverage; however, the Employer's
responsibility for payment shall be capped at the amount the Employer would be required to



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 39 of 44

pay if the retiree elected coverage with the insurance provider designated under the Public
Employees' Benefits Program. Retirees not electing coverage with the insurance provider
designated under the Public Employees' Benefits Program shall be responsible for the
payment of any excess difference in cost for the coverage elected.

ARTICLE 48. EMERGENCY CLOSURE

In the event the County or a portion thereof closes due to a health, welfare, or safety issues, and
such closure is authorized by the State or County Commissioners, Employees who are unable to
report to work due to such official closure shall be paid up to five (5) working days per incident
at their regular rate of pay per day. This Article shall not apply to Employees in classified
positions in Public Works roads, water, sewer; Communications Series; and Information
Technology Series.

ARTICLE 49. PREVAILING RIGHTS

All previous benefits including hours, wages, and working conditions that are matters within the
scope of mandatory bargaining, enjoyed by the Employees, but are too numerous to mention or
write in this Agreement, will not be diminished without mutual consent of the parties.

There will be no change in any Article or subject matter covered by this Agreement without the
mutual consent of the parties.

There will be no change in any matter within the scope of mandatory bargaining without
negotiations as required by NRS 288 and mutual consent of the parties during the term of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 50. PRIVATIZATION / SUBCONTRACTING

1. It is agreed that work normally done by bargaining unit Employees shall not be contracted
out to non-Employees of the County so as to cause the number of Employees within the
bargaining unit to fall below twenty-two (22) Employees.

2. Tt is agreed that work normally performed by bargaining unit Employees shall not
normally be performed by non-bargaining unit Employees.

3. This Article shall not apply when bargaining unit Employees and/or adequate equipment
are not available for work, when an immediate emergency exists, or when the provisions
of this Article conflict with the provisions set forth in Article 18 of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 51. SUCCESSOR CLAUSE

1. Storey County agrees to negotiate with the Union, to the extent and under the provisions
of NRS 288, the impact and effect upon represented Employees of consolidation or any
other form of placement or transfer of its County services prior to or upon any decision to
consolidate, or any other form of placement or transfer. Nothing in this Article will



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 40 of 44

prevent Storey County from making any decisions to consolidate or any other form of
placement or transfer to another entity.

2. This Agreement shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and
no provisions, terms, or obligations herein contained shall be affected, modified, altered,
or changed in any respect whatsoever by the consolidation, merger, annexation, transfer or
assignment of either party hereto, or by any change of management responsibility,
geographically or otherwise, in the location or place of business of either party.

ARTICLE 52. NO STRIKE / NO LOCKOUT

Neither the Union nor any Employee covered by this Agreement will promote, sponsor, or
engage in any strike against the Employer; slow down or interruption of operation; concentrated
stoppage of work; absence from work upon any pretext or excuse, such as illness, which is not
founded in fact; or on any other intentional interruption of the operations of the Employer
regardless of the reason for so doing.

The Employer will not lock out any Employees during the term of this Agreement as a result of a
labor dispute with the Union.

ARTICLE 53. SAVINGS CLAUSE

This Agreement is the entire Agreement of the parties. Should any provision of this Agreement
be found to be in contravention of any Federal or State law by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such particular provision shall be null and void, but all other provisions of this Agreement shall
remain in full force and effect until otherwise cancelled or amended.

ARTICLE 54. DURATION OF AGREEMENT

1. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall be in full force and effect July
1, 2013 through June 30, 2016.

2. Pursuant to NRS 288.150(w), this Agreement or any provision herein may be
automatically reopened for negotiations upon written request by the Employer during
periods of fiscal emergency severe enough in their impact to cause the following
conditions:

a. A revenue shortfall of greater than or equal to five percent (5%) below budgeted
taxation revenues has occurred within the preceding fiscal year; AND

b. The fiscal emergency is of a nature deemed critical enough to re-open any and all
existing collective bargaining agreements which are in effect at the same time.



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County
Page 41 of 44

STOREY COUNTY

William “Bill” Sjovangen, Chairman

Marshall McBride, Vice-Chairman

Lance Gilman, Commissioner

APPROVED AS TO FORM:
William “Bill” Maddox, District Attorney

2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

STOREY COUNTY EMPLOYEE’S ASSOC.
AFSCME-COMSTOCK CHAPTER

Tobi Whitten, President

Gerrie Honea, Vice-President

Signed Commissioner Meeting June 18, 2013



AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County
Page 42 of 44

2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

APPENDIX A. Storey County Job Classifications and Pay Grades

2011-2012

APPENDIX A
Current Classifications Grade \Added or
Changad
Administrative Clerk 110 11/28/2011
See Position Statements Also for Administrative Employees
Administrative Assistant | 113 114282011
Administrative Assistant li 116 11/28/2011%
Administrative Assistant llI 119 11/2802011
Adm. Spec/Office Mgr 122 11/28:2011
Senior Administrative Siac 11728/2011
Property Appralser | 117282011
Property Appraiser lf | 1172802011
Pﬁeﬂ Aiﬁraiser " 11/28/2014
GIS Coordinator
Network Support Technician 61282012
Network Suiﬁn‘. Technician |1 12 _ 71172011
Communications Specialist 113 B 62812012
Communications Specialist 1| 116 612812012
Senior Communication Sﬁlaﬂst 119 ¥ 6/28/2012
Building Inspector | .1‘-1 3
Building Inspector I 122
Inspector U1 126
1
122
Auto & Equip Tech | 113
Auto & Equip Tech 1| 116
EIPARLS T RRA N
o=t <
Custodial Malntenance Worker 110
Maintenance Worker I/11-CDL 16
Maintenance Worker [/11-CDL 119
Senlor Maintenance Worker COL 121
Road Malntenance Foreman 127
ERREaLS
Treatment Plant Operator 119
Treatment Plant Operator |l 127
Deputy Director of Public Works 132 J
|Visilor Liaison 110 erpes012)

AFSCME LOCAL UNION

November 29, 2011



2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement

AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County
(Appendix A continued)

Page 43 of 44

General Salary Scheduls

AtLtachment A

ANNUAL SALARY

7/1/2023 through §/30/2014

Step 1 3 S © ] 9 10

iGrade
110 31,724.14]| 32,83%,50] 33,963.72 35,404.21| 37,67B.34 a0, 361.99| 41,778.60| 43,236.78
113 34,163.43| 35,339.18| 3b,596.74 38,203.35| #0,575.96 43,405.65| #4,980./4| 4b,561.29
116 36,790.28| 38,077.97| (39.410.69 42,217.73| 43.695.33 46,807.55| 48,445.81| 50,141.42
119 39,610.11] A41,005.81| 92 ,441.00 45,463.88| 47,055.08 30,906. 58| 52,170.54] 53,996,852
120 %0.600.59| 42.030.95| 43,502.03 AG.B0D. 47| 48,.231.47 51,666.75| 53,475.11] 55,346.74
122 42.6b65.45 76| 45,.704.32 48 ,959.62 50,673.18 54.282.38 56,182.28 58,148.67
124 %4,825.38| 46,394.29| 48,018.10 51.438.20| 53,238.51 57.030.42] 59,026.51] 61,092.44]
126 37.098.66] 48.743.0L] o0, 48902 34 .0A2.2b| 59.933.72 T9.917.58| 62,014.74| b4,185.24
T27 Z8,272.03| 49,961.38] 51,.7:0.25 35.393.32| 57.332.06 51.415.53| 63,565.10] 65,7/80.88
198 39 _478.583| 51.210.62| 53,003.00 $6.778.16| 58,765,386 52,950.01| B5,134.23] 67,434.63
129 $0.715.81| 52.450.88| 54,328.08 $§.107.61| 60.234.50 64,524.68| 65,783.09] 69,120.49

[ 130] _ 51.983.70| 53,803.15| 55,465,485 59,652.55| B1,740.37 BG,137.80| ©8.452.67| 70.848.51
I3L 53,283.29| 55,148.23] 57,078,448 6l,143.86 b3,283.87 70,163 .98 72, .
137 3%.615.37] 56,326.95| 58,505.39| 611,553.08] ©62,672.85| 6%,865.97| b7,136.32] 71,012 08] 7A,.433.20
133 55,080.75] ar,940.10] 59,968,03 64,239,26| ©6,487.62 71,223.17| 73.716.04| 76,206,090
134 57.38D.27| 09,384.60] 61,467,239 b5 ,.n845,./4 68.149. 81 73,003.76 75,558,905 78,203,495

335 S8.514.7/8] ©U.873.3L| 53.003.91 B7.401.37] ©U.853.56| 72.206.48| 74.878.85| 77,447.93] =®0.15B.58
136 B0,285.15| 62.395.14] b4,579.0L ©9.1/8.65] 71,599.90| 74,105.94| 76,699.57] 79,384.12] &2,162.54
137 BL,702.28| ©3,933.02| 60,193.48 70,908:13| 73.389.99| 75.93B.58| 78,b1r.06] BL,368.73] 81,216,061
138 53,337.09] 65.553.90| 67.848.32 72,680.82|  75,224.64 B0,582.49] 83.402.94] 86,324,027
139 64,920.52| 67,192.74| ©0.544.53 74,097 .B4| 77,105.26 82,597.05| 85,468.02| &=,450.07
130 56,543.52] 68,B72.56] v1.263.24 75,360.29| 79,032.88 B4,561.98| 87,62 90, 692, 08|
151 B&,207.12| 70,594.37| 73,065 22 78.269.30] 51,009 (4| 83%,844.06] B86,778.53] B9,.B15.85] 92,959,38
142 69,912.30] 72,359.23] 74,891.85 80,226.04] 83,033.93 §8,947.99] 92,061.24] 95,283.37
143 71,660.11 76.,64. 19 §2.291.569| B5.100.78] SB.088.57] 91.171.60| ON.367. 77| O/.665 36
a4 73.451.62 78,683.24 8<.287 4&| K7 237 57| O0,J00.89| ©3.450.98| 9U6,771.84] 100,107.09]
145 75,287 .90 80,650.3¢ 86.394.66| 89,418.45| 92,54B.16| 95,7587.26| 99,139.88| 102,600.78
196 77.L70.10| 79.871.08| &Z.666.57 88,594.53| 91,653.92| 94.8H1.87] 98.151.95| 101,618.38] 105.175.03
147 79,099.35| BL,867.82| 84,733,24 90,768.33]  93,945.276| 97,233.42] 100,626.49] 104,158.84] 107,804.40
148 51,075.83] 6£3,014,5L| @6,851.57 — 93,037.61| 96,293.90 103,157.41| 106,762.81] 110,499.51
149 3,103.7/6| 6b.0Dic.3d] 89,.022.87 G5 ,363.54| 08,701 102.155.86] 105.73L.72] 109,431.88 s
1] S.I80.35 ©8. 167, JAE EZ| 9g . @e7 14| 97 7A7 . n3i| T91. 16 (04, 705. 25| 108.573.50] 117 167.06 BT
151 87,310.59| 90,366,06] 93,529.b4 100,191.33| 103,697 107,327.50] 1 [14,971.87 B8
152 89,493.66| 92,625.92| 95.867.86 i02,696.11| 106,490.45 113,860.96| 117,846.17] 121,970.76
153 91,731.00| 94 ,941.57| 98,264.38 105,063.51| 108,947 71| 112,78D.96] 116,707.48]| 120,792.33 125,020.05
154 94.024,27] 97,315.11] 100,721,290 107.895.10] 131,671.41| 11S5,579.98] 119,625.17| 123,812.14| 128,145.56
155 96,374, 88 99 ,747.98| 103,239.23 210,592 .48 114,463,118 Hum.mu.m.mso 126,907.44] 131, 349.19
156 Of,784_.25| 102,241.68| 405,B20.21 113,357.29] 147,324.77 125,681.20] 130,080.13| 134,637.92
157 101,233.86| 104,797.72| 108,465.71 116,191.23| 120,257,809 128,523 23] 133,332.14] 137,998.7%
158] 103,785.20| 107.417.60] 1i1,177.35 119.096,0).| 173,764,34 132.043.50] 136,665.43] 191 34871
158| 106.379.84| 110,.103.10| 113.956.79 127.073.41| 126,345.94] 130,768.14] 135,344.90] 140,082.07] 144 9583 93]
160]  109,039.34] 112,855.69] 116,805.71 125,125.25| 129,504,598 138,728.53] 143,584,11] 148 609.55




AFSCME Comstock Chapter / Storey County 2013 — 2016 Collective Bargaining Agreement
Page 44 of 44

APPENDIX B. Performance Review Policy.

Contact the Personnel Office for the most recent Performance Review Policy.



